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Olympus Gorporation
Rule 12g3-2(b) File No. 82-3326

The enclosed information is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) on behalf of Olympus Corporation (the “Company’) pursuant to the
exemption from the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) afforded by Rule
12g3-2(b) thereunder.

Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(1)(iii) under the Exchange Act, the Company is furnishing
the enclosed documents as identified in Exhibit A and Exhibit B attached hereto. Documents
for which English versions are readily available are listed in Exhibit A. With respect to the
Japanese language documents for which English language versions are not readily available,
translations or summaries are set forth in Exhibit B.

Please do not hesitate to contact me at +81-3-5251-1601 if you have any questions or
requests for additional information.

Very truly yours,
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Exhibit A

Documents for which English versions are readily available

No.

Date released

Documents Disclosed Pursuant to Timely Disclosure Regulations of the Tokyo Stock

Exchange and Osaka Securities Exchange:

1.  Consolidated Financial Results for the First Quarter of the Fiscal
Year Ended March 31, 2009
(Exhibit A-1)

2. Financial Results for the First Quarter ended June 30, 2008
(Exhibit A-2)

Press Releases:

1.  Press release entitled “Olympus Imaging and Panasonic announce
new Micro Four Thirds System standard”
(Exhibit A-3)

2. Press release entitled “Olympus Wins EISA Awards for the E-3
Interchangeable-Lens-Type Digital SLR Camera and the p1030SW
Compact Digital Camera”

(Exhibit A-4)

Others:

1.  Annual Report 2008
(Exhibit A-5)
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August 18,2008
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Consolidated Financial Results for the First Quarter
of the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2009

FASF
LENAERSHIP

oY)

August 1, 2008

Company Name: Olympus Corporation

Code Number: 7733

(URL: http://www.olympus.co.jp/)

Stock Exchange Listing: First Section of Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section of Osaka Securities Exchange
Representative: Tsuyoshi Kikukawa, President and Representative Director

Contact: Hironobu Kawamata, General Manager, Accounting Division

Phone: 03-3340-2111

Scheduled date to submit the Quarterly Report: August 14, 2008

{Figures are rounded off to the nearest million yen)

1. Consolidated Financial Results for the First Quarter of the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2009
(From April 1, 2008 to June 30, 2008)

(1) Consolidated Results of Operations {cumulative) (% indicate changes from the same period of the previous term)

Net sales Operating income Ordinary income Net income
(¥ million) % (¥ million) % (¥ million} % (¥ million) %
1Q ended June 30, 2008 254331 - 17,544 - 12,698 - 6,521 -
1Q ended June 30, 2007 264,418 17.2 31,133 1.6 27,565 124.9 17,644 147.7

Net income per share Fully diluted net income per share
¥ (¥)
1Q ended June 30, 2008 2422 24,22
1Q ended June 30, 2007 6527 -
(2) Consolidated Financial Position
Total assets Net assets Equity ratio Net assets per share
(¥ million) (¥ million) % [§3]
As of June 30, 2008 1,398,243 366,948 254 1,330.09
As of March 31, 2008 1,358,349 367,876 26.2 1,318.65
Note: Equity as of June 30, 2008: ¥ 355,497 million  March 31, 2008: ¥ 356,351 million
2. Dividends
Cash dividends per share
(Record date) First quarter Second guarter Third quarter Year-end Annual
€3] ¥ (¥} (¥) ¥
Year ended March 31,
2008 - 20.00 - 20.00 40.00
Year ended March 311,
2009 - T T "—_
Year ended March 31,
2009 (Forecast) E— 20.00 - 20.00 40.00

Note: Revisions of the forecast in the first quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009: None




3. Forecast of Consolidated Financial Results for the Year ending March 31, 2009 (April 1, 2008 -

March 31 2009) (% indicates changes from the previous corresponding term)
Sales Operating income Ordinary income Net income Net income
per share
& million) o (¥ mitlion) % |  (¥million) % | (¥million) % ®
2Q) (cumulative) 529,000 3.9 37,000 (38.6) 27,000 (46.1) 16,000 (49.8) 59.86
Full year 1,108,000 {1.8) 95,000 {15.6) 75,000 {19.4) 43,000 (25.8) 160.88

* Note: Revision of the forecast in the first quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009: Yes

4. Others
(1) Significant changes of subsidiaries during period under review (affecting specific subsidiaries due to changes

in scope of consolidation): No

(2) Application of simplified accounting as well as specific accounting for preparing the quarterly consolidated
financial statements: Yes
[Note: Fore more details, please refer 1o the section of “4, Others of [Qualitative Information and Financial
Statements]” on page 5.]

(3) Changes in accounting policies, procedures, and methods of presentation for preparing the quarterly
consolidated financial statements (changes described in the section of " Changes in significant matters forming
the basis of preparing the guarterly consolidated financial statements™)

1)  Changes due to revisions to accounting standards: Yes

2)  Changes due to other reasons: None

(4) Number of issued shares (common stock)

1)  Total number of issued shares at the end of the period (including treasury stock)

As of June 30, 2008 271,283,608 shares

As of March 31, 2008 271,283,608 shares
2)  Number of treasury stock at the end of the period

As of June 30, 2008 4,010,184 shares

As of March 31, 2008 : 1,044,440 shares
3)  Average number of shares during the period (cumulative from the beginning of the fiscal year)

For the first quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 269,248,342 shares

For the first quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 270,308,052 shares

/ Proper use of the forecast of financial results. and other special directions \

1. The forecast of consolidated financial results for the end of the second quarter and the full year announced on
May 8, 2008 were revised in this document.

2. The forward-looking statements, including the forecast of financial results, contained in this document are based
on information currently available to the Company and on certain assumptions deemed to be reasonable. Actual
business results may differ substantially due to a number of factors. Please refer to the section of #3. Qualitative
information regarding forecast of consolidated financial results of [Qualitative Information and Financial
Statements] ” on page 4 for the suppositions that form the assumptions for business resulis and cautions
concerning the use of the forecast of financial results, as well as the specific figures of the forecast revision
pertaining to 1. above,

3. Commencing with the current fiscal year. the “Accounting Standard for Quanterly Financial Reporting™ (ASBJ
[Accounting Standards Board of Japan] Statement No. 12) and the “Guidance on Accounting Standard for

\Quanerly Financial Reporting” (ASBJ Guidance No. 14) are applied. Also, quarterly consclidated f’mancia]/

statements are prepared in accordance with the “Regulation for Quarterly Consotidated Financial Statements.”




[Qualitative Information and Financial Statements)
1. Qualitative Information Regarding Consolidated Results of Operations

The Japanese economy for the first quarter of the current year decelerated further due to galloping crude
oil prices that depressed corporate earnings and slackened business investments. Across the globe,
although we are witnessing continued growth in emerging countries, the slowdown of the European and
U.S. economy was unabated due to sluggish consumer spending on the heels of the sub-prime mortgage
crisis and soaring crude oil and raw material prices.

In this business environment, the Olympus Group’s consolidated net sales for the first quarter, compared
to the previous year, was ¥254 331 million (a decrease of 3.8%). The consolidated operating income
figure was ¥17,544 million {(down by 43.6%), the consolidated ordinary income figure was ¥12,698
million {down by 53.9%), due to worsening non-operating income and expenses caused by an increase in
foreign currency exchange loss, and the net income for the quarter was ¥6,521 million {(down by 63.0%), a
figure attributable to the recording of ¥842 million in extraordinary losses and of ¥5,579 million in income
taxes.

With respect to foreign currency exchange rates, compared to the previous year, rates against the euro
remained roughly the same, however, the yen greatly appreciated against the U.S. dollar with average rates
during the period at ¥104.55 per dollar and ¥163.43 per euro. These rates attribuied to a ¥13,800 million
decrease in net sales year on year.

Consolidated net sales for the Imaging Syvstems Business was ¥72,116 million (an 11.7% decrease over the
previous year), while operating income was ¥9,766 million (down by 34.4%). Although the number of
compact digital cameras and digital single-lens reflex cameras sold did not change from last year, revenues
suffered due to a higher yen and a drop in unit prices. Operating income decreased due to lower revenue and
higher raw material prices.

Consolidated net sales for the Medical Systems Business amounted to ¥90,154 million (a 14.8% increase over
the previous year), while operating income amounted to ¥17,844 million (a 16.9% decrease over the previous
year). The addition of the sales of Gyrus Group PLC, a British medical treatment device company
subsidiarized in February of this year, resulted in an increase in sales in the surgical related business.
Also, the core product high-resolution HDTV endoscope system sold well in Asia and Central and South
America and favorable performance in Endo Therapy products, mainly guidewires and other
pancreaticobiliary duct endotherapy devices, and surgical fields contributed to higher revenue. Operating
income dropped as a result of an increase in deprectation costs due to the business integration with Gyrus and
the stronger yen,

Consolidated net sales for the Life Sciences Business was ¥28, 532 million (a 1.1% decrease over the previous
vear), while an operating loss of ¥265 million was recorded {(compared 10 the operating income of ¥919
million in the previous year). In the micro-imaging {microscopes) field, revenue decreased due to a higher yen
and lower sales in industrial microscopes attributable to constricted capital expenditures in the wake of an
economic slowdown, however, in the diagnostic systems field, favorable results were witnessed in blood
transfusion related products here in Japan and in the U.S. and sales expanded in biochemistry related products
in Europe and Asia. An operating loss was recorded mainly due to exchange rates and an increase in R&D
related investments in new products.

Consolidated net sales for the Information & Communication Business was ¥47 417 million (a 20.7% decrease
over the previous year), while operating income showed ¥99 million {(a 2.1% increase over the previous year).
Net sales witnessed a decrease due to lower returns as a result of changes in the sales fee plans of
telecommunications companiesinvolved in the cellular phone terminal sales, however, operating income
retained its previous year level due to successful efforts at controlling business expenses.

Consolidated net sales for other business was ¥16,112 million (a 3.4% increase over the previous vear) and an



operating loss of ¥3,308 million was recorded (compared to ¥544 million operating income 1n the previous
year). Contributing factors leading to higher revenue were seen in the non-destructive testing equipment field,
where robust sales in our highly functional phased array ultrasound testing devices were recorded mainly
overseas, as well as in the information equipment field, which saw an increase in sales in high-speed ink jet
printers. With regard to operating loss, we experienced a loss in profit due to a hike in amortization of
goodwill of newly consolidated subsidiaries.

2. Qualitative Information Regarding Consolidated Financial Position

Total assets at the end of the first quarter of the current fiscal year were ¥1,398,243 million, up ¥39,894
million compared to the end of the previous year. Although there were increases of ¥13,055 million in cash
and time deposits, ¥9,780 million 1n inventories and ¥4 013 million in “lease assets™, due to the application of
accounting treatments for consolidated subsidiaries in countries or regions other than Japan when drafting
consolidated financial statements, notes and accounts receivable suffered a decrease of ¥7,370 milhion.

With respect to liabilities, short-term borrowings and “lease liabilities™ due to the application of accounting
treatments for consolidated subsidiaries in countries or regions other than Japan when drafting consolidated
financial statements were up ¥35,729 million and ¥4,438 million, respectively. However, notes and accounts
payable dropped by ¥11,974 million.

As for net assets, a decrease in shareholders’ equity of ¥7,800 million was recorded due to the acquisition of
¥9.998 million worth of treasury stock as a means of returning profits to shareholders, in addition to
fluctuations in surplus such as net income of ¥6,521 million and dividends from surplus of ¥5,405 million. On
the other hand, because of an increase of ¥6,946 million in valuation and translation adjustments due to
fluctuations in exchange rates and share prices, net assets were down ¥928 million compared to the end of the
previous fiscal year and the equity ratio was 25.4%.

3. Qualitative Information Regarding Forecast of Consolidated Financial Results

Concerning the forecast for the first and second quarter cumulated consolidated results and year-end results,
the Company revised its previous forecast on net assets as follows taking into consideration effects from
global drops in unit prices of digital cameras and changes in sales fee plans of communications service
providers involved in the cellular phone terminal sales. Please note that, with respect to operating income,
ordinary income and net income, we do not predict any changes from the previously announced forecasts due
to an expected fall in operating costs.

Exchange rates in the second quarter and beyond are expected to be ¥100 per U.S. dollar and ¥155 ven per
euro and the average exchange rates for the entire year, a precondition for the forecast, are expected to be
¥101 ven per U.S. dollar and ¥157 per euro.

Second quarter ended September 30, 2008 (cumulative)

Net sales Operating income Ordinary income Net income

(¥ miltion) (¥ million) (¥ million) (¥ mallion)
Previous Forecast (A) 555,000 37,000 27,000 16,000
Revised forecast (B) 529,000 37,000 27,000 16,000
Increase {Decrease) (B-A) {26.,000) - - -
Increase (Decrease) Ratio (%0) “.7 - - -




Fiscal year ended March 31, 2009

Net sales Operating income Ordinary income Net income

(¥ million) (¥ million} (¥ million) (¥ million)
Previous Forecast (A) 1,150,000 05,000 75,000 43,000
Revised forecast (B} 1,108,000 95,000 75,000 43,000
Increase (Decrease) (B-A) (42,000} - - -
Increase (Decrease) Ratio (%0) 3.7 - - -

4, Others

(1) Significant changes of subsidiaries during period under review (affecting specific subsidiaries due to
changes in scope of consolidation)

No items to report

(2) Application of simplified accounting as well as specific accounting for preparing the quarterly
consolidated financial statements

1) Calculation of tax expense

The tax expense was calculated by first estimating the effective tax rate after the application of tax
effect accounting with respect to income before provision for income taxes during the consolidated

fiscal year including this first quarter and multiplying that rate by the quarterly income before provision
for income taxes.

2) Inventory valuation method

With respect to the calculation of inventories at the end of the first quarter, physical inventories were

omitted and a reasonable calculation method was employed based on the physical inventories at the end
of the previous fiscal year.

In addition, concerning the lowering of the book value of inventories, only for those items whose drop
in profitability became apparent was an estimate of net sale price made and book values lowered.

3) Fixed asset depreciation cost calculation method

Concerning assets for which the declining balance method is employed, depreciation costs for the first
quarter are calculated pro rata from the depreciation cost for the entire fiscal year.

(3) Changes in accounting policies, procedures, and methods of presentation for preparing the quarterly
consolidated financial statements

1) Application of accounting standards concerning quarterly financial statements

Commencing with the current fiscal year, the “Accounting Standard for Quarterly Financial Reporting™
(ASBJ [Accounting Standards Board of Japan] Statement No. 12, March 14, 2007) and the “Guidance
on Accounting Standard for Quarterly Financial Reporting” (ASBJ Guidance No. 14, March 14, 2007)
are applied. Also, quarterly consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
“Regulation for Quarterly Consolidated Financial Statements.”




2) Application of accounting standards conceming the valuation of inventories

In the past, inventories were stated mainly using the lower of cost (first-in first-out) or market method.
As the Accounting Standard for Measurement of Inventories (ASBJ Statement No. 9, July 5, 2006) was
applied from the first quarter under review, inventories are mainly stated at the cost (first-in first-out)
(for the value stated on the balance sheet, the book value is indicated based on the decreased
profitability). The impact of this change on gains or losses is immaterial.

3) Application of the “Practical Solution on Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign
Subsidiaries for Consolidated Financial Statements™

Commencing with this first quarter, the “Practical Solution on Unification of Accounting Policies
Applied to Forcign Subsidiaries for Consolidated Financial Statements™ (PITF Practical Solution No.
18, ASBJ, May 17, 2006) is applied, and necessary amendments for consolidated financial statements
are made.

4) Application of accounting standards conceming lease transactions

Before the change, the accounting treatment for finance lease transactions not involving the transfer of
ownership followed mutatis mutandis the method for operating lease transactions, but now after the
application of the “Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions” (ASBJ Statement No. 13; Business
Accounting Council Committee No. 1, June 17, 1993; revised March 30, 2007) and the “Guidance on
Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions™ (ASBJ Guidance No. 16; the Japanese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, Accounting Committee, January 18, 1994; revised March 30, 2007) are
allowed starting from the quarterly consolidated financial statements related to the fiscal year beginning
April 1, 2008 or later, the Company applies these standard and guidance from this first quarter, and the
accounting treatment for such transactions follows the method for ordinary purchase and sales
transactions. Meanwhile, depreciation of leased assets pertaining to finance lease transactions not
involving the transfer of ownership is computed on a straight-line method over the lease period as
useful life without residual value. The impact of this change on gains or losses is immaterial.



5. Consolidated Financial Statements
{1} Consolidated balance sheets

{Millions of yen)

As of June 30, 2008 As of March 31, 2008
{Summary}
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and time deposits 171,336 158,281
Notes and accounts receivable 186,185 193,555
Marketable securities 200 3
Merchandise 11,728 10,928
Finished goods 61.486 54,301
Raw materials 19,797 18,989
Work in process 27.593 26,606
Others 87,025 83,751
Allowance for doubtful accounts {4,060) (3,109)
Total current assets 561,290 543,305
Fixed assets
Property, plant and equipment
Buildings and structures 62,494 61,305
Machinery and equipment 18,149 18,350
Tools, furniture and fixtures 49 486 42,692
Land 21,358 21,291
Lease assets 4,013 -
Construction in progress 9,460 6,398
Total tangible fixed assets 164,960 150,036
Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill 305,695 299 800
Others 97 867 104,230
Total intangible fixed assets 403,562 404,030
Investments and other assets
Investment securities 198,826 193,843
Others 70,021 67,550
Allowance for doubtful accounts (416) (415)
Total investments and other assets 268,431 260,978
Total fixed assets 836,953 815,044
Total assets 1,398,243 1,358,349




(Millions of yen)

As of June 30, 2008 As of March 31, 2008
{Summary)
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
. Notes and accounts payable 71,628 83,602
Short-term borrowings 374,516 338,787
Current maturities of bonds 35,218 35,201
Income taxes payable 10,873 14,121
Warranty reserve 10,848 10,141
Other reserves 90 133
Others 190,952 180,469
Total current liabilities 694,167 662,454
Long-term liabilities
Long-term bonds, less current 105.497 105.397
maturities ; s
llﬁgrtll%r_i[t?gsn borrowings, less current 175478 177,371
Severance and retirement allowance 12,016 10,317
Other reserves 556 574
Others 43,578 34,360
Total long-term liabilities 337,128 328,019
Total liabilities 1,031,295 990,473
NET ASSETS
Shareholders’ equity
Common stock 438332 48,332
Capital surplus 73,049 73,049
Retained earnings 240,042 237,817
Treasury stock at cost (12,659) (2,634)
Total sharcholders’ equity 348,764 356,564
Valuation and translation adjustments
sNe?:tu L;irtlirgsahzed helding gains on 9966 6,320
Deferred gains or losses on hedges (1,032) 34
g(%rgsi rlr]l ffﬁntrrency translation (2,201) (6,567)
g‘(%tgsl;t\lﬁfl:g{aélon and translation 6,733 (213)
Minority interests 11,451 11,525
Total net assets 366,948 367,876
Total liabilities and net assets 1,398,243 1,358,349




(2) Consolidated statement of income

(Millions of yen)

First quarter ended June 30, 2008
(From April 1, 2008
to June 30, 2008)

Net sales 254331
Costs of sales 129,067
Gross profit 125,264
Selling, general and administrative expenses 107,720
Operating income 17,544
Non-operating income
Interest income 945
Dividends income 513
Others 1,380
Total non-operating income 2,838

Non-operating expenses

Interest expenses 3,185

Foreign currency exchange loss 2,246

Others 2,253

Total non-operating expenses 7,684
Ordinary income 12,698
Extraordinary losses

Losses on valuation of investment 842

securities

Total extraordinary losses 842
Income before provision for income taxes 11,856
Income taxes 5,579
Minority interests (244)
Net income 6,521




Commencing with the current fiscal vear, the “Accounting Standard for Quarterly Financial Reporting™
(ASBJ [Accounting Standards Board of Japan] Statement No. 12) and the “Guidance on Accounting Standard
for Quarterly Financial Reporting™” (ASBJ Guidance No. 14) are applied. Also, quarterly consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the “Regulation for Quarterly Consohdated Financial Statements.”

(3) Notes on premise of going concern

No items to report

(4) Segment information

a. Segment information by type of business
First quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 (from April 1, 2008 to June 30, 2008)

(Millions of yen)

Information Elimination
Imaging Medical ].“l fe & . Others Total or Consolidated
Systems Systems Sciences | Communi- .
. Unallocation
cation
Net sales
(1) Sales 10 outside customers 72,116 90,154 28,532 47,417 16,112 254,331 - 254,331
{2) Intemal sales of transfer among 27 1 63 _ 146 247 (247) _
segments
Total 72,143 90,165 28,595 47417 16,258 254,578 (247) 254,331
Operating income (or operating loss) 9,766 17,844 (265) 99 (3,308) 24,136 (6,592) 17,544

Notes: 1. Method of segmentation of business

Businesses established based on product line are segmented taking into consideration similarities in

sales markets.

2. The main products for each business
(1) Imaging Systems: Digital cameras, Voice recorders
(2) Medical Systems: Medical endoscopes, Surgical endoscopes, Endo Therapy products, Ultrasound

(3) Life Sciences:

(5) Others:

endoscopes

b. Segment information by region
First quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 (from April 1, 2008 to June 30, 2008)

Blood analyzer (clinical chemistry analyzer), Biological microscopes, Industrial
microscopes
(4) Information & Communication: Sales of mobile terminals including mobile handsets,

Mobile solution, Mobile content services, Development and sales of business
package software, Sales of network infrastructure systems, Sales of
semiconductor devices and electric equipment
Industrial endoscopes, Non-destructive testing equipment, Printers, Bar code

data processing equipment, System development, etc.

{Millions of yen}

North Elimination
Japan America Europe Asia Total or Consolidated
Unallocation
Net sales
(1) Sales to outside customers 96,427 62,611 74,611 20,682 254,331 — 254,331
(2) Intemal sales or transfer among
segments 74,893 1,931 4,494 25,714 107,092 (107,092) -
Total 171,320 64,542 79,105 46,456 361,423 (107,092) 254,331
Operating income 11,770 2,985 5,160 2,896 22,811 (5,267) 17,544

Notes: 1. Countries and regions are segmented by geographical proximity.

2. Major countries and regions other than Japan are as follows:

(1) North America:

10

USA, Canada, Mexico, and Brazil




(2) Europe:

(3) Asia:

c. Overseas sales

Germany, UK, France, etc.

Singapore, Hong Kong, China, Korea, Australia, etc.

First quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 (from April 1, 2008 1o June 30, 2008)

(Millions of yen)

North America Europe Asia Others Tota!
[.  Overseas sales 57,208 75,349 31,692 6,072 170,321
Il.  Consolidated sales 254,331
HI, Percentage of overseas sales in 225 296 125 24 67.0

consolidated sales (%)

Notes: 1. Overseas sales refer to the sales of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries in countries or

(5) Notes on significant changes in the amount of sharcholders™ equity

(6) Significant subsequent event

regions other than Japan,

2. Regions are segmented by geographical proximity.

3. Major countries and regions other than Japan are as follows:
{1) North America:
(2) Europe:

(3) Asia:

(4) Others:

USA, Canada

Germany, UK, France, etc.

Singapore, Hong Kong, China, Korea, Australia, etc.

Central and South America, Africa, etc.

The Company, at a meeting of its Board of Directors on May 8§, 2008, resolved to repurchase of its own

shares in order to increase sharcholders’ returns and to implement more flexible capital policies in

accordance with changes of business environment under Article 156 of the Company Law as applied

pursuant to Article 165, Paragraph 3 of the Company Law. The repurchase was implemented as follows:

1. Class of shares: Common stock

2. Total number of shares repurchased: 2,958,000 shares

3. Total cost of repurchase: 9,998 million yen
4. Period of repurchase: From May 9, 2008 to June 20, 2008

5. Method of repurchase: Purchase in the market through a trust bank

In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors, at a meeting held on July 4, 2008, the Company

has issued its 20th unsecured straight bond (limited to eligible institutional investors) and its 21st

unsecured straight bond (limited to eligible institutional investors) on July 16, 2008 for the purpose of

appropriation to business funds. An overview is provided below.

1. 20" unsecured straight bond

Total issuance: 20,000 million yen

Interest Rate: annual 1.58 %
Redemption date: July 16, 2013

2. 21" unsecured straight bond

Total issuance: 25,000 million yen

Interest Rate: annual 2.15 %
Redemption date: July 13, 2018

11



Reference:
Consolidated Financial Statements, etc. for the First Quarter Ended June 30, 2007
(1) (Summary) Consolidated statement of income

(Millions of ven)

ltems For the first quarter ended
June 30, 2007

Net Sales 264418
Cost of sales 140,090
Gross profit 124,328
Sellllng., ger-neral and 93,195
administrative expenses
Operating income 31,133
Non-operating income 2,226
Interest income 911
Others 1,315
Non-operating expenses 5,794
Interest expenses 3,176
Net loss of investment in
affiliated companies carried on 305
the equity method
Foreign currency exchange loss 1,213
Others 1,100
Ordinary income 27,565
Extraordinary gains 2,323
Extraordinary losses -
_Income before provision for 29,888
mmcome taxes
Income taxes 12,144
Minority interests 100
Net income 17,644
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(2) Segment information

a. Segment information by type of business
First quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 (from April 1, 2007 to June 30, 2007)

(Millions of yen)

. : , Information Elimination
lsr;:g :‘i ?yﬁ;ﬁ Scli.e]rfzcs Comﬁum'- Others Total or Consolidated
; Unallocation
cation
Net sales
(1) Sales to outside customers 81,678 78,554 28,839 59,766 15,581 264,418 - 264,418
(2) Intenal sales of transfer among 156 n 58 _ 20 305 (305) _
segments
Total 81,834 78,565 28,897 59,766 15,661 264,723 (305) 264,418
Operating income (or operating loss) 14,880 21.469 919 97 544 37,909 (6,776) 31,133

Notes: 1. Method of segmentation of business

Businesses established based on product line are segmented taking into consideration similarities in

sales markets,

2. The main products for each business

(1) Imaging Systems: Digital cameras, Voice recorders
(2) Medical Systems: Medical endoscopes, Surgical endoscopes, Endo Therapy products, Ultrasound

(3) Life Sciences:

(4) Information & Communication:

(5) Others:

endoscopes
Blood analyzer (clinical chemistry analyzer), Biological microscopes, Industrial

microscopes

Sales of mobile terminals including mobile handsets,

Development and sales of business package software, Mobile resolution,

Mobile content services, Sales of network infrastructure systems, Sales of
semiconductor devices and electric equipment
Industrial endoscopes, Non-destructive testing equipment, Printers, Bar code

data processing equipment, System development, etc.

b. Segment information by region
First quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 (from April 1, 2007 to June 30, 2007)

(Millions of yen)

North Elimination
Japan Amed Europe Asia Totat or Conselidated
erea Unallocation
Net sales
(1) Sales to outside customers 110,690 62,399 68,819 22,510 264,418 - 264,418
(2) Internal sales or transfer among
segments 82,124 2,338 3,866 27,088 115416 {115,416) -
Total 192,814 64,737 72,685 49,598 379,834 {115.416) 264,418
Operating income 26,580 5,180 3,949 3,622 39,331 (8,198) 31,133

Notes: 1. Countries and regions are segmented by geographical proximity.

2. Major countries and regions other than Japan are as follows:
USA, Canada, Mexico, and Brazil

Germany, UK, France, etc.

(1) North America:
(2) Europe:
(3) Asia;

Singapore, Hong Kong, China, Korea, Australia, etc.
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¢. Overseas sales

First quarter of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 (from April 1, 2007 to June 30, 2007)

(Millions of yen)
North America Europe Asia Others Total
I.  Overseas sales 57,562 69,781 33478 6,530 167,351
1. Consolidated sales 264,418
1. Percentage of overseas sales in
consalidated sales (%) 218 26.3 12.7 25 63.3

Notes: 1. Overseas sales refer to the sales of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries in countries or
regions other than Japan.

2. Regions are segmented by geographical proximity.

3. Major countries and regions other than Japan are as follows:

(1) North America: USA, Canada
(2) Europe: Germany, UK, France, etc.
(3) Asia:

Singapore, Hong Kong, China, Korea, Australia, etc.
(4) Others: Central and South America, Africa, etc.

14
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Cautionary Statements with respect to Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements that reflect management's current views, plans and
expectations. These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and
invelve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause Olympus's actual
results, performance, achievements or financial position to be materially different from any future
results, performance, achievements or financial position expressed or implied by these forward-
looking statements.




Consolidated Statements of Income

(Millions of Yen)

For the First Quarter ended  For the First Quarter ended For the vear ended
June 30  Proponion June 30 Proportion  Growth March 31  Proportion
2007 (96) 2008 (%) (%) 2008 (%)

Net Sales . 264,418  100.0% 254,331  100.0% -3.8% 1,128,.875 100.0%
Cast of Sales 140,090 53.0% 129,067 50.7% 619.396 54.9%
Gross Profit 124,328 47.0% 125264 49.3% 0.8% 509,479 45.1%
5.G.A. Expenses 93,195  352% 107,720 424% 396,856 35.1%
Operating Income 31,133 11.8% 17,544 6.9% 43.6% 112,623 10.0%
Other Income 2,226 2,838 8,983
Other Expenses 5794 7,684 28,521
Extraordinary Item 2,323 -842 1,527
Income Before Provision for Income Taxes 29,888 11.3% 11,856 4.7% -60.3% 94,612 8.4%
Provision for Income Taxes 12,144 5579 36,760
Minority Interests 100 =244 17
Net Income 17,644 6.7% 6,521 2.6% -63.0% 57,969 5.1%

(Note)
Above consolidated statements of income are based on Japanese GAAF. Therefore, this information has some differences as to description
from financial statements in annual report bused on U.S. GAAP.



Sales and Opaerating Income by Business Segment

(Millions of Yen)

For the first quarter ended For the first quarter ended For the fiscal year ended

June 30 Composition June 30 Composition  Growth March 31 Composition

2007 Ratio (%) 10038 Ratio (%) (%) 2008 Ratio (%)
Imaging Net Sales Domestic 10,016 8,891 -11.2% 38410
Qverseas © o IL662 63,225 -11.8% 182,179
Total 81,678 30.9% 72,116 28.4% -11.7% 320,589 28.4%
Operating Income 14,880  18.2% 9,766 13.5% 33,086 10.3%
Medical Net Sales Domestic 16,372 16,424 0.3% 75,257
Overseas 62,182 13730 18.6% 278012
Total 78,554  29.7% 90,154  35.5% 14.8% 353269 31.3%
Operating Income 21,469  27.3% 17,844 198% 98,420  27.9%
Life Science Net Sales Domestic 5,782 4,659 -19.4% 19,590
Overseds 23057 23,873 3.5% 101,856
Total 28,839 10.9% 18,532 11.2% -1.1% 131 446 11.6%
Operating Income 919 32% 265 -0.9% 6990  5.3%
Information Net Sales Domestic 56,795 45,312 220.2% 241,062
and Qverseas 2971 2,085 29.8% 13.250
Communication Total 59,766 22.6% 47417 18.6% 20.7% 254,312 22.5%
Operating Income 97 02% 99 0.2% 3,001 1.2%
Oth.ers Net Sales Domestic 8,102 8,704 7.4% 35,908
Overseas 1479 1408 -0.9% 33351
Total 15,581 5.9% 16,112 6.3% 34% 69,259 6.2%
Opetating Income 544 3.5% 3,308 205% 7 13%
Elimination or corperate Operating Income -6,776 . -6,592 - -29,791 .
Total Net Sales Domestic 97,067 84,010 -13.5% 420,227
Overseas 167,351 170321 1.8% 208648
Total - 164,418 100.0% 254,331 100.0% -1.8% 1,128,875  100.0%
Operating Income 31,133 118% 17544 6.9% 112,623 10.0%

(Note}
(1) Percentage in Operating Income's section iy Operating Income Ratio 1o Net Sales.
(2) Each segment contains following products.

Imaging Svstems Business Digital cameras, Voice Recorders

Medical Systems Business Medical endoscopes, Surgical endoscopes, EndoTherapy devices, Ultrasound endoscopes
Life Science Business Diagnostic systems, Biological microscopes, Industrial microscopes

Information and Communication Business Mobile terminals, Mobile solutions, Mobile content services, Network infrastructure systems,

Development and sales of business package software. Semiconductor devices, Electric equipment
Others Industrial endoscopes, Non-destructive testing (NDT) equipment, Frinters, Bar code data processing
equipment, Software development, etc.



Consolidated Balance Sheets

{Millions of Yen)

June 30 June 30 March 31 Variance
2007 2008 2008

Current Assets 579,363 561,290 543,305 17,985
Cash and time deposits 178,830 171,336 158,281 13,055

Notes and accounts receivable . 179,219 186,185 193,555 -7,370
Marketable securities 43,283 200 3 197
Inventories 103,964 120,604 110,824 9,780
Deferred income taxes 33,388 38,622 36,719 1,903

Other current assets 44,336 48,403 47,032 1,371
Allowance for doubtful accounts -3,657 . 4,060 -3,109 -951

Fixed Assets ) 538,487 836,953 815,044 21,909
Tangible Assets 145,957 164,960 150,036 14,924
Buildings and structures 65,346 62,494 61,305 1,189
Machinery and equipment 17,891 18,149 18350 -201

Tools, dies, furniture and fixtures 39,650 49,486 42,692 6,794

Land 22,092 21,358 21,291 67

Leased asset - 4,013 - 4,013
Construction in progress 978 9,460 6,398 3,062
Intangible Assets 102,708 403,562 404,030 468
Goodwill 81,565 305,695 299,800 5,895

Others 21,143 97,867 104,230 -6,363
Investments and Other Assets 289,822 268,431 260,978 7,453
Investment secunities 226,387 198.826 193,843 4,983
Deferred income taxes 9,856 12,410 9,665 2,745

Others 54,123 57.611 57,885 -274
Allowance for doubtful accounts -544 416 415 -1

Total Assets 1,117,850 1,398,243 1,358,349 39 864
(Millions of Yen)

June 30 June 30 March 31 Variance

2007 2008 2007

Current Liabilities 414,512 694,167 662,454 31,713
Notes and accounts payable 91,953 71,628 83,602 -11,974
Short-term borrowings 155,336 374,516 338,787 35,729

Current maturities of bonds 98 35,218 35,201 17
Accrued expenses 80,395 85,937 82,467 3470

Income taxes payable 11,338 10,875 14,121 -3,246
Warranty reserve 9,107 10,848 10,141 707

Other current liabilities 66,285 105,145 98,135 7,010
Long-term Liabilities 336,494 337,128 328,019 5,109
Long-term bonds, less current maturities 140,468 105,497 105,397 100
Long-term borrowings, less current maturities 172,122 175,478 177,371 -1,893
Severance and retirement allowance 9,795 12,122 10,317 1,805

Other non-current liabilities 14,109 44,031 34,934 9,097

Net Assets 366,844 366,948 367.876 -928
Owners' Equity 321,299 348,764 356,564 7,800
Common stock 48,332 48,332 48,332 —

Capital surplus 73,049 73,049 73,049 -
Retained earnings 202,278 240,042 237,817 2,225
Treasury stock, at cost -2,360 -12,659 -2,634 -10,025
Valuation and Translation Adjustments 33,093 6,733 =213 6,946
Net unrealized holding gains on securitics 17,298 9,966 6,320 3,646
Deferred losses on hedges -565 -1,032 34 -1,066

Foreign currency translation adjustments 16,360 -2,201 -6,567 4,366
Minority Interests 12,452 11,451 11,525 -74
Liabilities and Net Assets 1,117,850 1,398,243 1,358,349 39.894

(Note)
Above consolidated balance sheets are based on Japanese GAAP. Therefore, this information has some differences
as to description from financial statements in annual report based on U.S. GAAP.



We have revised our forecast as stated below:

Forecast for the Half Year Ending September 30, 2008

Net Sales
Operating Income

Net Income

Forecast for the Fiscal Year Ending March 31, 2009

Net Sales
Operating Income

Net Income

<Averaged Foreign Exchange Rate>

Yen / US Dollar
Yen / Euro

Previous Forecast
as of May 8, 2008

555,000
37,000

16,000

Previous Forecast
as of May 8§, 2008

1,150,000

95,000

43,000
Previous Forecast
as of May 8, 2008

100
155

Ll

Forecast For the Fiscal Year Ending March 31, 2008

(Millions of Yen)
Current Forecast
as of Aug.1, 2008

529,000

37,000

16,000

Current Forecast
as of Aug.1, 2008

1,108,000
95,000
43,000
Current Forecast
as of Aug.1, 2008

101
157
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Olympus Imaging and Panasonic announce
new Micro Four Thirds System standard

Olympus Imaging Corporation (Olympus Imaging) and Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.
(Panasonic) today announced joint development of technologies and devices for the "Micro Four
Thirds System standard,” a new standard that extends the benefits of the Four Thirds System
standard for interchangeable lens type digital camera systems by enabling dramatic reductions in
size and weight. Under the terms of an agreement between the two companies, they will work
jointly toward commercial production of significantly lighter and more compact interchangeable
lens type digital camera systems.

The global market for interchangeable lens type digital SLR cameras is growing steadily, but
still only accounts for a 7% share of the total digital camera market. Considering the much larger
share held by interchangeable lens type SLR camera systems when film was the dominant
imaging medium, it seems that there is still ample room for sales growth in the category. But
compact digital cameras continue to offer an expanding range of features and performance, and
market surveys indicate that customers choose compact models because they find digital SLR
cameras to be "big, heavy, and difficult to operate.”

Recognizing this market trend, Olympus Imaging and Panasonic have introduced products
based on the Four Thirds System standard, and have led the industry in bringing features such
as Live View and contrast-detection autofocusing systems to interchangeable lens type digital
camera systems.

Now, Olympus Imaging and Panasonic are expanding the potential of the Four Thirds System
standard even further, enabling the development of radically more compact and lightweight
interchangeable fens type digital camera systems based on the Micro Four Thirds System
standard. Together with the existing range of Four Thirds System products, the new range of
Micro Four Thirds System products will enable customers to enjoy true interchangeable lens type
digital camera system performance.

When compared to the Four Thirds System standard, the primary distinguishing
characteristics of the Micro Four Thirds System standard are:

1) Approximately 50% shorter flangeback distance (mount-to-sensor distance)
2) 6mm smaller lens mount outer diameter

3) Electrical contacts in mount increased from 9 to 11

* Image sensor diagonal dimensions are the same for both Four Thirds System and Micro Four Thirds System
standards.




The Micro Four Thirds System enables users to enjoy the high image quality benefits of the
Four Thirds System's 4/3-type image sensor in a much more compact camera body, and also
take advantage of significantly more compact lenses, particularly in the wide-angle and high-
power zoom range. The Four Thirds System offers compact, lightweight performancse, and the
new Micro Four Thirds System will take this even further by making it possible to develop ultra-
compact interchangeable lens type digital camera systems unlike anything seen before. The new
Micro Four Thirds System also incorporates a greater number of lens-mount electrical contacts,
enabling support for new features and increased system functionality in the future.

in addition, users will be able to mount their existing Four Thirds System lenses on Micro Four
Thirds System bodies via an adapter.

Moving forward, Olympus Imaging and Panasonic will jointly develop relevant technologies
and devices for both Four Thirds System and Micro Four Thirds System standards, and will
develop and introduce standards-compliant products in accordance with their respective business
strategies.

While continuing to develop Four Thirds System interchangeable lens type digital camera
system products, Olympus Imaging will also develop a range of Micro Four Thirds System lenses
and accessories, and Micro Four Thirds System camera bodies that are even smaller and
slimmer than the light, compact, and widely acclaimed Olympus E-410 and £420.

While continuing to develop Four Thirds System interchangeable lens type digital camera
system products, Panasonic will also develop a new generation of compact, lightweight,
interchangeable lens type digital camera system products, including ultra-portable camera bodies,
interchangeable lenses, and related system accessories.

About the Four Thirds System Standard

The Four Thirds System standard defines design and development standards for
interchangeable lens type digital camera systems that fully realize the performance potential of
digital technology. Four Thirds System cameras utilize a 4/3-type image sensor that delivers the
high image quality expected of interchangeable lens type digital camera systems in a form factor
that assures outstanding mobility. The Four Thirds System standard is an open standard that
enables bodies and lenses produced by participating manufacturers to exchange information and
be used interchangeably with one another.




Media contact:

Olympus Imaging Corp.
Marketing Support Department
Phone: +81-3-3340-4687 Fax: +81-3-6901-3608
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International PR
Phone; +81-3-3578-1237  Fax: +81-3-3436-6766

Panasonic News Bureau
Phone: +81-3-3542-6205 Fax: +81-3-3542-9018
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Olympus Wins EISA Awards for
the E-3 Interchangeable-Lens-Type Digital SLR Camera
and the py1030SW Compact Digital Camera

Olympus Imaging Corporation (President: Masaharu Okubo) is pleased to announce that it has
received two 2008-2009 EISA Awards. The E-3 Interchangeable-Lens-Type Digital SLR Camera
was the top selection of the “European Advanced Camera” category, and the y 1030SW
Compact Digital Camera won in the in the “European Ultra Compact Camera” category.

The European Imaging & Sound Association (EISA) is an organization representing 50 leading
camera, imaging and audio magazines in 20 European countries. Each year it selects
outstanding products and technologies from a wide spectrum of audiovisual product categories.

8 E-3Interchangeable-Lens-Type Digital SLR Camera
Winner of the European Advanced Camera 2008-2009 award

The E-3 is the flagship of Olympus’s line of interchangeable-lens digital SLR cameras. It features

the world's fastest AF* with 11-Points-Full Twin Cross Sensor, an Image Stabilization mechanism

with a compensation range up to 5 EV steps**, excellent picture quality thanks to an advanced

10.1-megapixel High-Speed Live MOS Sensor and the “TruePic III” image processing engine,

and high reliability with a splash- and dust-proof magnesium alloy body.

EISA cited the following reasons for naming the E-3 as the winner of this award:

“The Olympus E-3 is a comfortable (but robust) camera that offers a high level of protection

against water and dust. It provides very effective image stabilization, dust removal and a Live

View function on the articulated LCD screen, but most importantly, its image quality and ease of

use are very impressive. The Olympus E-3 is perfectly suited for professional demands.”(EISA)

* Among digital SLR cameras available as of October 17, 2007 When the ZUIKO DIGITAL ED 12-60mm f2.8-4.0 SWD lens is
:g:gi;::s the £-3 at a focal length of 80mm(120mm: 35mm equivalent).Based on Olympus's in-house measurement

** Based on Olympus in-house testing.

CLYMPUS

AWARD:|Product

..+ |2008-2009
ADVANCED CAMERA
Olympus E-3
Interchangeable Lens Type The “European Advanced Camera
Digital SLR Camera 2008-2009” award

“E_3I,




m p 1030SW Compact Digital Camera
Winner of the European Ultra Compact Camera 2008-2009 award

The p 1030SW is a compact digital camera that features both a stylish design and robust, shock-
resistant construction that makes it tough enough to withstand being dropped from a height of 2.0
meters*®, waterproof** to a depth of 10 meters, and highly resistant to dust™*. With its easy
operation, outstanding performance, and rugged design, the u1030SW makes it easy to take
pictures anywhere, indoors or out, and even in places where taking pictures was previously
difficult.

The EISA judging panel's comments were as follows.

“The Olympus u 1030SW is one of the most interesting compact cameras of recent years. The
camera combines good photographic performance with physical endurance in a variety of
everyday situations. It is water resistant as well as shock or drop resistant. The y 1030SW'’s most
impressive features include its excellent metering, the accurate colour rendering and the fact that
it is the first camera™** to incorporate an intemal zoom with a focal length starting at 28mm
(equivalent). The camera performs well even in low light, and in high-contrast conditions where
other compact models usually overexpose the sky.”(EISA)

* Based on Olympus in-house testing.

" waterproof equivalent to IEC Standard Publication and 6059 IPX8({Based on Olympus in-house testing).

** dustproof capability equivalent to IEC Standard Publication 6059 IP6X(Based on Olympus in-house testing).
** Among compact digital cameras equipped with folding-type zoom lens unit.

EISA |Best
AWARD | Product
T -* | 2008-2009

ULTRA COMPACT CAMERA
Olympus g 10305wW

p 1030SW The “European Ultra Compact Camera
2008-2009"

For Further Information, please contact
Olympus Imaging Corp. SLR Business Div. Marketing Support Dept.
Shinjuku Monolith-Bld., 2-3-1 Nishi-Shinjuku, Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo 163-0914
Tel:+81-3-3340-4687 Fax:+81-3-6901-3608
Olympus Home Page: http://www.olympus.co.jp/en/
Olympus Imaging Home Page: htip://asia.olympus-global.com/imsg/




OI-YMP‘jS® Annual Report 2008

Your Vision, Our Future

Exhibit A-5




Olympus’ Origins:
The Creation of Value
Expected by Society

CONTENTS:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 4

A MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT 5

SPECIAL FEATURE 8

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 12

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 29

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 22

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 23

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, CORPORATE AUDITORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 28
FINANCIAL SECTION 29

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY REPORT 61

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS BASES 7 CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES 63
INVESTOR INFORMATION 65



Olympus’
Mission

Based on its “Social IN” management philosophy of reglizing
people’s heatthier ond more fulfilling lives, Olympus conducts
diverse business activities that mainly focus on its core com-
petencies in Opto-Digital Technology. To give specific examples,
the Medical Systems Business addresses the early detection
and treatment of cancer and has realized advanced minimally
invasive procedures, while the Life Science Business also
futfills o vital mission for society, ranging from the clarifi

of life processes to next-generation heolth care. Cons‘fdé ]
R&D activity as its value development, Qlympus will |

its corporate brand by nurturing new value to meet sotiefy
expectations.

OLYMPUS 2008 1



An issue that is key to the enhoncement of
productivity at Olympus is increasing the e
Company's market share of digital single-lens C onve y e-d b y | m a ge S
reflex (SLR) cameras. In the fiscal yeor ended . :
March 31, 2008, Olympus launched three new
models, including its flogship E-3, which was
expressly designed for the professional, the
E-410 and the E-510. With the world’s fastest
autofocus function and built-in image stabi-
lization systems, these products display their
superiority in the market. These achievernents
have set @ milestone in the history of Olympus
SLR cameras.

Olympus alse commemorated the third year
of its “Global Warming Witness - Mitsuoki
Iwago Special” web site* that makes people
aware of the critical state of global warming.
For his third expedition in 2008, photogropher
Mitsuaki Iwago took pictures in Shiretoko,

o UNESCO World Heritage Site in Hokkaido,
Jopan. Using an E-3, Iwogo took high-quality
pictures of a well-batanced ecosystem to
convey the recol situation on Earth. Drastic
changes in the global environment could have
serious consequences for our livelihoods

and for all life on the planet. Keenly focusing
on environmental preservation, Olympus is
working to fulfill its social respansibility as o
globat company.

* http:/www.olympus.co.jp/en/gww/

Photogroph token by
Mitsuaki lwego using an
Qlympus E-3 camera fit-
ted with a Zuiko Digital ED
300mm, F2.8. . - - -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.5. dollars

2008 2007 2006 2008
Net SalES ..o e e e ¥1,128,875  ¥1,061,786 ¥978,127 $10,751,190
Operating iNCOME ... e e 112,623 98,729 62,523 1,072,600
NELINCOME oooicrcricrrrerrcrrerrs e s s s see s e s e s n s e s enean 57,969 47,799 28,564 552,086
TOtAL ASSBES .iiriiiiiirieririnr e irrirra s s rarrrr s ee e reaa e e e an e ae i nan 1,358,349 1,091,800 976,132 12,936,657
s [T O ORPSPPTRPRRRRR 356,351 334,210 290,656 3,393,819
Equity ratio (96} ....occeveiie i e 26.2 30.6 29.8 —
Capital expenditures .......ccoviiiiivsii e e 50,070 44,696 44,444 476,857
R&D expenditures .....ccoooieiieererre e evseiesearassiasaans 65,928 55,531 45,935 627,886
Operating income ratio (%) .....ccccoeiniiennin s 10.0 9.3 6.4 —
Earnings pershare (Yen) ... 214.48 176.79 105.99 2.04
Cash dividends per share (YEN) .......c.ccoeivmeuriinimnensieerrcnnanee s 40.00 35.00 22.00 0.38
Return on equity (%) cooceeiieiiee et er s s 16.8 15.3 10.7 -
Net income to total assets (%) .cvcoorrcirciiriisircirr e 4.7 4.6 3.1 —
Note: The U.S. dollar amounts have been translated from yen, for the convenience of the reader, at the rate of ¥105.00=U5$1.00
Net Sales Operating Income / Operating Income Ratio  Net Income / Net Income Ratio
{Millions of yan) {Millicns of yan / %) [Millions of yen / %)
1,128,875 112,623 57,969
1,061,786
678,127 98728 47,799
52,523
' 10.0 28,564 51
9.3 ]
/a—"“"’" /&bs—"’/n
5;‘/ zdg/
08 07 08 06 07 08 06 07 08
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A MESSAGE
FROM THE PRESIDENT

> For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, consoli-

; dated net sales for the Olympus Group increased

i for the 14th consecutive year and marked

. record-high net sales. Of particular note, Olympus
achieved, ahead of schedule, its ¥100-billion oper-
| ating income target, which under the Corporate
Strategic Plan (2006 CSP) had originally been set

i for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009. This was
owing to the following key measures, all of which
have been undertaken during my time as president:
{1) departure from an endoscope-dependent

i business operation; (2) establishment of a sustain-
able earnings structure in the Imaging Systems
Business; (3) creation of new businesses; (4) reform
. of production structure; and (5) enhancement of
corporate brand value. The efforts that have gone

i into these measures are steadily bearing fruit.

Overview of Fiscal 2008

> Otympus recorded consclidated net sales of

: ¥1,128.9 billion in fiscal 2008, up 6.3% compared
. with the previous fiscal year. This was attribut-
able to robust sales in the Imaging Systems and

: Medical Systems Businesses. In the Imaging
Systems Business, Olympus released three new

. digital single-lens reflex (SLR) cameras, including
: its flagship E-3 model.

In the Medical Systems Business, sales of

endoscope systems that enable observation using
specific light spectra, surgical endoscopes and

. endotherapy devices were strong both in Japan and
! overseas, contributing to the overall sales increase.

On the earnings front, revenue and business effi-

ciency increased in the Imaging Systems Business
| through cost reduction activities. In addition, brisk

sales of mainstay Medical Systems Business prod-

© ucts in Europe and North America contributed to
i Olympus setting record highs in operating income
i and netincome.

In light of these results, Clympus raised its

annual dividend for the third consecutive year. In
connection with this, Olympus acquired treasury
stock of approximately ¥10 billion to return profits
i to its shareholders.

Imaging Systems Business:
. Reinforced Earnings Capabilities

The Imaging Systems Business recorded increases
© in both revenue and earnings for the second
consecutive year. These increases stemmed from

. the strenuous efforts made to reinforce the digital
. camera and optical component businesses and to
streamline business operations, based on profit-

. oriented structural reforms that date back to

. fiscal 2006.

OLYMPUS 2008
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—— .- _TIsuyoshi Kikukawa, President § ............ T .

%Under |ts Corporate Strategic Plan, Olympus has contmuously
raised its management quality and awareness to acquire
appropriate capabilities as a value creation company. To that
end, Olympus marked record- hlgh net sales and profitin the
........... f. iscal. year ended March.31,.2008...
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year, reflecting the successful boost to Olympus'’

{ market presence achieved by releasing three new
........................ productsrangmgfromentry—leveltoprofessronal

i models. We also launched unique digital compact

cameras with excellent waterproof and shock

| resistance to gain a competitive edge. Together

with these developments, our structural reforms,

. including the establishment of product and

i operational platforms by focusing on thorough

inventory control and the use of common parts

and components from the development phase,

achieved favorable results.

fn the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008,

. Olympus anticipates decreased revenue and earn-
i ings due to the impact of the strong yen. However,
: we expect digital camera and optical component
sales volume to increase. In the medium term, we

: aim to enhance overseas sales of digital compact
cameras and increase our share of the digital SLR
i camera market. Simultaneously, we will vigorously
push ahead with the profit-oriented reforms to our
| management structure.

............................

Medical Systems Business: ...

. Expanding to Offer Full Coverage,
i from Early Detection to Treatment

>

In fiscal 2008, the Medical Systems Business

i recorded increased revenue and earnings due to

robust sales—both in Japan and overseas—of
endoscope systems that enable observation using
specific light spectra, surgical endoscopes and

. endotherapy devices. Our mission in this business
is to overcome social issues surrounding the

. early detection and treatment of cancer as well
as minimally invasive diagnosis and procedures.

the market as a leading endoscope company, we
. will contribute to the development of medical
technology by offering a comprehensive range of
endoscopes, covering examination, diagnosis and
| treatment.

and overseas sales of high-resolution HDTV endo-

: scope systems remained firm. This was due to the

. product’s special function that enables observation
. to be conducted using specific light spectra; during
endoscopic ohservation, Narrow Band Imaging
(NBI) enhances visualization of the capillary
network morphology.

Furthermore, Olympus acquired Gyrus Group

i PLC, a UK-based medical equipment company, in
February 2008 to accelerate the reinforcement

. of its surgical products business. By integrating
Gyrus' strengths in minimally invasive procedures,
Olympus will enhance its business in the uro-

! logical, gynecological and otological fields. For
Olympus, Gyrus' extensive business network in

: North America was particularly attractive. Deriving
synergistic effects from its business integration
with Gyrus, Olympus will seek to grow as a compre-
hensive endoscope device manufacturer.

Life Science Business:
i Nurturing Businesses for the Next Generation

> The Life Scignce Business experienced an increase,
in revenue due to strong overseas sales in the

. micro-imaging (microscopes) and diagnostic sys-
tem fields. However, earnings declined as a result

: of forward-looking investment in new technological
development. Taking this situation seriously, we
will endeavor to expand business to see a return on
. our investment.

In recent years, translational research, which

can serve as a bridge between basic research and
clinical care, has become increasingly important in
- the Life Science Business. Based on the findings
of such research, Olympus is aiming to bring to

i personalized and regenerative medicines.

OLYMPUS 2008
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cancer metastasis mechanism, drug efficacy

and metabolism are making progress, following
the realization of intraceilulazr gene observation.
Thanks to the laser microscope, which has enabled

In the micro-imaging field; studies into the
: observation of the innermosf recesses of nerve
|

made in studies in the field o_f brain neuroscience.
This study research can oper.ii the door to next-
generation medicine and business opportunities
there. There is high demand for industrial micro-
scopes that serve as measurement devices for
semiconductors and other ie}ading-edge materials.
Consequently, we are making ongaing efforts to
expand our market by leveraging our high-precision
optical technologies.

In the diagnostic systems field, Olympus has
made a full-scale entry into fhe immunoassay

chemistry examination busin;ess. To that end, we
will fully utilize our genetic and protein analysis
technologies to develop a gefietic diagnostic
systems business that will make a valuable con-
tribution to personalized medicine. Furthermore,
the biomedical materials buéiness conducted by
Olympus Terumo Biomaterials Corp., a joint venture
established with Terumo Corboration is expected
to become a mainstay busmess in the regenerative
...medicine area.

ITX Corporation: :
Catalyst for New Business Creatlon

> Since fiscal 2008, consoiidatfed subsidiary ITX
Corporation has engaged in étructural reforms
to strengthen its earnings capabilities. One of
the key measures taken und{ar these reforms has
been to concentrate investment in its three core
businesses—mobile handse‘ft sales, automotive
aftermarket and medical sysjtems, as well as their
related markets—to enhance profitability.

B8 OLYMPUS 2008

By doing so, ITX Corporation has consolidated its
core business bases and renewed its investnﬁent
portfolio based on a review of its investment
securities ownership policy. ITX Corporation pjlans
to optimize its portfolio in fiscal 2009. By making
steady contributions to consolidated business
earnings, ITX Corporation will serve as a catalyst in

the creation of new Olympus Group busmessgas

Aiming for Sustainable Growth

> In fiscal 2009, Olympus forecasts net sales of
¥1,150 billion and record-high sales for the 15th
consecutive year. On the earnings front, however,
we anticipate operating income of ¥95 bii[ionf due
to the impact of the strong yen. Establishing solid
profitability that will be immune to such factérs as

sitate streamlining the entire busmess process
and developing new businesses,

Olympus will make every effort to mammize its
corporate value and meet the expectations o_f all
of its stakeholders, including shareholders. We
sincerely ask for continued understanding arid
support. :

July 2008

i S

Tsuyoshi Kikukawa
President



SPECIAL FEATURE

Toward Medical Systems Business Growth:
Surgical Business Enhanced

by Acquisition of Gyrus

In November 2007, Olympus and Gyrus agreed on a
1. friendly acquisition. The two companies completed the
procedures necessary to include Gyrus in Qlympus’ scope

Olympus acquired the UK-based medical of consolidation in February 2008.

equipment company Gyrus Group PLC in E1=¥215
February 2008. Please tell us more about Gyrus.
: > With approximately 1,400 employees spread over 13 2
worldwide locations, Gyrus was o
a UK-based medical equipment \
company listed on the London GYRUS ACMI
- bain Please tell us the background

Stock Exchange. Its consolidated
net sales were £220 million (approximately ¥47 billion*)
as of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. Since

its inauguration in 1989, Gyrus has been supplying

to the acquisition.

> In accordance with the 2006 Corporate Strategic Plan,

electrosurgical knives for urological and gynecological which was established and released as the Olympus

use, while expanding its business scale by acquiring
various companies in the field of minimally invasive

Group's medium-term management strategy, we have
been conducting a variety of measures with the aim of

medical procedure. Among them, the 2005 acquisition
of American Cystoscope Makers, Inc. (ACMI), a well-
established U.S. endoscope company, granted Gyrus the
imaging technology to further expand its business. With
its Gyrus ACMI brand maintaining a dominant position
in the North American market, Gyrus also possesses a
number of products and technologies that are attractive
to Olympus.

Haruhito Morishima,
President, Olympus Medical Systems Corp.
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reinforcing and expanding our businesses in the surgical
and minimally invasive procedure fields. The acquisi-
tion of Gyrus formed part of this basic strategy in the
Medical Systems Business.

Minimally invasive procedure is a method for treat-
ing affected areas by means of endoscopes without
opening the abdominal cavity. In recent years, it has
been expected that minimally invasive procedure would
thereby contribute to easing the physical stress placed
on patients, shorten the lengths of hospital stays and
improve the efficiency of medical care services. Today,
endoscopic surgery is performed for various diseases in
the wider clinical area, encompassing general surgery,
gynecology and urology. In global terms, Olympus cur-
rently boasts a 70% share of the gastroenterological
endoscopes market. However, we must endeavor to
develop the surgical business to contribute more to
minimally invasive procedure and to nurture our Medical
Systems Business.

After repeatedly reviewing our strategy, we came to
the conclusion that Gyrus would be an ideal partner in
reinforcing Olympus’ surgical business. This was based
on the synergies expected for both Olympus and Gyrus
in terms of products and regional strategies in the surgi-
cal field.

Specifically, what kinds of synergies can be
expected on the products strategy front?

We can expect synergy from the integration of techno-
logical skills. Endoscopic surgery requires high diagnos-
tic and therapeutic capabilities. In order to meet these
needs, primarily for rigid endoscopes Olympus can offer
its popular, high-quality imaging devices that utilize

190 OLYMPUS 2008

high-definition video technology. On the other hand,
Gyrus excels thanks to its proprietary energy-related
processing devices. For example, Gyrus disposable
electrosurgical knives are the most appropriate product
for laparoscopic surgery, a typical minimally invasive
treatment using energy technologtes, which are indis-
pensabtle in this field. Therefore, Olympus succeeded in
gaining access to both imaging and energy technologies
through its acquisition of Gyrus. By integrating both
companies’ strengths, we believe that we will be able to
provide higher diagnostic and therapeutic capabilities to
medical institutions and patients.

What changes will be made to the sales structure
after the business integration?

On the regional strategy front, we can expect syner-
gies in product lineups and marketing capabilities.
Particularly in the urological and gynecological fields
Gyrus enjoys outstanding brand power in North America,
which accounts for approximately 80% of its sales. The
acquisition will boost our marketing capabilities in the
surgical field, add Gyrus' long-established relationships
with doctors and hospitals to our assets, and reinforce
the basis of our surgical business in North Arerica.
After the acquisition, Olympus will make effective use
of Gyrus' skillful sales personnel to commence a new
marketing system in the surgical field. In specific terms,
we have succeeded in quadrupling the number of sales
representatives in North America.

Oy o
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Furthermore, we are planning to implement the
“cross-sell” method in the new structure. With the aim
of fully capitalizing on the synergies to be gained from
business integration, Olympus will sell Gyrus electro-
surgical knives to Asian and European customers, and
Gyrus will sell Olympus flexible and rigid surgical scopes
to North American customers. Through this cross-selling
agreement, we expect to expand sales opportunities.
Given its strong brand power, Olympus will maintain the
Gyrus ACMI brand to promote Gyrus' inclusion in the
Olympus Group.

Through this business integration, we also expect to
enhance efficiencies in the administration, manufactur-
ing, distribution and purchasing sectors.

Finally, what makes you so sure
that integrating Gyrus will be a success?

Olympus conducts business operations in a variety of
areas in the surgical field. This acquisition has expanded
our market share, particularly in the areas of urology
and ear, nose and throat (ENT). Based on an in-house
analysis, after the business integration we will have

an over 50% share—the world’s largest—of the total
market for urological endoscopes, covering Japan, the
United States and Europe. Qur ENT endoscopes will
also boast 30% of market share on a global scale. These
achievements will enable us to compete with other
major players in the industry. We spent approximately

¥210 billion for this acquisition, which to us was not an
unreasonable price. We will face a number of hurdles

in fully capitalizing on the synergistic effects of this
acquisition. However, we are hopeful that we will be able
to overcome those hurdles and enhance sales and busi-
ness efficiencies to get a full return on our investment.
The acquisition of Gyrus will bring significant growth
potential for Olympus in the surgical field.

At the moment, we are estimating a synergistic
effect of approximately ¥350 billion sales over the 10
years from fiscal 2009 to 2018. On the other hand, we
expect to gain an estimated ¥38 billion from business
streamlining over the same period. By reinforcing the
surgical business on a global scale, we are confident
that we have secured a foothold for future growth in the
Medical Systems Business to add to our strong perfor-
mance in gastroenterotogical endoscopes. The medical
equipment industry is one of constant development
and improvements in treatment. Given this, Olympus
will take maximum advantage from this acquisition
to realize better medical care—which being a leading
medical equipment company we see as our mission—by
providing treatment technologies that are more patient-
friendly, reliable and efficient.

Haruhito Morishima
President, Olympus Medical Systems Corp.
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REVIEW OF
OPERATIONS 2

S 3

Equipped with an embedded DIGITAL CAMERA
image stabiization function pul1020 e

type SLR camera achieves
even greater effects when
combined with a ZUIKC

Image stabilization is just one
of the functions featured in
this compact digital camera
with high-quality 7x-zoom
capabilities.

DIGITAL lens.

1.

DIGITAL CAMERA
E-3

An interchangeable-le:ns-
type SLR camera realizing
high resolutien, mobility
and reliability with an:
11-point-full twin cross AF

4,

DIGITAL CAMERA
1 1030sw

A compact camera t:hat
really broadens possibilities

speed seqguential shooting
capability.

features incorporated

into its design: waterproof
to a depth of 10 meters,
shock resistant with a high
capacity. :

IMAGING SYSTEMS BUSINESS

Sales
(Millians of yen) 320,589
v 204,303 38,410
LINEAR PCM Domestic 29,504
282,179
RECORDER sales 264,799
A voice recorder that Cverseas

faithfully captures the sales

original sounds of musical
instruments or birdsong.

o7 a8
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:ﬂﬁggi@é Systems
Business
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) The Imaginé Systems Business is centered on digital

.......................................................................................................................................

cameras, optical components and voice recorders.

In fiscal 2008, ended March 31, 2008, sales in this
business rose 8.9% year on year to ¥320,589 million
(US$3,053 nﬁillion) and operating income jumped 21.6%
to ¥33,086 rﬁillion {US$315 million).

During thie fiscal year under review, Olympus made
steady progfress with its profit-oriented structural
reforms. Spl.ijrred by this, Olympus launched a stream of
new strategic products onto the digital camera market
and upgradéd optical components with the aim of
improving eafarnings ratio. As a result, Olympus recorded
increases inf both revenue and earnings for the second

Consecutive: P et

DIGITAL CAMERAS
AND OPTICAL COMPONENTS

Sales of digital cameras and optical components grew
© 9.0 % year on year to ¥293,566 million (US$2,796 mil-
lion). During?fiscal 2008, increased investment in the

: Olympus to release the small, lightweight E-410 and
E-510 with s‘;uch unique functions as Live View to attract
a wider ranée of users, as well as the E-3 for the profes-
sional and sfemiprofessional. This resulted in substantial
sales growtt}. In its compact digital camera lineups,

¢ Olympus launched the small, stim and stylish y [mju:]

: 1020 (Stylus1020 in the Americas) with 7x-zoom capa-

: bilities. Together with this, Olympus enjoyed robust sales
| of the CAMEDIA SP series, which realizes 18x optical,
high—magnification shots. As a result, Olympus recorded
increased révenue. Sales of optical components grew
due to increiased sales of lens barrel units.

N

VOICE RECORDERS
AND FILM CAMERAS

Voice recorders and film cameras, sales of which grew
both within and outside Japan, climbed 7.8% year on
year to ¥27,023 million (US$257 million). In Japan, sales
of the "separate design” Voice-Trek V-13 were particu-

that enables users to connect the recorder directly to
personal computers with larger memory capacities. In
addition, Olympus entered the market for Linear PCM
Recorders, which are gaining prominence in the industry
thanks to the adoption of the high sound quality uncom-
pressed digital recording format,

OUTLOOK FOR
FISCAL 2009

In.order to increase its market share and establisha. . . .

solid market position in digital SLR cameras, Otympus
will continue to strengthen its competitiveness.
Otympus will boost its brand power by offering high-
value-added products specifically designed for digital
applications that leverage its design superiority to bring
more compact, lighter digital SLR cameras to a wider
range of users. In its compact digital camera lineups,
Olympus will focus on inventory management in its
ongoing efforts to streamline its business operations

and thereby secure stable earnings. Furthermore, in the
optical component field, Olympus will make effective
use of its well-established optical lens technologies to
increase earnings. To that end, Olympus is projecting
sales of ¥320 billion and operating income of ¥24 billion
for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2009.

OLYMPUS 2008 13



2.

VIDEOSCOPE

- GIF
1 | § XP260N 4

ENDOSCOPE SYSTEM:
gastrointestinal videoscope
An endotherapy produzct

............. EV'SLUCERA
can be inserted through
used for Endoscopic :

With a distal end measuring NEW DISPOSABLE

..................................................................................... ELECTROSURGICALIKNIFE - oo

slim, four-angle, upper :
KD-611L

SPECTRUM ither th Ltractor th

In addition to normal | mouth.
light observation with :

high-resolution HDTV
imaging, the EVIS LUCERA
SPECTRUM is equipped :
with Narrow Band imaging
{NBI}, Auto Fluorescence
Imaging {AFH and Infra Red

Submucosal Dissectian
(ESD*). :

*An endoscopic procedure for
dissection or exfoliation of
the tissue in the submucosa
for treatment of lesior's

Imaging {IRI}, three imaging
functions using specific:

light spectra. Capillaries on

the mucosal surface and

intricate patterns on mucous
membranes can be more

“gledrly’ abserved by dsing T

NBI. :

MEDICAL SYSTEMS BUSINESS

: Sales
‘a (Millions of yen) 353,269

RHINO-LARYNGO 311,709 75,257
VIDEOSCOPE 71,262

ENF Domestc
TYPE VQ '

Using specific light
spectra, this rhino-laryngo
videoscope realized NBI
observation of the nasal
lumens and the airway
anatamy enabling full- a7 -1}
screen, high-definition

images.

Overseas
sales
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Business

> Core products in the Medical Systems Business include

.................................................................................................................................................

g both gastromtestmal and surgical endoscopes, endo-
therapy devgces and endoscopic ultrasound systems.

t-and-firm-earnings-capabitity with-endoscope systems -~

Sales in t:he Medical Systems Business in fiscal 2008

rose 13.3% S(ear on year to ¥353,269 million (US$3,364
: million), while operating income grew 12.0% to ¥98,420
: million (US$937 million). The increase in revenue and
earnings wafs attributable to strong sales of gastro-
intestinal eridoscopes and surgical and endotherapy
products. '

In Februairy 2008, Olympus acquired the U.K.-based

medical equipment company Gyrus Group PLC (Gyrus).
! This was to ensure Olympus' further business growth

that enable bbservation using specific light spectra.
These endosfcope systems are highly regarded in Japan
and overseafS. In addition, Olympus is making prepara-
tions to expémd its surgical and endotherapy product
businesses based on this acquisition.

| GASTROINTESTINAL
L ENDQSCORES ....ooccornneoonirecinessiresenresonse e

Sales of gas’j’trointestinal endoscopes increased 11.0%

! from the prévious fiscal year to ¥237,366 million

| (US$2,261 million). In Japan, sales in this business

. were driven by favorable demand for the EVIS LUCERA
SPECTRUM éndoscope system; during endoscopic
observation% NBI enhances visualization of the capillary
network moi’phology. In addition, sales of slim, upper
gastrointest;inai videoscopes, which can be inserted
either through the nasal tract or the mouth, were brisk.
! Overseas, sales of the EVIS EXERA Il high-resolution
HDTY endosfcope system that also features imaging
using specific light spectra were strong in the United
States, Euro_:pe, Oceania and Latin America. This resulted
in the revenije increase. In 2007, Olympus introduced

a capsule eﬁdoscope for the small bowel in the United
States, whil;a orchestrating the simultaneous weorldwide
release of ttjme Single Balloon Enteroscope System. With
these effortfs, Olympus has successfully cultivated new
: fields—ranging from diagnosis to treatment in small
bowel diseafses—through comprehensive business
developmenﬁt.

MINIMALLY INVASIVE

PRODUCTS

Sales of minimally invasive products expanded 18.4%
year on year to ¥115,903 million (US$1,104 million). As
for endotherapy devices, Olympus saw domestic and
overseas sales increases for products including: clipping

devices for hemostasis; biopsy forceps;the disposable

guide sheath kit used to collect specimens in the
respiratory organs that was released in August 2007; and
pancreaticobiliary duct endotherapy devices such as
guidewires. Overseas, sales of the EVIS EXERA |l high-
resolution HDTV endoscope system were favorable in
the surgical field. In Asia, Olympus commenced sales of
the VISERA Pro system. In the United States and Europe,
sales of high-definition videoscopes for abdominal

and chest cavities repeated the strong performance of
the previous fiscal year. As a result, Olympus recorded
increased revenue in this business.

QUTLOOK FOR
FISCAL 2009

For medical endoscopes, Olympus is projecting ongoing
strong sales of the endoscope systems equipped with
functions for observations using specific light spectra.
In conjunction with this, Olympus is aiming to expand
and reinforce its business foundation in the minimally

invasive products field through the synergistic effects
arising from the acquisition of Gyrus. The business
integration with Gyrus is also expected to bring broader
product lineups and sales networks. In addition,
Olympus will continue to focus on its high-value-added
hospital management solutions business. In the fiscal
year ending March 31, 2009, Olympus is forecasting
sales of ¥400 billion and operating income of ¥100
billion in this business, despite the expectation of a
pronounced effect from foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations.
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CONFOCAL LASER

SCANNING MICROSCOPE

FV1000-D

Simultaneous obs:ervation
and laser light stimulation

2.

IMMUNOCHEMISTRY
ANALYZER

AU30001

Drawing on the autemation

how accumulated in the
development of automated
chemistry analyzers, this
immunoassay system is
equipped with Olympus' first
proprietary reagent.

4,

CELLULAR IMAGE
ANALYZING SYSTEM

CELAVIEW

has enabled the gathering of
mare accurate infermation
about living organisms, owing : -
to the microscope's flexibility :
with regard to changes within
them. :

RS100

This system fully:meets
the needs of cell'screening
that can contribute to the
development of cellular
function analysis that is
carried out primarily in the

cience Business

: LIFE SCIENCE BUSINESS
i Sales :
3 5 (Millions of yen) 131, 448;
! 123,706 :
i 36,897 29,999,
AUTOMATED ) :
CHEMISTRY ANALYZER E:l’;‘:s“c 101,856,
A U 6 8 O 93,609 H
i . Overseas
Enabling:the analysis of sales
the same samples, this
machine :has common
components with the AUI000I
immunochemistry analyzer,
realizing more efficient

operations and lower costs. a7 28:
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Life Seieree
Business

......................... T

;

The main prbducts of the Life Science Business are bio-
logical microscopes, industrial microscopes and clinical
hemanalysié systems.

Sales in ﬂhis business rose 6.3% year on year to
¥131,446 million (US$1,252 million), while operating
income decrzeased 13.5% to ¥6,990 million (US$67
million). This was attributable to increased investment
in R&D and business reformation, despite a primarily
overseas in(:irease in revenue.

MICRO-IMAGING

Sales-in-the-fmicro-imaging(microscopes) businessg..oen

climbed 6.5% compared with the previous fiscal year to
¥78,724 million (US$750 miltion).

In biologijcal microscopes, Olympus recorded healthy
sales in the:United States and Europe. In the growing
markets of Asia, the Middle East and Latin America,
sales of thegBX series of research system microscopes
were robustf’.

In industfial microscopes, Olympus faced a difficult

situation, ingluding intensifying price. competition.in......

: Japan and overseas as potential customers cut back

on capital investment. However, sales remained on par
with the pre:vious fiscal year due to its efforts to expand
sales in thoée parts of Asia where market recoveries

: were seen. |

DIAGNOSTIC
SYSTEMS

Sales of diagnostic systems rose 5.9% year on year to
¥52,722 million {US$502 million).

In fiscal 2008, Olympus released the AUGBG
automated chemistry analyzer and the AU3000i

immunochemistry analyzer'simultaneously inJapan:in:

addition, Olympus established the Mishima Facility to
consolidate efforts to integrate functions for devices,
reagents, as well as maintenance and support services.
By doing so, Olympus expanded its diagnostic testing
business. Overseas, sales of new products related to
automated blood transfusion testing systems grew in
the United States, while sales of automated chemistry
analyzers were strong in the Asian region, mainly in
China. As a result, Olympus recorded increased revenue
in this business.

OUTLOOK FOR
FISCAL 2009

In fiscal 2009, Olympus expects sales of ¥125 billion
and operating income of ¥6 billion in the Life Science
Business. These estimates are lower than results in the
previous fiscal year due to the impact from foreign cur-
rency exchange rate fluctuations. However, Olympus will
focus on the sale of high-value-added products, includ-

ing biological microscopes, while working to reinforce
immunoassay-related products, one of the cere items in
its clinical analyzer lineup.
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Em?©?@@@i©® &
Communication Business

> The Information &5C0mmunicati'on Business is managed

engages in |nvestment and busmess cultwatlon mainly
in such areas as life science, nétwork & technology,
mobile phones and business |nnovat|on ITX Corporation
invests in diverse busmesses mciudmg mobile handset
sales, mobile solutrons mobile content services, the
development and sale of busmess packaging software,
sales of network |pfrastructure ;systems and sales of
semiconductor-re!ated devices iand electronics devices.
Sales in the Inf{;rmation & Cémmunication Business
declined 5.0% yea} on year to ¥254.312 million
{US$2,422 millionj, while operatfing income grew 10.5%

During the fisceil year under feview, the ratio of direct
sales was increased and cost streamlining carried out in

INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION BUSINESS

...................................................

Sales :
{Millions of yen) : 267,691
i : 254,312
251,511 241,862
Domestic
......................... anles
Overseas 16, 3_39 13,250
sales -] -
fe7 28

_......_ nfoér‘mation &
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the core mobile handset sales business. In the automo-
tive aftermarket business, ITX Corporation promoied the
progress of IT and expanded the business for comfponent
suppliers. In addition, ITX Corporation reviewed ité‘. busi-
ness possibilities based on its investment securiiies
ownership policy, and renewed its investment por:tfolio
of approximately ¥10 billion. Revenue in this busir;\ess

dchnemwnahﬂyduetodem@asedsaws1n1he1nébne """""""""

handset sales market that reflected the sales pri{:e
changes initiated by telecommunication companifes.
On the earnings front, ITX Corporation continued

to implement business reforms first undertaken |n
fiscal 2007 to realize the “establishment of a staﬁle
consolidated business earnings structure” As a résult,
the Information & Communication Business impréved its
profitability by reducing costs for mobile handsetésales
and controlling price discounting. Combined with;these
efforts, growth in the automotive aftermarket bus{iness
contributed to the overall earnings increase. :

............... to¥3,001mllllon(US$29m|lhon)

QUTLOOK FOR
FISCAL 2009

Olympus is anticipating that the telecommunicatizon
companies’ sales price changes will bring about ai
revenue decrease. However, the ongeing streamlilzﬂng of
operating expenses will not lead to a decline in O;Serat-
ing income. Despite these factors, operating mcome

is projected to fall due to the exclusion of proceeqls
from investment securities. As a result, forecastssare
for sales of ¥235 billion and operating income of ¥2 0
billion.

1.

PORTABLE INDUSTRIAL
VIDEOSCOPE

IPLEX FX

A rugged industrial
videoscope—shock :
resistance from the height
of 1.2m, dust proof and  :
waterproof—that enables:
non-destructive testing :
to be conducted in harsh
environments

ommunication Business, and
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> In the Otherfs business, Olympus mainly engages in

......................... [T T T T E L T T T

: the manufacture and sale of industrial endoscopes,
non-destrudtive testing devices, printers and bar code
scanners, aé well as system development.

Sales in t}\B Cthers business rose 7.6% year on year to

 ¥69,259 million (US$660 million), and operating income

: climbed 5.2% to ¥917 million (US$9 million).

Olympus |s reinforcing its lineup of industrial

endoscopesgand non-destructive testing devices that

provide optifmal solutions for various industrial inspec-

tion needs. $ales of portable flaw detectors and highly

functional u:ltrasonic phased-array instruments were

particularly irobust. In the remote visual inspection field,
~------------~-~---~-----§--sa{es-of the%new IPLEX FX-portable-industriat-videoscope

with high du:rability, functionality and resolution

expanded, ciontributed to the revenue increase.

. In the domestic information equipment field, Olympus

saw an incréase in shipments of printers and printer

: components manufactured in collaboration with Riso

: Kagaku Carporation,

j In the bioimedicai materials field, Olympus estab-

lished Olymbus Terumo Biomaterials Corp. jointly with

under review, Olympus atso commenced full-scale
overseas saies of OSferion bone replacement material

: and the mariketing of collagen-related products contain-
! ing Terudermis, an artificial dermal graft material used

2.

PHASED-ARRAY
INSTRUMENT

OmniScan
MX PA

A high-speed data collection
rate and powerful saftware
features contribute to
efficient manual and
automated inspections.

thers

~

to treat serious dermal and mucosal defects, as well as
Teruplug. These achievements resulted in the substan-
tial revenue increase.

An increase in overall sales was recorded in the
Qthers business, reflecting ITX Corporation's growth in
medical-related businesses, including new business
acquisitions. As a result, Olympus recorded increased

OUTLOOK FOR
FISCAL 2009

Olympus is forecasting an increase in revenue on the
back of steady growth in the sale of non-destructive
testing devices, including industrial endoscopes, as well
as in the printer business. Against the backdrop of an
ongoing trend of a stronger yen and increasing invest-
ment in product development, however, earnings are

expected to.decline..Overall,.Olympus.anticipates.sales........

of ¥70 billion and an operating loss of ¥8.0 billion.

OTHERS BUSINESS

Sales
(Millions of yen) 69,259
64,377 35,908
32,372
Domestic
sales
QOverseas 32,0085 33,351
sales
87 o3

3.

BONE REPLACEMENT
MATERIAL

OSferion 60

This artificial bene
replacement material
contains B-tricalcium
phosphate for enhanced
mechanical strength.

OLYMPUS 2008 19



RESEARCH
AND DEVELOPMENT

To leverage and hone its core competencies in Opto-Digital
Technology, the Olympus Group conducts ongoing, proactive
R&D into optical, digital imaging and microprocessing
technologies. In addition, the Group is endeavoring to
develop various cell-related technologies to add another
core competence.

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, R&D expenses
amounted to approximately ¥65.9 billion, a year-on-year
increase of 18.7%. The ratio of R&D expenses to net sales
was 5.8%, which indicates the Group's intensified focus on
technological R&D activities.

Imaging Systems
Business

1.

Development of E-420 interchangeable-lens-type
digital SLR camera

Olympus has developed the world's slimmest and smatl-
est*' digital SLR camera, the E-420.This is an upgraded
version of the E-410, which gained popularity for its
excellent portability and high-quality images. In addition
to improved portability, achieved by exploiting the E-410's
Four Thirds System standard, the new E-420 is equipped
with new technologies, inctuding Auto Focus Live View
and Face Detection and Shadow Adjustment, so that even
beginners can take high-quality, natural-looking pictures.

*1 Of all interchangeable-lens-typa digital SLR cameras as of March §, 2008
(in-house research)

2.

Development of u[mju:] 1020 compact digital camera
Thanks to its proprietary lens development technology, with
the slim and stylish u[mju:] 1020 Olympus has produced

a camera with optical 7x zoom in a body as compact as a
model with 3x zoom. With a high-definition, 10.1-megapixel
CCD*?, Olympus' unique TruePic lll image processing

engine and a lens that can provide precise images, the
u[mju:] 1020 enables high-quality photography. In addi-
tion, Olympus' proprietary Face & Back Contrel function
detects faces (Face Detection function) and automatically
adjusts the focus and exposure, while giving appropriate
exposure control to the background (Shadow Adjustment
Technology). These characteristics realize precise images
with both the subject and background of the photo in focus.

*2 Effective pixels in camera

3.

Development of AF Live View function for
interchangeable-lens-type digital SLR cameras
Olympus first installed the Full-Time Live View function
in the E-330, making it the first camera in the world to
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combine auto-focusing and live view
functions. In the E-420, Olympus succeeded in incorporat-
ing a mere compact yet more functional AF Live View func-
tion at lower cost. With the High-Speed Imager AF system,
when the shutter button is pressed down halfway in Live
View mode, the image sensor detects the contrast values
and adjusts the focus to the peak contrast position.

Medical Systems
Business

1.

Development of EVIS LUCERA small intestinal videoscope,
OBCU Balloon Control Unit and ST-SB1 Single-Use
Splinting Tube

Olympus conducted development of these products in
response to medical facility needs, such as shortened
examination times for tissue diagnoses, treatment by
simple operations that combine accurate diagnosis by
means of flexible endoscopes, and therapeutic devices for
the small intestines. In recent years, capsule endoscopes
have enabled the diagnosis and detection of diseases in the
small intestines. In addition, these products are making a
vatuable contribution to highly efficient examinations and
treatments.

2.

Development of OLYMPUS ENF TYPE VT2 VISERA
nasopharyngeal videoscope

To assist in tissue extraction and the collection of foreign
bodies, Olympus developed an operative videoscope that
incorporates an array of devices for the observation and
treatment of the nasal cavity, pharynx and larynx. Thanks
to its high-resolution CCD (object imaging element) and an
optical system with greater depth of field, this videoscope
produces high-resolution, narrow-band imaging (NBI) at
ranges as close as 2.0mm. Boasting these characteristics,
during endoscopic observation, NBl enhances visualization
of the capillary network morpholegy, and is expected to
make a contribution to doctor diagnosis of that part of the
malignant tumor in which the capillary concentrates.

3.

Development of disposable guide sheath kit

Olympus developed the disposable guide sheath kit in
response to the requirement for diagnosis of minute
cancers in the peripheral lung. The development was con-
ducted to enable more accurate extraction of specimens
from the peripheral lung, which is inaccessible with a
bronchoscope. This achievemnent has contributed greatly

to the field of minimally invasive treatment, which reduces
patient exposure to stress by shortening examination times
and exposure to X-rays.




Life Science
Business

1.

Development of MX61A automated

semiconductor microscope

Based on the new concept of two selectable controllers,
depending on the need for either semiconductor inspection
or analysis, the new MX61A automated semiconductor
microscope is Olympus' top-end medel. Enhancing its
operability, the MX61A displays the automated and etectric-
powered operation necessary for microscopic observation.
In addition, the product boasts flexibility and excellent
extensibility to meet each inspection and analysis need,
realizing improved defect detection and better operational
efficiency.

2.

Development of OLCOS

blood transfusion control system I

The OLCOS, a blood transfusion centrol system that enables
uniform management of results of transfusion test, transfu-
sion history and inventory and specimen reserves of blood
products, handles the entire process from collection to

the taking of statistics of blood transfusion-related data.
Providing due control over infection test resuit data before
and after transfusion as well as specimen reserves, the
OLCOS will contribute to streamlining blood transfusion and
hospital managements.

3.

Development of CELAVIEW RS100

cellular imaging analysis system

This cellular imaging analysis system responds to the
needs of screening by fluorescent quantitative analysis
or morphology analysis. The CELAVIEW RS100 assists in
the cellular function analysis frequently conducted in the
cutting-edge life science fields, including drug discovery
and the study of disease.

>

Others

1.

Development of IPLEX FX
industrial videoscope
Olympus has developed an industrial videoscope that can
be used by anyone, anywhere. Such usability was realized
thanks to a number of features including: an optical tip
adaptor with cutting-edge LED lighting; high-reseclution
images provided by wide dynamic extended range; a
dust-proof, rain-proof and drop-proof base unit that meets
the MIL standard with its sealed structure thanks to its
magnesium chassis; power-assisted articulation that
simplifies operations and gives a better response; and a
new measuring mode that measures areas and lengths by
automatically recognizing defective areas.

2.

Olympus Terumo Biomaterials Corp. awarded international
standard for “Artificial Bone Quality System Requirement”
On December 12, 2007, biomedical materials manufacturer
Olympus Terumo Biomaterials Corp. was awarded certifica-
tion for its “MDD93/42/EEC Annex.|1.3 (artificial bone qual-
ity system requirement)” in addition to the international
standard 1S0 13485: 2003 for medical equipment quality
management systems.

3.

Use of heterogeneous materials in development

of micro cantilever with polycrystal diamond tip

By using heterogeneous materials {diamond/Si or SiN),
Olympus has succeeded in developing micro cantilevers
containing a multicrystal diamond exploratory needle that
can be used for nano-cell mapping. This research formed
part of the R&D activity into diamond nano-tip for nano-cell
mapping conducted under the Nanotech Apical Parts
Materials Commercialization initiative by the New Energy
and Industrial Technology Development Qrganization (NEDO).

R&D Expenditure R&D Expenditure by Segment
(Mitlions of yen) (%)
65,928 Basic Research
55,531
Imaging
45,935 Systems
Business
Others
) Medical
) Life Systems
Science Business
Business
[oL:]
a6 07 08
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CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

> The Olympus Group clarified its stance on corporate social
responsibility (CSR) by formulating the Olympus Group
Corporate Conduct Charter and the Olympus Group Code
of Conduct. These offer guidance in putting into practice
in day-to-day operations the principles embodied in our
“Social IN” (“Social Value in the Company™ manage-
ment philosophy and in fulfiiling our CSR objectives.
We have also established a CSR Division and a Quality
and Environment Administration Division, which work to
promote CSR initiatives across the Group and to foster
business operations based on respect for involvement
with people, harmony with the envirenment and good
relations with communities. Since its founding, Olympus
has been engaged in manufacturing activities that
contribute to people’s emotional and physical wellbeing.
We devise products that create value from the customer’s
perspective and demenstrate our strong awareness of the
importance of quality assurance.

Olympus conducts business activities based on human
dignity, eliminating discrimination in the workplace. With
this in mind, Olympus established an Olympus Human
Rights and Labor Policy to thoroughly advocate human
rights, provide working environments that respect the
individual and foster each employee’s skill development by
showing concern for their health and safety. Together with
this, we will create workplaces where each employee can
acquire knowledge, where technological capabilities can

be improved and where the values society demands can be
offered.
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A Day in the Life of Africa (DITLA) Phato Exhibition in 2008,
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Olympus drew up its Basic Environmental Plan as
part of its 2006 Corporate Strategic Plan to introduce
IS0 14001 environmental management systems at all
Olympus manufacturing sites in Japan and overseas. We
are also working to reduce the environmental impact of
our products, while promoting our range of Eco-Products.
Furthermore, Clympus produces nature-photo calendars
and donates the proceeds to WWF Japan as a way of sup-
porting environmental conservation activities.

> The Group contributes to society by offering safe, secure

and highly efficient medical equipment through its busi-
nesses. In addition, the Group is highly aware of its social
respensibility as a leading endoscope company. In this
light, we have held the “BRAVE CIRCLE" colorectal cancer
awareness campaign since 2007 to promote colorectal
cancer detection and diagnosis and to reverse a disease
rate that has been increasing in Japan in recent years.

To raise awareness of this type of cancer detection and

as a way of reducing as far as possible the number of
cancer fatalities, the Group energetically promotes the
campaign's wide-ranging enlightenment activities. We will
make continuous efforts to extend our activities to develop

them to the sacial level.

Furthermore, we participated in a project commenced
in 2002, for which photographers of worldwide renown
take pictures of the reality of people's lives in Africa to
give their full support to the establishment of the AIDS
Education Fund in Africa. Called “A Day in the Life of
AFRICA,” Olympus took part in the event as an official
sponsor and photographic equipment supplier to extend
its own all-out support. We donate all revenues from a
photo exhibition, first held in Tokyo in 2003, to the United
Nations Development Programme (UNDP) for the purpose
of attaining its Millennium Development Goals (MDGs),
which set targets for international society to address
such issues as eradicating poverty and starvation, and
implementing universal primary education. Since then, we
have continued to hold photo exhibitions throughout the

world in cooperation with NGOs and NPOs, including the
UN agencies. The Olympus Group will strive to publicize
the international issues of the MDGs as a company that
gives its wholehearted support to and participates in the
UN-driven Global Compact.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Olympus Group, which is an active member of
society and shares its sense of values, proposes new
value through its business endeavors, thereby seeking

to contribute to people's health and happiness. We call
this concept “Social IN,” describing the basic phitlosophy
underlying all our activities, Based upon this philosophy,
Olympus believes that one of its key missions is to build
and operate an optimal and appropriate corporate gover-
nance structure from a global perspective.

MANAGEMENT
STRUCTURE

Corporate Structure with Auditor System

> Olympus adopted a corporate structure with an auditor
system based on Japan's Corporation Law. Our corporate
governance system consists of a Board of Directors, which
audits and supervises the performance of directors; and
auditors and a Board of Auditors, which are independent
from the Board of Directors and audit the performance
of directors. In recent years, listed Japanese companies
have been adopting one of two methods for corporate
governance: a corporate structure with an auditoror a
committee system. Olympus believes that our auditor
system-based corporate governance system is ideally
suited to the task of ensuring efficient and fair manage-
ment, given the current business environment. Olympus
adheres to the following structure in its efforts to maintain
and improve corporate governance,

Corporate Governance Structure Chart

General Meeting of Shareholders

Appointment/ I Appointment/dismissal

Appointment/dismissal

Auditor

dismissal
Board of Auditors Board of Directors
Audit Advice Special
Committee
Auditors Directors
Audit Supervision and appointment/
_ dismissal of Presi
The Gffice ismissal of President
of Auditors
L President
Coaperation —
Accounting Audit

Committee

Executive Management

Global Strategy
Committee

— Internal Audit Department

Risk Management
Committee

Audit

Business Divisions, Corporate Center, Corporate R&D Center,
Corporate Social Respansibility Division, Subsidiaries and Affiliates
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The Board of Directors

and Corporate Officer Systems

The Board of Directors consists of 15 members, including
three outside directors. In principle, the Board of Directors
meets once per month to make timely decisions regarding
business strategies and other important management
matters and to conduct appropriate oversight of business
execution. Directors are appointed to one-year terms of
office, and the performance of each director is evaluated
annually in order to clearty identify responsibilities. In
addition, in order to enhance eligibility and expertise as a
director, all except outside directors regularly participate
in seminars outside the Company. Furthermore, Olympus
established an Executive Management Committee, which
in principle convenes three times per month, toactasa
body in support of the President’s decision-making.

To further strengthen corporate governance, Olympus
also adopted an executive officer system that separates
the Board of Directors' responsibilities for decision-
making and oversight of execution of duties from executive
officers’ responsibilities for business execution. The
number of executive officers stands at 28.

Outside Directors
and Their Principal Activities
Under Japan’s Corporation Law companies with an auditor
system are not required to have outside directors on their
boards of directors. Olympus, however, appointed Messrs.
Rikiya Fujita, Masanobu Chiba and Junichi Hayashi to
serve as its independent cutside directors for the purpose
of introducing objective points of view in its management
and further reinforcing the auditing function in its busi-
ness operations. As a doctor of medicine Rikiya Fujita
brings a wealth of knowledge and expertise mainly to the
Medical and Life Science Businesses; Masanobu Chiba
has extensive knowledge and expertise from his career
as a director at Nikkei, Inc. and its group companies; and
Junichi Hayashi offers vast experience from his career in
the securities industry and broad knowledge and expertise
as a director of an investment consulting company.
Qutside directors participate in Olympus' Board of
Directors’ meetings and will act as members of the Special
Committee, which gives advice to the Company from
a position independent of Olympus' top management
should a large-scale acquisition {over 20%) of shares be
proposed.
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Auditors, Board of Auditors

Olympus adopted an auditer system, which requires the
appointment of three or more auditers, at least half of
whom are to be from outside the Company, and the estab-
lishment of a Board of Auditors. At the present time, there
are four auditors, including two outside auditors. Auditors
are appointed for four-year terms.

The major functions of the Board of Auditors include
auditing management's daily activities, such as director
performance. In order to fulfill this duty, the Board of
Auditors meets in principle once per month. At Board of
Auditors' meetings, auditors make reports and exchange
opinions regarding the accomplishments of the Board
of Directors, Together with this, the Board of Auditors
exchanges views with the President four times per year
and with all other directors excluding outside directors
and executive officers once a year. Auditors participate in
important meetings, including Board of Directors’ meet-
ings, and periodically exchange opinions with executive
officers, major subsidiaries’ auditors, accounting auditors
and the Internal Audit Department to ensure auditing
efficiency.

Outside auditors participate in the Board of Directors’
meetings and will act as members of the Special
Committee, which gives advice to the Company from
a position independent of Olympus' top management
should a large-scale acquisition {over 20%) of shares
be proposed. In addition, outside auditors deepen their
awareness of Olympus’ source of value creation through
visits to plants and research centers.

Accounting Auditors

Clympus entered into a contract with KPMG AZSA &

Co. concerning audits based on the Company Law and
accounting audits based on the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Law. The independent auditor is approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders. CPAs of the Company’s
independent auditors are periodically replaced. Overseas,
Olympus mainly requests that KPMG carry out accounting
audits in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in each country.
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Appointment of Directors and Auditors

Director appointments and dismissals are determined

at the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board of
Directors selects candidates for the position of direc-

tor, passing its proposals to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval. Auditor appeintments and
dismissals also require approval from the General Meeting
of Shareholders.

Director and Auditor Compensation

Director compensation is determined by the Board of
Directors, depending on each director's job description.
Olympus introduced a balance score card {BSC) system
and a performance-linked executive compensation
system based on the degree to which goals are achieved
in four categories: financial, customer service, business
operation process and growth potential. The total amount
of a director’s monthly compensation is approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Directors
deciding on a figure for each director’s compensation that
falls within this amount. The cap on auditor compensation
is determined by a resolution by the General Meeting of
Shareholders,

Following a review of its compensation system for
directors and auditors carried out as a part of manage-
ment reforms, Olympus abolished its executive retirement
benefits system in June 2006.

Olympus does not exercise stock options. However,
all of its directors and executive officers, excluding
outside directors, possess the Company’s own shares
and constantly purchase them through the shareholders’
association. Olympus discloses information regarding
directors’ share ownership.

Anti-Takeover Measures

Clympus introduced anti-takeover measures to prevent
large-scale purchases of the Company’s shares, which
would run counter to our corporate values and shareholder
interests. This is prior warning-type rights plan stipulates
a gratis issue of stock options in case of emergencies. In
order to make objective judgments concerning the positive
and negative aspects of anti-takeover measures, Olympus
established a Special Committee made up of three outside
directors, two outside auditors and one outside expert.
This committee is independent of the Company’s top
management.

hvs
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Should a purchaser acquire over 20% of Olympus’
shares, the Company's Board of Directors will make a
reasonable response to any offer after taking advice from
the independent Special Committee and will disclose
appropriate information in a timely manner, These anti-
takeover measures will be valid for three years and require
an approval from the General Meeting of Sharehaolders in
the event of renewal. Given these conditions, the mea-
sures do not undermine shareholder interests, nor were
they established to maintain the position of the Company’s
directors.

Company Spin-Offs

To strengthen and improve the Imaging Systems and
Medical Systems Businesses, Olympus spun off both and
established Olympus Imaging Corp. and Olympus Medical
Systems Corp. in October 2004. Olympus has also imple-
mented company spin-offs at major overseas subsidiaries
to establish a globalized system, to enhance market
responsiveness tailored to the characteristics of each
business as well as to accelerate business operations.

Performance Indicator

The Olympus Group has adopted the Olympus Value Added
(OVA) performance indicator. This enables the presentation
of business operation results in consideration of capital
cost. Consequently, Olympus OVA serves as a guideline
and indicator for the selection and concentration of busi-
nesses.

IR Activities

Olympus proactively discloses information to fulfill its
corporate accountability, to ensure management transpar-
ency and in order for its stakeholders, including share-
holders, to gain a better understanding of and develop
trust for the Company. Several times a year, Olympus also
holds financial result meetings and business briefings,

in which the president or the director responsible gives
presentations to investors, analysts and members of the
press on management policies and business conditions.
Overseas, the Company commenced IR activities in the
early 1970s to provide opportunities to disclose informa-
tion to overseas investors. Since 2007, Olympus has been
joining forces with several major medical-related compa-
nies and holding briefings mainly for individual investors.
Olympus has provided details of its Corporate Strategic
Plan, financial results and presentation data, including
concurrent disclosure in both Japanese and English, on its
web site.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

Compliance Structure

In Septernber 2004, the Olympus Group putin place

the Olympus Group Corporate Conduct Charter and the
Olympus Group Code of Conduct with the aim of complying
with laws and regulations, to maintain a high level of
ethics in carrying out fair and honest corporate activities,
and to consolidate a system to share its sense of value
and action principles on a global scale, Based on these
guidelines, Olympus encouraged compliance in every
aspect of its corporate activities, encompassing fair trad-
ing, trade controls, product safety and the environment. In
addition to comprehensive in-house rules, we established
a unique, Companywide set of operational standards—the
Olympus International Standards (0IS)—to act as an
employee code of behavior. As a company that specifically
engages in the Medical Systems Business, that offers
products involved with human life, Olympus is responsible
for ensuring high-level product safety, quality and
services. In addition, we developed rules and standards in
Pharmaceutical Affairs Law-related fields to comply with
a host of regulations around the world. In response to the
Revised Pharmaceutical Affairs Law, Olympus established
the Pharmaceutical Affairs Division in April 2004 to further
reinforce its business structure,

Since awareness of compliance is enhanced in an
open corporate culture, the President makes use of the
Company's intranet system to send a monthly message
to all employees. To provide the President with feedback,
Olympus set up a system for employees to send their
opinions directly to the president. To that end, we promote
active Groupwide communication.

In October 2005, Olympus established the Compliance
Department to further strengthen its compliance structure
and set up a helpline as a point of contact for any
employee inquiries about compliance. Shoutd compliance-
related problems arise, Olympus has in place a system
that enables the directors responsible to report problems
to the Board of Directors and the Board of Auditors. In
addition, further evidence of the Company's commitment
to thorough compliance is provided by the distribution of
a compliance card, explaining the Code of Conduct, among
all directors and employees, as well as the provision of
e-learning and group training sessions.
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Internal Controls regarding

Financial Reporting

Olympus established its J-SOX Act Compliance Dept., a
special division to ensure the evaluation and reporting

of internal controls regarding financial reporting, when
this was required under the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Law enforced in April 2008. Olympus makes con-
tinuous efforts to ensure that its internal control activities
are being implemented efficiently.

Risk Control Structure

As part of its risk management rules, the Company
established a Risk Management Committee, chaired by
the president, to decide risk management policies and

the evaluation, verification and procedural standards to
respond to such risks. In addition, Olympus set up a Risk
Management Bureau to collect and assess information,
formulate countermeasures and ensure the effectiveness
of any countermeasures initiated by full-time staff.
Simultaneously, each in-house company, business site and
affiliate company has developed its own risk management
structure. Should any risks arise that have a significant
impact on the maintenance of Olympus’ corporate value,
such risks shall be immediately reported to the president
and the Risk Management Committee to detarmine the
countermeasures and seek a prompt settlement of the
issue. In the event that the level of risk escalates, Olympus
has a structure in place to minimize any impact on its
corporate value.




BUSINESS RISKS

Business Risks

Avariety of risk factors could affect significantly the busi-
ness performance of the Olympus Group. The following are
the main risk factors, other than management decisions,
that the Group has identified as having the potential to
impact the Group's performance as of March 31, 2008,
Based on these possibilities, the Group addresses risk
prevention and takes countermeasures against such risks.

Risks Related to Sales Activities

Price competition in the market for digital cameras is
increasingly severe, and a sharper than expected decline
in digital camera prices that cannot be offset through the
Group’s cost reduction measures may impact Group earn-
ings.

In the Medical Systems Business, unexpected, large-scale
changes in health service policies brought about by
healthcare legislation reforms. Failure of the Group to
adapt to such changes may impact Group earnings.

In the Bioscience Business, a high percentage of earnings
are generated by supplying systems for research funded by
the budgets of various nations. Accordingly, Group earnings
may be impacted in the event of smaller national budgets
that result from macroeconomic changes.

Risks Related to Production

and Development Activities

In the Imaging Systems Business, core production opera-
tions are located in China. Accordingly, a rise in the value
of the yuan could lead to an increase in costs and impact
Group earnings. Mareover, production activities may be
impacted by anti-Japanese sentiment and/or a decline in
political or security conditions.

Olympus depends upon certain suppliers to develop

and manufacture some products and components that
cannot be developed and produced inside of the Group.
Accordingly, the Group's production and supply capacity
may be impacted in the event that it is able to procure
limited amounts of the products and components it needs
owing to conditions of suppliers.

Olympus products are manufactured according tc meticu-
lous quality-assurance standards, including products
consigned to outside suppliers. However, in the event
that product defects do arise, this situation may resultin
product recalls and increased costs, as well as a loss of
consumer confidence in Clympus products, and earnings
may be impacted accordingly.

Olympus is making continual advances in developing
digital products by applying its cutting-edge Opto-Digital
Technology. However, the progress of digital technotogy
is extremely rapid, and the Group's earnings may be

impacted in the event that it is unable to sufficiently
foresee market changes and develop new products that
meet customer needs in a timely manner.

The Group applies a wide range of intellectual property in
its R&D and production activities, including intellectual
property that belongs to the Group and that which the
Group is licensed to use. However, the Group's earnings
may be impacted in the event that it is unexpectedly
accused of having infringed upon the intellectual property
of a third party, resulting in litigation or other related
consequences.

Risks Related to Investments in Securities

Olympus may not be able to achieve the capital gains it
expects on investments in the event that cultivating a
business takes longer than anticipated, or when such an
investment cannot be sold for the expected price.

Stock prices are determined based upon market prin-
ciples, and Olympus may not be able to obtain the sort of
gains it expects on securities owing to changes in market
conditions.

Risks Related to Business Mergers

and Acquisitions

Olympus has formed long-term, strategic partnerships
related to technologies and product development with
other leading companies in the industry. However, the
Group’s business activities may be adversely affected in
the event that financtal or other business-related issues
arise in such strategic partnerships, and changes in goals
and objectives do not allow for the continuation of such
partnerships.

Olympus may acquire total or partial ownership of other
companies for the purpose of business expansion,
However, the Group's business may be impacted should

it prove unable to integrate acquired businesses accord-
ing to the Group’s management strategies or unable to
efficiently utilize the management resources of existing
businesses or businesses it has acquired. In addition, the
Group’s performance and/or financial position may be
affected due to the depletion of goodwill as well as the
aforementioned possibilities.

Other Risks

Olympus is expanding its business activities in a number
of countries around the world, and the Group’s earnings
may be impacted by the occurrence of natural disasters,
disease, war, terrorist acts or other incidents in areas
where it operates, or by unforeseen increases in interest
rates or changes in currency exchange rates.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales

In fiscal 2008, the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, total net
sales rose 6.3% from the previous fiscal year to ¥1,128,875 million
{US$10,751 million), marking the 14th consecutive fiscal year of
growth,

Sales in the Imaging Systems Business totaled ¥320,589 million
(US$3,053 millien), an increase of B.9% from the previous fiscal year.
This was attributed to steady growth across each of this segment’s
operating fields. In digital cameras, sales surged thanks to the release
of the small, lightweight E-410 and E-510 single-tens reftex cameras,
offering Live View and other features attractive to a wide spectrum of
users. In compact cameras, the release of the p[mju:] 1020, with its
small, slim, stylish body and 7x optical zoom lens, and robust sales of
the CAMEDIA SP series, which realizes 18x optical, high-magnification
shots, contributed to the significant upswing in perfermance. In the
voice recorders field, sales grew both domestically and overseas. In
Japan, the slender, large-volume memory Voice-Trek V-13 performed
extremely well, its “separate design” enabling it to be connected
directly to a personal computer. In addition, the Company's entry into
the Linear PCM Recorder market was well received thanks to its high
sound quality uncompressed digital recording format. Finally, optical
component sales also increased, underpinned by steady results in
lens barrel units.

In the Medical Systems Business, sales climbed 13.3% to
¥353,269 million (US$3,364 million). The EVIS LUCERA SPECTRUM,
which enables observations by using specific light spectra that con-
tribute to the early detection of minute lesions, including cancers, and
the upper gastrointestinal endoscope, which can be inserted either
through the nasal tract or the mouth, performed well in the domestic
medical endoscope market. Overseas, the EVIS EXERA I, a high-res-
olution HDTV endoscope system that also features observation using
specific light spectra, sold well in the United States, Europe, Oceania
and Latin America. In the Minimally Invasive Product (MIP} and endo-
therapy product fields, the number of units sold increased for clips
and other haemostatic system products, biopsy forceps and other
sampling products as we!l as for guidewires and other pancreatico-
biliary therapeutic devices. Overseas, the previously mentioned EVIS
EXERA Il sold well to surgeons, while the launch of the Company’s
VISERA Pro multi-compatible endoscopic video imaging systemiin
Asia and continued robust sales—mostly in the United States and
Asia—of Olympus' high-definition videoscopes for abdominal and
chest cavities contributed to a solid performance.

Sales in the Life Science Business were ¥131,446 million
(US$1,252 million), an increase of 6.3% over the previous fiscal year.
tn the micro-imaging {microscopes) field, sales expanded thanks to

Net Sales

{Millions of yen) {Millians of yen}

Operating Income/Net Income (Loss)

robust results in biclogical microscopes in the United States and
Europe and an upswing in the number of BX Series research system
microscopes sold in the expanding markets of Asia, the Middle East
and Latin America. For industrial microscopes, despite intensifying
price competition owing to the downward trend in business invest-
ment in Japan and overseas, Olympus continued to promote sales
expansion in regions such as Asia, which are exhibiting signs of partial
recovery. Through these endeavars, net sales in this category were on
par with those of the previous fiscal year. In the diagnostic systems
field, sales increased on the back of the simultaneous launch in Japan
of Olympus’ blood analyzer (clinical chemistry analyzer) and new fully
automated chemiluminescent enzyme immuno-analyzer as well as
growth in the clinical diagnostics and testing business. Increased
sales of new blood testers in the United States as well as a favorable
performance in China for clinical biochemistry analyzers also contrib-
uted to strong results.

The Information & Communication Business recorded sales
of ¥254,312 million (US$2,422 million). This represented a 5.0%
decrease over the previous fiscal year. In its efforts to realize the
“establishment of a stable consolidated business earnings structure,”
Olympus increased the direct sales ratio and streamlined costs in
mobile handset sales, promoted computerization and expanded its
component interests in the automobile aftermarket business. The
Company also reshuffled a portfolio valued at around ¥10 billion,
assessing business possibilities based on its investment securities
ownership policy. Despite these endeavors, segment sales declined
due to lower returns, reflecting changes in the sales fee plans of com-
munications service providers involved in mobile handset sales by IT
Telecom Inc.

In the Others business, sales amounted to ¥69,259 million {(US$660
million), an increase of 7.6% over the previous fiscal year. In the non-
destructive testing equipment field, strong sales in portable flaw
detectors and highly functional ultrasonic phased-array instruments
as well as the new highly durable, highly functional, high-definition
IPLEX FX portable industrial endoscope contributed to a significant
improvement in performance. Sales in the domestic information
equipment field saw an upswing in the shipment volume of printers
and printer components manufactured in collaboration with Riso
Kagaku Corporation. In the biomedical materials field, the Company
strove to strengthen its business by establishing a new company,
Olympus Terumo Biomaterials Corp., as a joint venture with Terumo
Corporation in April 2007. As a result, the launch of this new venture
as well as collagen-related products, the commencement of full-scale
marketing in overseas markets for existing products including bone
prostheses, and the acquisition of ITX Corporation contributed signifi-
cantly to sales growth,

Total Assets/Equity
{Millions of yan)

-11.827

- Qperating income
- Netincome (loss)
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Net Income

On the earnings frent, the Otympus Group reported solid results

for the fiscal year under review. Higher revenue from the Imaging
Systems Business as well as successful cost reduction efforts
achieved through business efficiency enhancements, year-on-year
growth in the Medical Systems Business, particularly for its princi-
pal products mainty in Europe, and other factors contributed to an
increase in operating income of 14.1% year on year, to ¥112,623 mil-
lion (US$1,072 million).

In other income and expenses, the Company recorded a net
expense of ¥18,011 million {US$171 million}, an improvement of
28.3% over the previous fiscal year. While Olympus incurred a loss
oninvestment in partnership totaling ¥2,893 millicn (US$27 million},
the Company benefited from a number of factors, including a foreign
exchange gain, net of ¥457 million (US$4 million), gain on sales of
property, plant and equipment totaling ¥1,478 million (US$14 million),
gain on changes in equity amounting to ¥1,909 million (US$18 million)
and gain on transfer of business of ¥300 million (US$2 million).

Accounting for these factors, incomes before provision for income
taxes was ¥94,612 million {US$901 miltion), an increase of 28.5%
over the previous fiscal year. Provision for income taxes climbed
40.9% year on year to ¥38,760 million (US$350 million), resulting in
net income for the fiscal year under review of ¥57,969 million (US$552
million), up 21.3%. For the fiscal year under review, basic net income
per share came to ¥214.48 {US$2.04), an increase of ¥37.69 over the
previous fiscal year.

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Total Assets

As of March 31, 2008, total assets stood at ¥1,358,349 million
(US$12,936 million), up 24.4% over the previous fiscal year-end. This
was mainly attributable to the inclusion of Gyrus Group PLC in the
Group’s scope of consolidation, starting from the fiscal year under
review.

Total current assets decreased 5.1% year on year to ¥543,305 mil-
lion (US$5,174 million) primarily reflecting a drop in cash and time
deposits. Net property, plant and equipment rose 7.1% to ¥150,036
million (US$1,428 million), owing primarily to the year-on-year
increase in machinery and equipment as well as construction in prog-
ress. As of the fiscal year-end, goodwill jumped 280.8% to ¥299,800
million (US$2,855 miltion). Other assets also more than doubled, ris-
ing 118.7% year on year to ¥161,700 million {US$1,540 million). As a
result, investments and other assets surged 75.5% over the previous
fiscal yea-end to ¥665,008 million (US$6,333 million).

Accounting for these factors, total asset turnover was 0.83 times,
down from 0.97 times in the previous fiscal year.

Capital Expenditures R&D Expenditures

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

Total liabilities climbed 32.6% year on year to ¥990,473 million
(US$9,433 million), mainly due to increases in short-term borrowings,
current maturities of long-term debt, accrued amount payable and
deferred tax liability.

Total current liabilities surged 61.5% over March 31, 2007 to
¥662,454 million {US$6,309 million), owing primarily to the aforemen-
tioned jump in short-term borrowings. Total non-current liabitities
edged down 2.6%, to ¥328,019 million (US$3,123 million).

As of March 31, 2008, net assets stood at ¥367,876 million
(US$3,503 million), an increase of 6.6% over the previous fiscal year-
end. The major compenent was retained earnings, which grew 24.4%
year on year to ¥237,817 million (US$2,264 million).

Accounting for these factors, the equity ratio declined 4.4 percent-
age points to 26.2%, owing primarily to total asset growth.

Cash Flows
Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31,2008 declined ¥54,960 mil-
lion year on year, to ¥119,842 million {US$1,141 million).

Net cash provided by operating activities fell ¥19,394 million from
¥108,400 million in the previous fiscal year to ¥89,006 million (US$847
million). The major cash inflow was income before provision for
income taxes, reflecting positive trends across most of the Company's
husiness segments. The major cash outflows comprised increases
in prepaid pension cost and inventories as well as a decrease in
accounts payable.

Net cash used in investing activities jumped ¥207,822 million to
¥304,303 million (US$2,828 million). In the fiscal year under review,
principal cash inflow, including withdrawal from time deposits, was
more than offset by payments for acquisitions of new consolidated
subsidiaries.

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled ¥164,401 million
(US$1,565 million), up ¥162,209 million year on year. This was mainly
attributable to the increase in short-term borrowings as well as pro-
ceeds from leng-term debt.

Research & Development Expenditures

The Olympus Group continuously pursues new technologies through
its R&D activities in order to bolster its core competencies in current
husinesses and ¢reate new business areas. In fiscal 2008, R&D expen-
ditures amounted to ¥65,928 million (US$627 million), an increase of
18.7% compared with the previous fiscal year, and equivalent to 5.8%
of total net sales.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures grew 12.0% over the previous fiscal year, to
¥50,070 million (US$476 million). Depreciation and amortization also
climbed 23.4% year on year, to ¥37,522 million (US$357 million).

Rate of Return on Equity

- Capital Expenditures
- Depreciation and amortization

{Millions of yen) {Miltions of yan) (%)
15.8
50,070 55,928 153
46,127 3
41,817 &4, 444 44,606 141
37,522 L3720 45,035 107
20758 50007 30,404 38,671
24,249 Lo |
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TEN-YEAR SUMMARY

Olympus Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

2008 2007

FOR THE YEAR:
Net sales:

[T Ty aT- T OO OO S OO USURURN ¥ 420,227 414,748

OVETSEAS covvuerrrecmaerrsressnse e essmmnres s seesensssresssesse s senare s £ e e s aearTEE SR e R e e AR e SRR e 0 s e n AR e At e e R R Eenene e s neene e e s re RS ¥ 708,648 647,040

TOBAL et seet et et e seene s et ae et ee s et b e £ nR et £ e R et seE e st e A e R A4 £nRe e eE e eaa e S e R et sennn e searnre st ee ¥1,128,875 1,061,786
Percentage to PrevioUS YBAN ... bbb s e e s s 106.3% 108.6
Net income {loss} ¥ 57,969 47,799
Percentage to net sales.. 5.1% 4.5
R&D expenditures ¥ 65,928 55,531
Capital EXPENUItUIES. ..o cccrrrr s e rsesrr e e s e e e s pamnsr s et s s E e e r e rasnere s sranenenrrene ¥ 50,070 44,696
Depreciation and AMOTHIZATION ... e e bbbt e en e bbb bbb s ¥ 37,522 30,404
Earnings per share {in yen):

Basic NEt INCOME (LOSS) ..o nisssse s eerrs e s e se s s e snmnres s esenses . ¥ 214.48 176.79

Diluted net income ¥ 214.44 -
Cash dividends per share (in yen):

T VT OO O OO TP . ¥ 40.00 35.00
AT YEAR-END:
TOUAL ABERLS ......cceeericteeuitesiceseemraetseesesersesseesese st seseensasastesesessesaaemsasresesesseasseeeasbesssemtemsasnseasaeeeebeeemtasasshstedsanattan ¥1,358,349 1,091,800
Turnover (times).. 0.83 0.97
Total liabilities. ¥ 990,473 746,929
Minority interests.. ¥ 11,525 10,861
U et et e s . ¥ 356,351 334,210
EQUItY TR e e e g ere s s re s 26.2% 30.6
WOTKING CAPILAL. ..o R A bbb S b s eRb b e Rb st ¥ (119,149) 162,722
Number of shares issued (in thousands) 271,284 271,284
Number of employees 35,772 32,958

Notes: 1. See Note 1 (L) of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in respect to the calculation of amounts and dividends per share.
2. These figures are based on accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.
3. 1999-2007: Diluted net income per share is not presented due to the fact that there were no potentially dilutive common shares which have resulted in a dilutive effect.
4. 2008: Diluted nat incama per share is presented due to the fact that there were potentially dilutive common shares which have resulted in a dilutive effect.
5. Effective for the year ended March 31, 2003, the Cempany had adopted the accounting standard for earnings per share and related guidance {Accounting
Standards Board Statement Ne.2, "Accounting Standard for Earnings Per Share” and Financial Standards Implementation Guidance No.4, “Implementation
Guidance for Accounting Standard for Earnings Per Shares,” issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan on September 25, 2002).
6. Effective for the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company adopted the accounting standard for presentation of nat assets in the balance sheet.
See Note 2(e) of the Notes to the Consotidated Financial Statements for details.
7. 2007, 2008: Equity=Total net assets - Minority interests
1998-2006: Equity = Total Shareholders' equity
Sales by Geographic Area Sales by Business Segment
(%) {%)
Other areas 2.3
Asia
Imaging
Japan Information and Systems
Communication Business
Business

Sei Life Medical
ciance Systems
North Business Bﬂsiness
Amersica

08
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Millions of yen (except per share amounts)

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1989
376,946 250.684 150,334 141,021 150,761 149,351 144,993 136,012
601.181 562,854 483,288 423,322 377,654 317,353 283,653 277,732
978,127 813,538 633,622 564,343 528,415 466,704 428,646 413,744

120.2 128.4 1123 106.8 113.2 108.9 103.6 113.4

28,564 (11.827} 33,564 24,348 10,27¢ 11,787 1,860 8,883

29 (1.5} 8.3 4.3 1.8 2.5 0.4 2.1

45,935 47,720 38671 34,735 30,477 30.848 31,955 31,060

44 444 46,127 41,917 34,619 24,835 21,441 17,093 18,452

27,022 29,758 24,249 16,858 23,700 18,247 16,288 16,824

105.99 (44.98) 126.96 91.88 38.87 44,57 7.03 33.58
22.00 15.00 15.00 14.00 13.00 13.00 6.50 13.00
976,132 868,083 682,673 605,768 562,078 584,103 536,174 533,584
1.00 0.95 0.93 0.23 0.94 0.80 0.80 0.78
675.819 603.959 429,329 382,456 358,256 389,968 344,272 342,895
9,657 13,287 1,165 880 2,275 1,906 1.561 402
290.856 240,837 252,179 222,432 201,547 192,229 190,341 190,287
29.8 28.1 36.9 36.7 35.9 32.9 35.5 35.7

94.770 47,618 125,324 79,734 114,779 124,287 171,378 232,226
271,284 264,473 264,473 264,473 264,473 264,473 264,473 264,473

33,022 30,339 28,857 23,975 20.705 19,865 18,999 17.874
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Olympus Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31,2008 and 2007

Thousands of

Millions of yen LS. dollars {Note 1)
2008 2007 2008
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and time deposits (Notes 17 and 19} .....eoerrrreie e ¥ 158,281 ¥ 218,586 $ 1,507,438
SECUTTEIES (NOTE A) c.veeeiee et tr e e e rr s pnen e b 3 8,347 29
Notes and accounts receivable (Notes 6, 16 and 17) 193,555 192,855 1,843,381
Allowance for doubtful ACCOUNTS........o.oiiviicicirrrc e s e s sssem e re s s s ragesesassanns (3,109) (3,381) {29,610}
Inventories (NOteS 7 @Nd 17) . ievirereeesrsnnrsrer s rar e e ae s nn e ar e s s e m e ne s s smnenes 110,824 B8G.847 1,055,467
Deferred inCome taxes {NOTE 13) ... e e se s s s e esenas 36,719 32,319 349,705
OTNEr CUITENT ASSEEE (iivrivviirirriiiirisrsrerrn s iarinrrsrerrsrasrs sassenrenmsannsnsssnesmnsnmssnsansesrensemnnnnne 47,032 36,265 447,923
TOtAl CUITENE BESE TS .t iieruiierrnsrrrrnrsarrararrartererrreseseemmsresen s sarenmreraesnes e sonsnnseenbossints 543,305 572,838 5,174,333
Property, Plant and Equipment:
(N2 T B [ 1 - T I 2 O DSOS 21,291 18,736 202,771
Buildings and structures (Note 17) ... 126,260 128,497 1,202,476
Machinery and equipment (Note 17).. it 212,330 200,727 2,022,190
CoONSErUCTION IN PrOZIESS oo et s v g e e s 6,398 1,106 60,934
366,279 349,066 3,488,371
Less-Accumulated depreciation {216,243) (208,977) (2,059,457)
Net property, plant and equipment 150,036 140,089 1,428,914
Investments and Other Assets:
{nvestment securities (NOtes 4, 5 And 17} viriee e sirrer s s rmer e rerens s nes 193,843 216,636 1,846,124
Deferred income taxes (NOLE 13) .. e i s s rrb e saeaenaes 9,665 9,608 92,048
LT T Lo 1% L O POV O P PTORPOS 299,800 78,718 2,855,238
OLher 38SEES (NOLE T7) iiiiiiiiirieiirirriarressinrresrnerasrrereseraesssasssnteeesamsaraessansassensestinessanes 161,700 73,913 1,540,000
Total investments and 0ther A5SETS ....u.iviiv it r et e 665,008 378,873 6,333,410

¥1,358,349 ¥1,091,800 $12,936,657

Seea accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Miltions of yen

Thousands of
U.5. dollars (Note 1)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Short-term borrowings (Notes B and 17) ..o ceeeecas e erec v e se s smr e e sreeas
Current maturities of long-term debt (Notes 9and 17) ......ccccvvinniniin i
Notes and accounts payable (Notes 10 and 16) ...c..ccocvieieecrirerircersrnrinvrrssesresseessens
Other payable {Note 3a) e et e e ee et e r s e st et ea e ee e et e e n e ereen e
ACETUBH EXPENSES ... veiieii it e vt rrmer e s rs s e e sn s e ra e s st as s se s as sharanbreeesnnsenrereararias
INCOmME taxes PAYADIE ... e
Other current Habilities it e s e snre e enn

Total current Labilities . e e e

Non-Current Liabilities:
Long-term debt, less current maturities (Notes 8 and 17} oo iviiiiiviiiiicecrnieeeees
Deferred income taxes (NOte 3b) ... e e
Severance and retirement allowance (NOtE 11) .o
Other nan-current labilities. ... e e

Total non-current HabilitiEs ..o e e e e renbrea e e s s rnenne e s srerens

Contingent Liabilities: {Note 15}

Net Assets: (Note 1
Common stock:

4)

Authorized-1,000,000,000 shares
Issued-271,283,608 shares as of March 31, 2008.........ccc.co v e

Capital surplus....

Retained @arniMngs....cciium et e
Treasury STOCK, 8t L0 . e a e e s e e s e e s e r e e e e e e e

Total shareholders’ 8QUILY ......c.oviiiiir e st e n e
Net unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes ...............
Net unrealized gains (losses) on hedging derivatives, net of taxes ...
Fareign currency transtation adjustments ......ccocccoiiiiier e

Total valuation and translation adjustments........ccccoc i

Minority interests.,

Total net assets

2008 2007 2008
¥ 311,962 ¥ 139,973 $ 2,971,067
62,026 B8.638 590,724
83,602 100,252 796,210
76,185 — 725,571
92,608 88,284 881,981
14,121 16,631 134,486
21,950 58,338 209,047
662,454 410,116 6,309,086
282,768 313,603 2,693,029
30,488 — 290,362
10,439 9,612 99,419
4,324 13,508 41,180
328,019 336,813 3,123,990
48,332 48,332 460,305
73,049 73,049 695,705
237,817 191,122 2,264,924
(2,634) (2,264) {25,086}
356,564 310,239 3,395,848
6,320 16,078 60,180

34 (184) 324
(6,567) 8,077 (62,543)
213) 23,871 (2,029)
11,625 10,661 109,762
367,876 344,871 3,503,581
¥1,358,349 ¥1,081,800  $12,936,657

OLYMPUS 2008 35



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Olympus Carporation and Censolidated Subsidiaries
Far the years anded March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Millicns of yan

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2008 2007 2006 2008
Net 8aleS ..ot et e ne s e e ee e ¥1,128,875 ¥1,061,786 ¥978,127 $10,751,190
Foe T o) - -1 - U TN 619,396 611,503 619,898 5,899,010
GrOSs PrOfit et e e e 509,479 450,283 358,229 4,852,180
Selling, general and administrative expenses.........cocovminnisnnineernnnns 396,856 357,654 295,706 3,779,580
Operating INCOME ... e et 112,623 98,729 62,523 1,072,600
Other Income {(Expenses):
INterest @XPENSE, MBL v e e (11,177 (11,256) (9,020 (106,448}
Gain {loss) on available-for-sale securities, net ........cc.cocceriniivinieen (163) (820) 116 (1,552}
Foreign currency exchange gain {loss), net 457 {4,120) {4,953) 4,352
Net loss of investment in affiliated companies carried on the equity
1= 1040 Lo T PP YU PP (2,766} {(2,394) {(1,451) (26,343)
Loss on investment in partnership (Note 3c) ...oiiiieneninin, (2,893) - — (27,552)
Gain on sales of investment securities in subsidiaries and affiliates.... 312 183 2,799 2,971
Gain on sale of beneficial interest in trust.......... — — 1,522 —
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment 1,478 — — 14,076
Net gains due to decrease in equity interest in subsidiaries................. 1,909 — — 18,181
Gain on transfer of BUSINESS ..o 300 — — 2,857
Impairment loss on fixed assets (Note 18) (1,093} (1.619) (1,411} (10,410)
Other, Net...covrecciiis {4,375) (5,103} (6,338) (41,665)
(18,011) (25,149} (19.338) {171,533)
94,612 73,580 43,187 901,067
Provision for Income Taxes: (Note 13)
Current 38,952 31,682 24,573 370,971
(2,192} {5,601) {(9,741) (20,876)
36,760 26,081 14,832 350,095
Minority interest in losses of consolidated subsidiaries ........c.cccccoveees 117 300 209 1,114
LTS A T 4 = O PSP ORISR PO ¥ 57,969 ¥ 47,799 ¥ 28,564 $ 552,088
Yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)
Amounts per Share of Common Stock:
Earnings per share-Basic...... ¥214.48 ¥176.79 ¥105.99 $2.043
-Dituted ¥214.44 ¥ — ¥ — $2.042
Cash Dividends, Applicable to the Year
ACTUAL 1. oeeeee e etteecie s re e e s e v e st em e n e e b e st ¥ 40.00 ¥ 35.00 ¥ 22.00 $0.381

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Olympus Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

{Millions of yen})

Nat Net
unraalized unrealized
holding gains gains
on available- (losses) on Foreign

Total far-gals hedging cHITanCy
Common Capital Retained Traasury sharehalders’ securities, derivatives, translation
stack surplus £4rnings stock, at cost aquity net of taxes net of taxes adjustmenis

Minority Totai
interests net assets

Shareholders’ equity at March 31, 2006
as previously reported ... ... ¥48,332 ¥73,049 ¥153,864  ¥(1,884) ¥273.361 ¥16,422 ¥ — ¥ B73

¥ — ¥290,656

Reclassification due to adoption of new accounting
standards for presentation of net assets in the

balance sheet at April 1, 2006 ............... 9,657 9,657
Net assets at April 1, 2008..........ccveeee ¥48,332 ¥73,049 ¥153,864  ¥(1,884) ¥273.361 ¥16,422 ¥ — ¥ 873 ¥ 9,657 ¥300,313
Cash dividends paid {Note) (3,921) {3,921) {3,921)
Cash dividends paid ........c.c.eerveecsriisesisieeee s (2,974) {2,974) {2,974)
Benus to directors and corporate auditors (Note)..... (137} {137) {137}
Netincome..., 47,799 47,799 47,799
Adjustment on projected benefit obligation
of the consolidated subsidiary in the UK.................. {1,066} {1,066) {1,066}
Adjustment on projected benefit obligation
of the consolidated subsidiary in the United States. (2,443) (2,443) (2,443)
Acquisition of treasury stock.......oeeieiiciiininn (380) (380) (380)
Net change initems other than shareholders’ equity (344)  {184) 7,204 1,004 7,680
Net changes duringthe year.........ccviiiinccicene — — 37,258 (380) 36,878 (344)  (18B4) 7,204 1,004 44,558
Net assets at March 31, 2007 ... .. ¥4B332 ¥73,048 ¥191,122 ¥(2,264) ¥310,239 ¥16078 ¥(184) ¥ 8,077 ¥10,661 ¥344,871
Cash dividends paid ......covvvoeecciee e (11,883} (11,883) (11,893)
Increase in retained earnings due to exclusion
of subsidiaries from consolidation..........cccovviieas. 387 387 387
Net inCome. ...t 57,969 57,969 67,969
Adjustment on projected benefit obligation
of the consolidated subsidiary in the UK.................. (465) (465) (465)
Adjustment on projected benefit obligation
of the consolidated subsidiary in the United States. 697 6597 697
Acquisition of treasury stocK ... (370) (370) (370)
Net change in items other than shareholders’ equity (9,758) 218 (14,644) 864 (23,320)
Net changes during the year — — 46,695 (370) 46,325  (9,758) 218 (14,644) 864 23,005

Balance at March 31, 2008 ........... ¥48,332  ¥73,040 ¥237,817  ¥(2,634) ¥356,564 ¥6320 ¥ 34 ¥ (6,567)

¥11,525  ¥367,876

Note: Approved as appropriations of earnings at 2006 Annual General Shareholders' Meeting,
(Thousands of L.S. Dollars) {Note 1)

Net Net
unrealized  unrealized
holding gains gains
onavailable- ({losees)on Foreign

Total for-sale hedging currency
Cemmon Capital Retained Treasury shareholders’ securities, derivatives, translation
stock surplus earnings stock, at cost equity net of taxes net of taxes adjustments

Minority Total
interests nat assets

Net assets at March 31, 2007 ...

. $460,305 $695,705 $1,820,210 $(21,562) $2,954,658 $153,123 $(1,752) $ 76,924 $101,533 $3,284,486

Cash dividends paid {113,267} {113,267} (113,267)
Increase in retained earnings due to exclusion

of subsidiaries from consolidation... 3,688 3,686 3,686
Net iNEOME..iii e 552,086 552,086 552,086
Adjustment on projected benefit abligation

of the consolidated subsidiary in the UK.................. (4,429) (4,429) (4,429)
Adjustment on projected benefit obligation

of the consolidated subsidiary in the United States. 6,638 6,638 6,638
Acquisition of treasury stock......ccoceeverrvemnsnin, (3,524) (3,524) (3,524)
Net change in items other than shareholders’ equity (92,933) 2,076 (139,467) 8,220 (222,095)
Net changes during the year — — 444,714 (3,524} 441,190 (92,933) 2,076  (138,467) 8,229 213,095

Balance at March 31, 2008

$460,305_$695,705 $2,764,924  $(25,086) $3,305,848% 60,190 $ 325 $ (62,543) $109,762 $3,503,581
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS” EQUITY

Olympus Cerperation and Consalidated Subsidiaries
For the year ended March 31, 2006

Millians of yen

Common Stock:

Balance at BEZiNNiNG OF YEAT ......ccviiviiieiniiines st es s et et ea e eas st ea et e e e e saese S5 sa S E AR RE SRR et
IS SUANCE OF COMIMION SEOCK vitivttirerrrrnsserarsrreessenneusmsaaaeasseeersaneesanaesasassesasssssssassssisssinssssntesrntenssrasssrasssasssnssssnsnssnsasinsesensnssnnass

Balance 8t N0 O YA .. ot s e AL R Ty e e

Capital Surplus
Balance at beginning of year........ceiin e

IS S UANCE OF COIMION S OCK 111ttt et eettemeeereraeereuat e eeeasisnetrean trsEraEE o £e s e aT 54 ra b s va s 4 re s aenean e e e s measnn s mn s eae semn ses 84 4dbes A4 RO a IR N R e n b et

Balance At NG OF YBAT. .. ceuiiieiiiseiireesreisar e se s rmesae et es ses s b se et ra b se b e s e 14 e e ke AR e e an s et ea Ee s e r e a4 s ma e S h e SR e ren e n e e R

Retained Earnings:

Balance at DeZiMNING Of YBAT ..o e r AR R e

NEt iNCOME [1055) e ivrerrrrreremeriariererereeerareiasraresstbsssstassrnessansssa sassmss sarrnsenanes
Decrease of retained earnings at beginning of year due to the adoption
of a new accounting standard for retirement benefits

by the consolidated subsidiary in the UK ...t e e

Cash dividends PAIT ......veo oottt e et e e ek

Bonuses for directors and corporate auditors....
Adjustment on projected benefit obligation

of the consolidated subsidiary in the UK . ... b e e

Balance At @N0 OF YBAI..c.vurive e ie et e et e e e e s e e nm e e e e e R e e AR R

Net Unrealized Holding Gains on Securities:
Balance at beginning of year ...

I I B ESE . vuvmsesmerererersessaessssssassass sassnssrmseens s sl asssansssasassnnsssansmssrmnsens bogsssssssseansasnassrnsstnnsnsssnnebebetisnesssasnibnsstantnrnnseanerernrs

BAlANCE At BNG OF PEAN...eevetircrieei it pre et e et e e e r e b e R R R R b

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments:

Balance at DEEINNING OF YRAT ..coo ettt e s rE e e

L T e =T 1= T U O U PO PSPPI

TN R LT L L LT OO P S Y PP TP PP PP R PPRSER

Treasury Stock, at Cost:

Balance at DEZINNINE OF YEAK ...iveii i e e e o b L s L ae L Ee e et
Net CRANEE IN ErEASUNY STOCK Loouiieiiiiiisi i et e R LR TS E T T oo e en s h et e e e et

BalANCE At NG OF YA (e e e s e f e em e £ e e LR RSN RS e

2006

¥ 40,833
7.499

¥ 48,332

¥ 65,550
7,499
¥ 73,049

¥133,628
28,564

(1,839)
14,008)
(34)

(2.244)
¥153,864

¥ 6,201
10,221

¥ 16,422

¥ {3.618)
4,491
¥ 873

¥ {1.652)
(232}
¥ (1,884)

See accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Olympus Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Income before provision for income taxes .. .

Adjustments to reconcile income before prowsnon for income taxes

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization.. .
Amortization of consolidated adjustment accounts (Note 3d)
Amortization of goodwill (Note 3d) ...
Increase (decrease} in severance and retlrernent allowance
Decrease (increase) in prepald PenSIoN COSY ..ovvri e
Increase (decrease) in provision for product warranties (Note 3e}...
INE@FEST IMCOME. .. i i tiee e rreee e e e e s eaeaeenesenene
Interest expense...... "
Net loss of mvestment in afflllated compames carned on the eqmty method
INOTB B oottt ee et et et ne et ameenenraens
Net gains due to decrease in equity interest in subsidiaries...
Loss {gain) on marketable and investment securities, net...
Proceed from sale of beneficial interest in trust .
Gain on sale of investment securities in subsudlanes and afﬂllates
Impairment loss on fixed assets..
Decrease (increase) in accounts receuvable
Decrease (increase) in inventories ..
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in other payable (Note Sf)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expense............
Other ..

Sub- total

Interest and dwrdend recewed
Interest payments
Income taxes paid...

Net cash provided by operatmg activities ..

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Deposits in time deposits ... e e
Withdrawals from time deposits
Purchases of securities...........cocoeevieiciaiinnen.
Sales of securities ..........ccocc i
Purchases of proper‘ty, plant and equrpment
Sales of property, plant and equipment ..
Purchases of investment securities ..............
Sales of iNvestMENt SECUNTIES ...cvvvir e srse s
Payments for acquisition of new consolidated subsidiaries (Note 20) ......
Net increase {decrease) from sales of investment in subsidiaries related
to changes in scope of consolidation.......cce v e
Payments for additional acquisition of consolidated subsidiaries
Sales of the trust beneficiary right... e
Proceeds from sales of investment in consohdated SubSldlarleS
Paymaents for loans receivable (Note 3h} ...,
Proceeds from loans receivable (Note 3h)..
Other ..

Net cash used in mvestmg activities..

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowmgs ..........................................
Proceeds from long-term debt .. s
Repayments of long-term debt ............
Proceeds from issuance of bonds ..............
Redemption of bonds..
Proceed from issuance of common stock
Stock issue to minority shareholders...............
Dividends paid...

Dividends paid to mlnorlty shareholders
Other .. .

Net cash prowded by flnancmg actlvmes

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents...

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.........ccceceieeeiieeninns
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of YEar .......ccvvvvirervimnsiensieensnnns

Net inerease in cash and cash equivalents associated
with newly consolidated subsidiaries .....c.ceceveiienncn e cesries s

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents associated with exclusion
from scope of consclidation ..

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 19)

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.5. dollars {(Note 1)

2008 2007 2006 2008
¥ 94,612 ¥ 73,580 ¥ 43,187 $ 901,067
37,522 30,404 27,022 357,352
— — 5.674 -
8,077 7.868 — 76,924
893 183 {393) 8,505
(8,757) 673 1,361 (83,400)
1,504 3,481 — 14,324
(2,728) (1.311) (977} (25,981)
13,905 12,567 9,997 132,429
2,768 - — 26,343
{1,809) — — (i18,181)
163 820 (116) 1,552
— — {1.622) —_
(312) (183) {2,199) (2,971)
1,093 1,619 1,414 10,410
(3,959) (17,432) (9,622) (37,705)
(14,316} 6,821 15,843 (136,343)
(9,230} 11,528 (15,340) (87,905)
15,932 — - 151,733
(31} 16,871 4,002 (295)
4,706 309 (830) 44,818
139,931 146,818 77.388 1,332,676
4,114 2,341 1,874 39,181
(13,864) (12,460} (9,242) (132,038}
(41,175} (28,299) (21,086) {392,143}
89,006 108,400 48,034 847,676
{38,956} {41,379) (6.244) (371,010}
41,775 6,609 6,588 397,857
— (8,365) (34,997) —
2,357 1,266 35,000 22,448
{47,953) {41,269 (44,892) (456,695)
2,306 TAA 50 21,962
(12,132) (15,405) (36,896) (115,543)
6,491 4,360 20,947 61,819
{232,234) (2,400) {12,029 (2,211,752)
197 (231) 1,431 1,876
{18,355) — (12,297) (174,810)
- — 1,686 -
608 — — 5,790
(9,912) — — (94,400)
1,544 — — 14,705
{(39) (302) {102) {371)
(304,303} (96,481} {81,755) (2,898,124)
152,797 {(20.025) 14,925 1,455,210
37,097 19,242 71,994 353,305
{(15,064) (10,141 {60,683} {143,467}
100 44,384 39,833 952
(94) {25.082) — {895)
- — 14,918 —
1,817 1,009 472 18,257
(11,893) (6.895) (4,008) (113,267)
(88) — {21} {838)
(371) (380) (232) (3,533)
164,401 2,192 77,200 1,565,724
{4,405) 1,298 1.166 {61,852)
(55,301} 15,409 45,645 (526,676)
174,802 159,307 113,625 1,664,780
578 146 46 5,505
(237} {60) {9) (2,257)
¥119,842 ¥174,802 ¥159,307 $1,141,352

Ses accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Olympus Corporatien and Congolidated Subsidiaries

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a) Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial Statements

Olympus Corporation (the "Company™) and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries maintain their accounts and records in accordance
with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Law (formerly, the Securities and Exchange Law) and
its related accounting regulations and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (*Japanese GAAP™}, which are
different in certain respects as to application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards. The accounts
of overseas subsidiaries are based on their accounting records maintained in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
prevailing in the respective countries of domicile.

The accompanying consclidated financial statements are a translation of the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company, which were prepared in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in Japan, from the accounts
and records maintained by the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries and were filed with the appropriate Local Finance Bureau of the
Ministry of Finance as required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law (formerly, the Securities and Exchange Law). In prepar-
ing the accompanying consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications (with certain expanded disclosure and the inclusion of
the consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity for 2006) have been made in the statutory Japanese language consolidated financial
statements in order to present them in a form that is more familiar to readers outside Japan.

As discussed in Note2 (f), the consolidated statement of changes in net assets for the year ended March 31, 2007 has been prepared
in accordance with the new accounting standard. The accompanying consolidated statements of shareholder’s equity for the year ended
March 31, 2006 was voluntarily prepared for the purpose of inclusion in the consolidated financial statements, although such statements
were not required to be filed with the Local Finance Bureau.

The translation of the Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollars is included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan, using
the exchange rate of ¥105 to US$1.00. The convenience translations should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen
amounts have been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into U.S. dollars at this or any other rate of exchange.

{b) Principles of Consolidation and Accounting for Investments in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its significant subsidiaries. For the year
ended March 31, 2008, the accounts of 205 (183 in 2007} subsidiaries have been included in the consolidated financial statements. All
significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidation.

The Company consolidates all significant investees which were controlled through substantial ownership of majority voting rights or
existence of certain conditions.

Investments in certain unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies in which the Company has significant influence, but less
than a controlling interest, are accounted for using the equity method. For the year ended March 31, 2008, 15 (22 in 2007) affiliates were
accounted for by the equity method. Investments in companies in which the Company does not have significant influence are accounted
for at cost. The differences between acquisition cost and underlying net equity at the time of acquisition {*goodwill”) are generally being
amortized on the straight-line method in the range of mainly 5 to 20 years.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
In preparing the consclidated statements of cash flows, cash on hand, readily - available deposits and short-term highly liquid invest-
ments with maturities not exceeding three months at the time of purchase are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

(d) Securities
In accordance with the accounting standard for financial instruments, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries examined the intent
of holding securities and classified those securities into four categories.

Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at amortized cost. Equity securities issued by non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated
companies are stated at moving-average cost. Available-for-sale securities with fair market values are stated at fair market value, and
those with no fair market values at moving-average cost. Unrealized gains and losses on these securities are reported, net of applicable
income taxes, as a separate component of the shareholders’ equity in fiscal 2006 and net assets in fiscal 2007 and 2008. Realized gain on
sale of such securities is computed using the moving-average cost method.

(e) Derivative and Hedge Accounting
Accounting standard for financial instruments requires companies to state derivative financial instruments at fair value and to recognize
changes in the fair value as gains and losses untess derivative financial instruments are used for hedging purposes.

If derivative financial instruments are used as hedges and meets hedging criteria, the Company and consolidated subsidiaries defer
recognition of gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments until the related losses and gains on
the hedged items are recognized.

{f) Inventories
Inventories are principally stated at the lower of cost (first-in first-out) or market.
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(g) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is mainly computed by the declining balance method at rates based on the
estimated useful lives of the relevant assets. The effective annual rates of depreciation as of March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

2008 2007 20086
Buildings and struCtures ........coeiiimiiin et 10.4% 7.9% B.7%
Machinery and equipment 39.5% 32.0% 33.0%

(h) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company and consclidated subsidiaries provide allowance for doubtful accounts in an amount sufficient to cover probable losses on
collection. It consists of the estimated uncollectible amount with respect to certain identified doubtful receivables and an amount calcu-
lated using the actual percentage of collection losses.

{i) Pension and Retirement Allowance Plans
Employees of the Company, certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries and foreign consolidated subsidiaries are covered by funded pension plans.

Employees of domestic consolidated subsidiaries, directors and corporate auditors of the Company and several domestic consolidated
subsidiaries are covered primarily by unfunded retirement allowance plans.

According to the approval at the Company’s Annua! Sharehotders’ Meeting on June 29, 2006, the Company terminated the policy relating
to retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors of the Company.

The amounts of pension payments and retirement allowances are generally determined on the basis of tength of service and basic sal-
ary at the time of termination of service.

It is the Company’s policy to fund amounts required to maintain sufficient plan assets to provide for accrued benefits based on a cer-
tain percentage of wage and salary costs. The plan assets consist principally of interest-bearing bonds and listed equity securities.

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries provided allowance for employees’ severance and retirement benefits at March 31, 2008
based on the amounts of projected benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets at that date. Allowance for employees’ severance
and retirement benefits was included in the liability section of the consolidated balance sheets together with severance and retirement
allowance for directors and corporate auditors as of March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006.

(i) Research and Development
Expenses relating to research and development activities are charged to income as incurred. Total amounts charged to income were
¥65,928 million ($627,886 thousand), ¥55,531 million and ¥45,935 million for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

{k) Certain Lease Transactions
Finance leases that do not transfer titles to lessees are accounted for in the same manner as operating leases.

{l) Income Taxes
The Company adopts the accounting standard that recognizes tax effects of temporary differences between the financial statement car-
rying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included
in the consolidated statements of income. The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabitities for the
expected future tax consequences of temporary differences.

In the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company adopted the consolidated taxation system designating Olympus Corporation as the par-
ent company. Some subsidiaries have applied the consolidated taxation system since before.

{m) Amounts per Share
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing income available to commeon shareholders by the weighted-average number of
commoan shares outstanding for each fiscal year. Diluted EPS is similar to basic EPS except that the weighted-average of common shares
outstanding is increased by the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the potentially dilutive common
shares had been issued. For the year ended for March 31, 2008, there were dilutive potential common shares which have resulted in a dilu-
tive effect. Accordingly, the Company’s dilutive net income per share were ¥214.44 {US$ 2.042). For the years ended for March 31 2007 and
2006, there were no dilutive common shares which have resulted in a dilutive effect. Accordingly, the Company’s basic and dilutive earn-
ings per share computations were the same for the periods presented.

Cash dividends per commaon share are the amounts applicable to the respective periods.

{n) Translation of Fareign Currency Financial Statements

In accordance with the accounting standards for foreign currency translations, assets and liabilities denominated in foreign functional
currencies are translated at exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Shareholders’ equity accounts are translated at historical exchange
rates. Revenues and expenses denominated in foreign functional currencies are translated at average exchange rates for each correspond-
ing fiscal year. Differences arising from translation are presented as “Foreign currency translation adjustments” in a separate component
of net assets as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, and of shareholders’ equity as of March 31, 20086.
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2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Accounting Standards for the Impairment of Fixed Assets
In the year ended March 31, 2006, the Company had adopted new accounting standards for the impairment of fixed assets in accordance with
“Accounting Standards for the Impairment of Fixed Assets” {("Opinion Concerning Establishment of Accounting Standards for the Impairment
of Fixed Assets,” Business Accounting Council, August 9, 2002} and “Implementation Guidance for Accounting Standards for the Impairment
of Fixed Assets,” {Accounting Standards Board of Japan, Financial Accounting Standard Implementation Guidance No. 6, Gctober 31, 2003). As
a result of changes in standards, income before income taxes decreased ¥1,411 miltion compared to the same period a year earlier.
Accumulated loss from impairment is deducted directly from the acquisition costs of the related assets in accordange with the revised
disclosure requirements.

{b) Change in Accounting Standards for Retirement Benefits in the United Kingdom Adopted by Consolidated Subsidiary in the United Kingdom
In the year ended March 31, 2006, consolidated subsidiary in the UK had adopted a new accounting standard for retirement benefits there.
The effect of this change was to decrease retained earnings by ¥4,183 million since the unrecognized net transition obligation, amounting

to ¥1,939 miliion and the unrecognized actuarial difference, amounting to ¥2,244 million were directly charged to retained earnings for the
year ended March 31, 20086. The effect on net income of the adoption of this new accounting standard was not material.

(c) Accounting Standards for Employee Retirement and Severance Benefits
By the partial amendment of “Accounting Standards for Employee Retirement and Severance Benefits” issued by Business Accounting
Council on June 18, 1998, unrecognized pension assets are allowed to be recognized as assets and profits.

In the year ended March 31, 2006, the Company adopted the partial amendment of “Corporate Accounting Standard No. 3 regarding
Employee Retirement and Severance Benefits” issued on March 16, 2005, Unrecognized pension assets are supposed to be recognized in
profit or toss as actuarial difference from the year ended March 31, 2007 onward.

{d) Accounting Standards for Bonuses to Directors and Corporate Auditors
In the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company has adopted new accounting standards for the bonuses to directors and corporate auditors
in accordance with “Accounting Standards for the Bonuses to Directors” (Corporate Accounting Standard No. 4 regarding the bonuses to
directors and corporate auditors issued on November 29, 2005).

The effect on net income of the adoption of this new accounting standard was not material.

(e) Accounting Standards for Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance Sheet

In the year ended March 31,2007, the Company has adopted new accounting standards, “Accounting Standard for Presentation of Net
Assets in the Balance Sheet” (Statement No. 5 issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan on December 9, 2005}, and the imple-
mentation guidance for the accounting standard for presentation of net assets in the balance sheet (the Financial Accounting Standard
Implementation Guidance No. 8 issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan on December 9, 2005).

As of March 31, 2007, the consolidated balance sheets were prepared according to the new accounting standards comprising three
sections: assets, liabilities and net assets. The consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006 prepared pursuant to the previous pre-
sentation rules comprises assets, liabilities, minority interests and shareholders’ equity sections. Under the new accounting standards,
the following items were presented differently at March 31, 2007 compared to March 31, 2006. The net assets section includes net unreal-
ized losses on hedging derivatives, net of taxes. Under the previous presentation rules, net unrealized losses on hedging derivatives, net
of taxes, were included in the assets or liabilities sections without considering the related income tax effects. Minority interests were
included in the net assets section at March 31, 2007. Under the previous presentation rules, companies were required to present minor-
ity interests between the non-current liabilities and the shareholders’ equity sections. The adoption of the new accounting standard had
no impacts on the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended March 31, 2007. Alse, if the new accounting standards had not
been adopted at March 31, 2007, shareholders’ equity amounting to ¥334,334 million would have been presented.

(f) Accounting Standards for Statement of Changes in Net Assets

in the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company has adopted the new accounting standard, “Accounting Standard for Statement of Changes
in Net Assets” (Statement No. 6 issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan on December 27, 2005}, and the implementation guid-
ance for the accounting standard for statement of changes in net assets (the Financial Accounting Standard Implementation Guidance No.
9 issued by the Accounting Standards Board of Japan on December 27, 2005).

The Company prepared the accompanying consolidated statement of changes in net assets for the year ended March 31, 2007 in accor-
dance with the new accounting standards. The accompanying consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity for the year ended March 31,
2006, which was voluntarily prepared for inclusion in the consolidated financial statements, has not been adapted to the new presentation
rules of 2007.

(g) Accounting Standards for Business Combination and Business Separation

In the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company has adopted “Accounting Standards for Business Combinations” (Business Accounting
Council, October 31, 2003} and “Accounting Standards for Business Separation” (Corporate Accounting Standard No. 7 regarding “the busi-
ness separation” issued on December 27, 2005) and “Implementation Guidance for Accounting Standards for Business Combinations and
separation” {(Accounting Standards Board of Japan, Financial Accounting Standards Implementation Guidance No. 10, December 9, 2005},
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(h) Change in Accounting Standards for Retirement Benefits in the United States Adopted by Consolidated Subsidiaries in the United States
In the year ended March 31, 2007, consolidated subsidiaries in the United States, have adopted a new accounting standard for retirement
benefits in the United States.

The effect of this change was to decrease retained earnings by ¥2,443 million since the unrecognized actuarial difference amounting to
¥2,443 million was directly charged to retained earnings for the year ended March 31, 2007. The adoption of this new accounting standard
has ng impact on net income.

(i) Depreciation of Fixed Assets
In accordance with the changes of tax code intraduced in the 2007 tax reform (Law Concerning Partial Revision of the Income Tax Law (Law
No. 8, March 30, 2007) and the Law Concerning Partial Revision of the Enforcement Regulations of the Corporation Tax Law (Government
Ordinance No. 83, March 30, 2007)), from the current fiscal year concerning the depreciation of tangible fixed assets acquired on and after
Aprit 1, 2007, the method of computing depreciation expenses have been changed te the new regulation.

The effect which this change has on the consolidated statements of income was not material.

3. RECLASSIFICATIONS

{Consolidated Balance Sheets)

(a) Other Payable

In the year ended March 31, 2008, “Other Payable”, formerly included in Other current liabilities of CURRENT LIABILITIES was shown as an
independent item. The amount of “Other Payable” included in Other current liabilities of CURRENT LIABILITIES in fiscal 2007 was ¥39,736
million.

(b) Deferred income taxes

in the year ended March 31, 2008, “Deferred income taxes”, formerly included in Other non-current liabilities of NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
was shown as an independent item. The amount of “Deferred income taxes” included in Other ngn-current liabilities of NON-CURRENT
LIABILITIES in fiscal 2007 was ¥9,167 million.

{Consolidated Statements of income)

(c) Loss on investment in partnership

In the year ended March 31, 2008, “Loss on investment in partnership”, formerly included in Other, net of OTHER INCOME {(EXPENSES) was
shown as an independent item. The amount of “Loss on investment in partnership” included in Other, net of OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) in
fiscal 2007 was ¥463 million.

{Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows)

{d) Amortization of consolidated adjustment accounts and goodwill

In the year ended March 31, 2007, amortization of consolidated adjustment accounts and goodwill were shown as “Amortization of good-
will” on the cash flow statement. The amount of amertization of goodwill included in depreciation and amartization expenses in fiscal 2006
was ¥213 million.

(e) Increase (decrease) in provision for product warranties

In the year ended March 31, 2007, “Increase (decrease) in provision for product warranties”, formerly included in Other of cash flows from
operating activities, was shown as an independent item. The amount of Increase (decrease) in provision for product warranties included in
Other of cash flows from operating activities in fiscal 2006 was ¥1,345 million.

(f) Increase (decrease) in other payable

In the year ended March 31, 2008, “Increase (decrease) in other payable”, formerly included in other of cash flows from operating activities,
was shown as an independent item. The amount of “Ingrease in other payable” included in other of cash flows from operating activities in
fiscal 2007 was ¥8,271 million.

(g) Net loss of investment in affiliated companies carried on the equity method

In the year ended March 31, 2008, “Net loss of investment in affiliated companies carried on the equity method®, formerly included in Other
of cash flows from operating activities, was shown as an independent item. The amount of “Net loss of investment in affiliated companies
carried on the equity method” included in other of cash flows from operating activities in fiscal 2007 was ¥2,394 million.

(h) Payments for loans receivable and Proceeds from loans receivable

In the year ended March 31, 2008, “Payments for loans receivable” and “Proceeds from loans receivable”, formerly included in Other of cash
flows from investment activities, were shown as independent items. The amount of “Payments for loans receivable” and “Proceeds from
loans receivable” inctuded in other of cash flows from investment activities in fiscal 2007 were ¥768 million and ¥544 million, respectively.
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4. SECURITIES

The following tables summarize acquisition costs, book values and fair value of securities with fair value as of March 31, 2008 and 2007:

Available-for-sale securities
Securities with book value (fair value) exceeding acquisition cost.

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2008 2007 2008
Acquisition Boak Acquisition Book Acquisition Book
cost Value Difference cost Value  Difference cost Value Difference
Equity securities .............. ¥ 25,230 ¥ 40,802 ¥15,572 ¥ 39,762 ¥ 63,745 ¥23.983 $ 240,286 $ 388,590 $148,304
Others ...uvvrereeerereereenenns 96,077 98,339 2,262 96,078 97,987 1,909 915,019 936,562 21,543
Total .occvevrnirrerrenrerenrenneene. ¥121,307 ¥139,141 ¥17.834 ¥135,840 ¥161,732 ¥25,892 $1,155,305 $1,325,152 $169,847
Securities with book value (fair value) not exceeding acquisition cost.
Millions of yen Thousands of U.5. dollars
2008 2007 2008
Acquisition Book Acquisitian Book Acquisition Book
cost Valug Difference cost Value Difference cost Value Difference
Equity securities .............. ¥31,835 ¥24,632  ¥(6,903) ¥12.456  ¥11.410 ¥(1,046) $300,333 $234,590 $(65,743)
Others ..o 1,864 1,193 (671} 2,327 2,259 (68) 17,763 11,362 (6,391)

Total ., ¥33,399 ¥25,825 ¥(7,574) ¥14,783

¥13.669 ¥(1,114)

$318,086  $245,952 $(72,134)

Note : The Cempany recognizes impairment loss when the fair market value of marketable and investment securities comes down to less than 50% of the acquisition cost
at the end of the period. In addition, the loss is also recognized when the fair market value declines more than 30% but less than 50%, unless the recovery of the fair
market value is reasonably expected under the market conditions, trends of earnings and other key measures.

The following table summarizes book values of securities not stated at fair value as of March 31, 2008 and 2007:

Available-for-sale securities

Non-listed equity SECUTTIES ..o s e e
Non-listed foreign BORdS. ... s
L0141 - PP U RSO PPV PR

Book value

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.5. dollars

2008 2007 2008

........... ¥17,008 ¥12,802 $161,981
........... 404 9,928 3,848
........... 2,657 5,037 25,306
........... ¥20,069 ¥27,767 $191,135

Maturities of available-for-sale securities were as follows:

Millions of yen

2008
Over a year Over five years
but within but within
Within a year five years ten years Total

Government BoNdS ... ¥ 3 - ¥ — ¥ 3
COrporate BONGS. .ccuvviveeeiee i e e e s rma e s e b abe s st nesne — 358 -_ 358
L0 PP U PPPPPS — 1,779 520 2,299
Total ... ¥3 ¥ 2,137 ¥520 ¥2,660
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Millions of yen

2007
Over a year Over five years
but within but within
Within a year five years ten years Total

Government bhonds ¥ — ¥ 3 ¥ — ¥ 3
Corporate bonds......ccoic i, 5903 487 4,021 10,381
01T T - OO PR SURTOON 2,444 1,794 364 4,602
L= - L O SO PSUTUPU ¥8,347 ¥2.254 ¥4,385 ¥14,986

Thousands of U.5. dollars

2008
Qver a year Over five years
but within but within
Within a year five years ten years Total
GOVEINMENT DONOS ...ooeeeecereereiessitrs st ae s b ettt bssse bt s besensmesnnseesssnsessanrenas $ 29 $ — $ — % 29
COrporate DONAS..... ...ttt cre e rer e e e s e e e e e e aaeanr e ebsssens — 3,410 —_ 3,410
L0 ¢ 111 £ 3 Uy — 16,942 4,952 21,894
TOLAL oo e e e e e v e e s aeran s e aeeanrnr b ene st stenes $ 29 $20,352 $4,952 $25,333
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates was as follows:
Book value
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2008 2007 2008
INVESEMENT SECUIMTIBS .. uiiiiirrirrerieririrr st s re st et et tertte bt eessaesessessa s e s s s basssaanres ¥8,811 ¥21,815 $83,914
L0 T T T - ST O OO UU RO UR U TUR PPN — 1,054 —
TOUAL 1ottt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ae e ae e e e e e rea e rreererrenes P ¥8,811 ¥72.869 $83,914

5. BUSINESS INCUBATION SECURITIES AND BUSINESS INCUBATION SECURITIES IN AFFILIATES

Business incubation securities and business incubation securities in affiliates that were held by subsidiaries of the Company were
included in investment securities on the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, Business incubation securities
amount to ¥4,762 million ($45,352 thousand) and ¥9,316 million, respectively. Business incubation securities in affiliates amount to ¥2,012
million {$18,162 thousand) and ¥3,645 million, respectively.

6. NOTES AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Notes and accounts receivable as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.5. dollars

2008 2007 2008
¥ 1,637 ¥ 2,066 $ 15,590
191,918 190,788 1,827,791
¥193,555 ¥192,855 $1,843,381

7. INVENTORIES

Inventories as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S5. dollars

2008 2007 2008
Finished 0008 ... s e e sae s e s mr e oo s e emn oo ¥ 69,823 ¥62,108 $ 664,981
Work in process and raw materials ..o e s 41,001 27,739 390,486
TOUAL et ts s e e s E e e e e oA a b be b e tea s hmnenee et rRreren s e asnraRraen ¥110,824 ¥89,847 $1,055,467
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8. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings, which consist principally of bank loans. The annual interest rates on these borrowings ranged from 1.00% to
13.40% and from 0.58% to 13.40% as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

9. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen .8, dollars
2008 2007 2008
(Unsecured long-term deht}
0.80% yen bonds, due July 2008 ....c.coiiivimiiiiiineni e e ¥ 30,000 ¥ 30,000 $ 285,714
0.84% yen bonds, due October 2009 ... e e 20,000 20,000 190,476
0.71% yen bonds, due July 2070 ..o e 20,000 20,000 190,476
1.09% yen bonds, due July 2012 ... s 20,000 20,000 190,476
1.94% yen bonds, due March 2017 ... e 20,000 20,000 180,476
1.69% yen bonds, due March 2014 ... 15,000 15,000 142,857
1.98% yen bonds, due September 2016 .....covviiervimmie i 10,000 10,000 95,238
1.16% loan from a Japanese bank, due December 2008.........ccccominiiii s, 20,000 20,000 190,476
1.52% loan from a Japanese bank, due October 20171 ....ocvivivviirvinivsin i, 25,000 25,000 238,095
1.54% loan from a Japanese bank, due September 2011 20,000 20,000 190,478
0.92% loan from a Japanese bank, due July 2011 ..., 10,000 10,000 95,238
1.90% loan from a Japanese bank, due March 2011.............ocveee 10,000 10,000 95,238
1.61% loan from a Japanese bank, due September 2012 .....ccoiiiiiiiiniiinniaceeeneeens 10,000 10,000 95,238
2.16% loan from a Japanese bank, due March 2013, e 10,000 10,000 95,238
1.34% loan from a Japanese bank, due March 2017, 20,000 20,000 190,476
1.89% loan from a Japanese bank, due March 2016.......cccccooi i, 20,000 — 190,476
1.51% loan from a Japanese bank, due March 2015, 10,000 — 95,238
LT T T T s - TN 5,588 5,574 53,314
Others from foreign banks ... e 4,612 5,360 43,924
Others fram Japanese banks ...t e e 42,668 48,980 406,362
(Secured long-term debt)
Others from foreign banks................. 1,106 1,147 10,533
Others from Japanese banks 810 1,180 7,718
344,794 322,241 3,283,753

LSS~ CUMTRNT MATUFTEIES .evvuvieerreroneeresiseaassnseeseseassseseseassneneerasnsesnnsstsessinsssnsnssnssssnnnsons (62,026) (8.638) (590,724)

¥282,768 ¥313,603 $2,693,029

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt subsequent to March 31, 2008 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2009 ¥ 62,026 $ 590,724
2010 35,211 335,343
2011 69,792 664,686
2012 57,464 547,276
2013 .. 43,031 409,819
Thereafter......... 77,270 735,906

¥344,794 $3,283,753
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10. NOTES AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Notes and accounts payable as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2008 2007 2008
¥ 433 ¥ 379 $ 4,124
83,169 99,873 792,086
¥83,602 ¥100,252 $796,210

11. SEVERANCE AND RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries adopted accounting standards for employees' severance and retirement benefits, under
which the liabilities and expenses for severance and retirement benefits are determined based on the amounts obtained by actuarial
calculations.

The liabilities for severance and retirement allowance included in the liability section of the consolidated balance sheets as of March
31, 2008 and 2007, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of yen .S, dollars
2008 2007 2008

Projected benefit obligation ......cccocciiciviiinnninisinisnenn. ¥ 124,004 ¥ 123,455 $ 1,180,990
Unrecognized prior service costs... 1,874 2,740 17,848
Unrecognized actuarial differance.........cccveciveevieeeciiecneccce e {9,008) 4,397 {85,772)
Fair value of pension SSELS ........ccoiie v e re e se e s e e sesimnnns (121,823) (128,247) (1,161,171)
Prepaid pension @XPenSes. .........cccceieercirrirerressesrinneenessssreremreerssrsrnsneesseas 15,368 7,184 146,362
Allowance for employees’ severance and retirement benefits ......c.ccoccvveiieieeicinn e, 10,317 - 9,529 98,257
Severance and retirement allowance for directors and corporate auditors.........c.cee.ee 122 83 1,162
Total severance and retirement AllOWENCE ... ¥ 10,439 ¥ 9,612 $ 99419

Included in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, were employees’ severance and retire-
ment benefit expenses comprising the following:

Thausands of

Millions of yen U.8. dollars
2008 2007 2008

Service costs - benefits earned during the Year.........ccoveorercicereen e ¥ 6,403 ¥ 6,435 $60,981
Interest cost on projected benefit OblIgation . ....ccc i 3,638 3.462 34,648
Expected return on plan 8SSetS ..o e st {6,101) (5.515) (58,105)
Amortization of actuarial difference ... 539 2,686 5,133
Amortization of Prior SEIVICE COBTS couiviiiiiniiiieiiieii et eeee e e e e e e e e enaee e e s aaeseasaeneeeas (772) (1,116) {7,352)
Severance and pension benefit eXPenSesS ..o i iee e e ¥ 3,707 ¥ 5952 $ 35,305

The discount rates used by the Company were mainly 2.0% in fiscal 2008 and 2007. The rate of expected return on plan assets used by the
Company is mainly 4.0% in fiscal 2008 and 2007. The estimated amount of all retirement benefits to be paid at the future retirement date
is allocated equally to each service year using the estimated number of total service years. Prior service costs were recognized as expense
(or income) in equal amounts over mainly five years in fiscal 2008 and 2007, and actuarial gains (or losses) were recognized as income (or
expense) in equal amounts over mainly five years in fiscal 2008 and 2007.
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12. STOCK OPTION PLANS

A summary of information regarding the consolidated subsidiaries stock option plans for the year ended March 31, 2008 was as follows:

ITX Corperation

Other consclidated subsidiaries

Qualified beneficlaries ... D iFeECtOrs
1 corporate auditor
91 employees

6 directors of subsidiaries

of ITX Carporation

Class and number of shares of common stock for which new subscription

rights were 0ffered ... oo Commoeon stock
5,795

Date of rights granted ... s From Qctober 6, 2005
to April 28, 2006

Pariod of exercise of rights . ..o From June 24, 2007

Number of options before vested

MArEh 31, 2007 ... icicieeriertieerersemreeesrernseresrassrnaresesrnaese s meseesanasmesansonces
GTANLEA ot tv s e rab e e st ae s e s r e e s rnrn e ne b e s s sr e aa e s e bR b en
LS e e
LT Y- T o [ O PO
MArch 31, 2008 ...covvverivereeeee e eeiice e seeseeeseeeceanama b esssbasserenassssrnsssnanins
Number of options vested

March 31, 2007 ..o et s e rrra s raar st se s arsyss s s aesem e n
Vested .............

Exercised.........

Lapsed...

March 31 2008
For stock options exermsed dunng the year:
Exercise price {yen)...
Average price of common stock at the date of exercise (yen)
For stock options outstanding at the end of the year:
EXEICISE PrICE (YEN) eeiiiirei i sreerseecmie e s e me e sr e e bbb s st

to June 23, 2010

5,050

5,050

5,050

580
4,470

¥ p—
¥ J—

¥267,413

39 directors

5 corporate auditors

498 employees

3 directors of subsidiaries
29 employees of subsidiaries
6 external coagents

Comrmon stock

23,832

From April 25, 2005

to September 28, 2007
From QOctober 1, 2005
to March 31, 2019

11,600
4,276
1,008
8,647
6,221

5,007
8,647
70

359
13,225

¥50,000
¥50,000

¥45760

One of the other consolidated subsidiaries completed a 2-for-1 stock split by way of a free share distribution at the year ended March

31, 2008, The number of options and exercise price in the avobe information reflect from the stock split.

The fairly evaluated unit value on the stock option of the other consolidated subsidiaries was evaluated by the intrinsic value per unit
for the year ended March 31, 2008. The evaluation methods utilized by the consolidated subsidiaries were net equity value method, cash

flow method, or other methods which were optimum at the evaluation dates.

The total intrinsic value of the stock options was ¥31 million ($295 thousand) at the year ended March 31, 2008.
The total intrinsic value of the stock options exercised during the year was ¥- million ($- thousand) at the date of exercise.
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A summary of information regarding the consolidated subsidiaries stock option plans for the year ended March 31, 2007 was as follows:

ITX Carporation Other consolidated subsidiaries
Qualified beneficiaries ... rcirrrrrsssrr e e sneness. 3 directors 29 directors
1 corporate auditor 4 corporate auditors
91 employees 372 employees

Class and number of shares of common stock for which new subscription
rights were offered ...

Date of rights granted.......cociiii e
Period of exercise of rights .......ccoiiiiiiiinie e s

EXBICISE PriCE (YN .ocviviririesneniirrrnsrarissareeessrmssesan s ssrnsseasesarassossassseanessnne

Number of options before vested

MArCh 371, 2008 ... .. orverrrereireritriers e crssss s e istasrastrntsaasaessesssnsensarmsrarenee
GRANTEA. .. terr et ss e s v e r e n e ee s ae s ar s e n s s na s ee e ar e e eae s e e eneens
[T o= LT« OSSN
R L - o [ O U UO O U P UN
MaTCR 37, 2007 ... ettt ee e s er e seee s mmaen e s sassarsemassevasbabasaas

Number of options settled

March 37, 2006.......ccccmmmmmiimir s e

Vested..............
Exercised..
Lapsed.............
March 31, 2007
For stock options outstanding at the end of the year:

EXETCISE PriCe [YEN)  ccriioriii i rsrerccrenn e s s ias st se s raa e srmnesarensaren

6 directors of subsidiaries
of ITX Corporation

Common stock

5,795

From October 6, 2005
to April 28, 2006
From June 24, 2007
teJune 23,2010
¥266,859

5,190
455
585

5,050

¥266,859

3 directors of subsidiaries
29 employees of subsidiaries
6 external coagents

Common stock
19,556

From April 25, 2005
to November 15, 2006
From May 1, 2007

to June 27,2017
¥42,565

7,389
8,841
1,219
4,400
10,591

607
4,400

5,007

¥42,565

The fairly evalvated unit value on the stock option of the other consolidated subsidiaries was evaluated by the intrinsic value per unit
for the year ended March 31, 2007. The evaluation methods utilized by the consolidated subsidiaries were net equity value method, cash
flow method, or other methods which were optimum at the evaluation dates.

The total intrinsic value of the stock options was ¥19 million at the year ended March 31, 2007.

13. INCOME TAXES

Income taxes applicable to the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries consist of corporate tax, inhabitant tax and enterprise
tax, which in the aggregate resulted in normal statutory rates of approximately 40.7% for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2Q06.
Income taxes of foreign consolidated subsidiaries are based generally on tax rates applicable in their countries of incorporation.

The following table summarizes the significant differences between the statutory tax rate and the Company's effective tax rate for con-
solidated financial statement purposes for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006.

Japanese statutory tax rate..
Non-deductible expanses........
Effect of foreign tax rate dlfferences
Increase (decrease) of allowance for evaluatlon

Tax deduction for research and development............cccoeciiiiniiinn
Amortization of consclidated adjustment accounts ..........ccoeeerevvvrecninees

Amortization of goodwill

014, T= T 201 -1 ST

Effective tax rate....

2008 2007 2006

40.7% 40.7% 40.7%
1.2 2.1 8.3
(0.8) (2.5) (1.0)
(2.2) (1.0) (16.5)
..................... (4.0) (6.6) 3.9)
..................... — — 5.3
3.7 3.6 —
0.2 (0.9) 1.4

38.8% 35.4% 34.3%

OLYMPUS 2008

49




Significant components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2008 z0a7 2008
Deferred income tax assets

IVEIEOIEES ... oeeeseeeeeeaeesesetssssrsesrarnssassssnssassnsssassesensnnsin shseseabbesonbatasvansansenssnasassnessnrns ¥ 9,123 ¥ 7.536 $ 86,886
Prepaid BXPENSES. ... ccciiiuiiiiiiiii it resass s trs s ns o bbe e s ga s ae e e s s ae s s s n s e snn e st e st s e eneeann 9,478 7.097 90,267
Accrued bonuses .. 5,877 5,401 55,871
Unrealized mtercompany prof|ts 8,019 7.205 76,371
Depreciation of property, plant and equnpment........ 4,955 4,203 47,190
Depreciation of |ntang|ble AS5BLS..niiiir i 11,340 12,631 108,000
Deferred assets .. 436 257 4,152
Severance and retirement allowances 3,164 3,126 30,133
Securities .. TN 3,175 3,643 30,238
Deficit carrled forward 16,223 11,499 154,505
[0 10T U O TSRO TOOTOPIO) 6,025 10.835 57,382
Subtotal 77,815 73,433 741,095
Allowance for evaluation................ {21,155} (21.475) (201,476)
Total deferred income tax assets 56,660 51,858 539,619
Net unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes ................ (3,715} {8,787) (35,381)
Prepaid pension BXPENSES ...uieri e i itreissets i sas e sarbr s s n s s s s s e s nasm e s s sreerrens (4,409) (3,390) (41,990)
Basis differences in assets acquired and liabilities assumed upon acquisition.......... (30,918) — {294,457)
{3,728) (7,154) {35,486}
(42,768) {19,331) (407,314}

¥ 13,892 ¥ 32,627 $132,305

14. NET ASSETS

The Japanese Corporate Law (“the Law") became effective on May 1, 2008, replacing the Japanese Cammercial Code (“the Code”). The Law
is generally applicable to events and transactions occurring after April 30, 2006 and for fiscal years ending after that date.

Under Japanese laws and regulations, the entire amount paid for new shares is required to be designated as common stock. However,
a company may, by a resolution of its board of directors, designate an amount not exceeding one-half of the price of the new shares as
additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital surplus.

Under the Law, in cases where a dividend distribution of surplus is made, the smaller of an amount equal to 10% of the dividend or the
excess, if any, of 25% of commeon stock over the total of additional paid-in capital and legat earnings reserve must be set aside as addi-
tional paid-in capital or legal earnings reserve. Legal earnings reserve is included in retained earnings in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets.

Under the Code, companies were required to set aside an amount equal to at least 10% of the aggregate amount of cash dividends and
other cash appropriations as legal earnings reserve until the total of legal earnings reserve and additional paid-in capital equaled 25% of
common stock.

Under the Code, legal earnings reserve and additional paid-in capital could be used to eliminate or reduce a deficit by a resolution of
the shareholders’ meeting or could be capitalized by a resolution of the board of directors. Under the Law, both of these appropriations
generally require a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

Additional paid-in capital and legal earnings reserve may not be distributed as dividends. Under the Code, however, on condition that
the total amount of legal earnings reserve and additional paid-in capital remained equal to or exceed 25% of common stock, they were
available for distribution by resolution of the shareholders’ meeting. Under the Law, all additional paid-in capital and all legal earnings
reserve may be transferred to other capital surplus and other retained earnings, respectively, which are potentially available for dividends.

The maximum amount that the Company can distribute as dividends is calculated based on the non-consolidated financial statements
of the Company in accardance with Japanese laws and regulations.

50 OLYMPUS 2008




A summary of information regarding the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended March 31, 2008 was as follows:

Total number and class of shares issued and treasury stock

Class of Shares

As of the end of the

previcus consolidated

fiscal year
{Number of shares)

Increase in the
current fiscal
year

{Number of shares)

Decrease in the
current fiscal
year

(Number of shares)

As of the end of the
current consolidated
fiscal year
{Number of shares)

Shares issued

Treasury Stock
Common stock (Note 1)

271,283,608
271,283,608

961,805
961,805

82,635
82,635

271,283,608
271,283,608

1,044,440
1,044,640

1. The increase in the number of shares in common stock of treasury stock, 82,635 shares is due to the purchase of stock less than unit share,

Dividends
Dividend paid
Amount of Dividend
dividend paid per share
Resolution Class of sharas  (Millions of yen) (Yen) Record Date Effective date
General Shareholders' Meeting (June 28, 2007)...........c... Common Stock ¥6,488 ¥24.00 March 31, 2007 June 29, 2007

{Thousands of

U.S. dollars}

(U.S. doltars)

$61,790 $0.23
Amount of Dividend
dividend paid per share
Resolution Clags of shares  {Millions of yen) (Yen) Record Date Effective date
Board of Directors {(November 6, 2007} ......cccvnnennnnns Common Stock ¥5,405 ¥20.00 September 30, 2007  December 7, 2007
{Thousands of
U.5. doltars)  {U.5.dollars)
$51,476 $0.19
Dividends resolved during the current period that will be effective after the period-end
Amount of Dividend
dividend paid per share
Resolution Class of shares  (Millions of yen} Funds of distribution  {Yen) Record Date Effective date
General Shareholders' Meeting (June 27, 2008)...... Common Stock ¥5,405 Retained earnings ¥20.00 March 31,2008 June 30, 2008
{Thousands of
U.8. dollars) {U.8. dellars)
$51,476 $0.19

A summary of information regarding the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net assets for the year ended March 31,2007 was as follows:

Total number and class of shares issued and treasury stock

As of the end of the Increase in the Decrease in the As of the end of the
Class of Shares previous consolidated current fiscal current fiscal current consolidated
fiscal year year year fiscal year
(Number of shares) {Number of shares) {Number of sharas) {Number of shares)
Shares issued
COMMON SEOCK .evvvurrerereerneeeareeieseneeeeiarerersrerssrneesssaresssssenean 271,283,608 — — 271,283,608
TOLAL ettt et et s 271,283,608 — — 271,283,608
Treasury Stock
Common stock (Note 1) ..ot 856,534 105,271 — 961,805
TOTAL e 856,634 105,271 — 861,805

1.The increase in the number of shares in common stock of treasury stock, 105,271 shares 1s due to the purthase of stock lass than unit share.
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Dividends
Dividend paid

Amount of Dividend
dividend paid per share
Resolution Class of shares  {Millions of yen) (Ven) Record Date Effective date
General Shareholders’ Meeting (June 29, 2006;................ Common Stock ¥3,921 ¥14.50 March 31, 2006 June 30, 2006
Amourit of Dividend
dividend paid per share
Resolution Class of shares  (Millions of yen) (Yen) Record Date Effective date
Board of Directors (Navermnber 7, 2008} ......c.ocevvemerevcseereeen. GOmmon Stock ¥2.974 ¥11.00 September 30,2006  Decermber 8, 2006

Dividends resolved during the current period that will be effective after the period-end

Amount of Dividend

dividend paid Funds of per share
Resolution Class of shares  (Miltions of yen) distribution (Yen) Record Date Effective date
General Shareholders’ Meeting (June 28, 2007)...... Common Stock ¥6,488 Retained earnings ¥24.00 March 31,2007 June 28, 2007

15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries were contingently liable for notes and bills discounted of ¥1,417 million ($13,495 thousand)
and ¥3,179 million as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively endorsed of ¥153 million ($1,457 thousand) and ¥179 million as of March

31, 2008 and 2007. The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries were also contingently liable as guarantors of borrowings, primarily

for housing loans to employees, amounting to ¥331 million ($3,152 thousand) and ¥391 million, and secondly for borrowing from banks to
subsidiaries, amounting to ¥2,240 million ($21,333 thousand) and ¥1,928 million as of March 31, 2008 and 2007.

16. TRADE NOTES MATURING ON BANK HOLIDAYS AT THE END OF YEAR

As financial institutions in Japan were closed on March 31, 2007, trade notes maturing on March 31,2007 were accounted for as if they
were settled at that date.
The amount of trade notes maturing as at March 31, 2007 was as follows:

Milliens of yen

Tra0E NOTESE FBCEIVADIE couvviiiiii i cieieeiis i sctavieesresessr meeen e s mmeaeseasmaeeeee s e tbaebe 40 ot aa R A e AL e E 44 R AR R R E8Eo s P4 R E A BT P 5 mm s e ee e aan sramnneennsrnsbadsd ¥ 580
TrAOE MOLES PAYADLE ..ot eeirii ettt ey rreredrr b1 b e e he e e et e e s L e et e esa s sre e e A b s R AT AR SR E R E RS TR R g ettt e et 1,434

17. PLEDGED ASSETS

The following assets were pledged as collateral for short-term borrowings and long-term debt as of March 31, 2008 and 2007

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.5. dollars

2008 2007 2008
Cash and tiMeE DEPOSILS «.veveeareeereereeie s s eraa st sms s s ¥ 513 ¥ 596 $ 4,886
Accounts receivable .....cooecoee i 490 509 4,667
INVENTONIES covvvereirrerererrem e rermcmeemmees 294 306 2,800
Buildings and structures .........ccc...... 1,660 2,047 15,810
Machinery and equipment 276 286 2,629
[T LT« IO OO OSSN 1,861 1,881 17,724
Investment securities.. 81 88 770
Other assets — 30 _
¥5,175 ¥ 5,743 $49,286

The obligations secured by such collateral were as follows:

Thousands of

Milliens of yen U.S. dollars

2008 2007 2008
Long-term debl ... e ¥ 663 ¥2,327 $ 8,314
Current maturities of long-term debt.......cccon e 1,253 — 11,933
ShorE=-tE@rmM BOFFOWINES .vciireraiiirirriesirirsieseesstee s st e e e st e st e s st s se s am e s ne e oo 139 770 1,324
¥2,055 ¥3,097 $19,571
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18. LOSS ON IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS

The loss on impairment of fixed assets that the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries recorded for the years ended March 31, 2008,

2007 and 2006 were as follows:

{For the year ended March 31, 2008)

Thousands of
Use Type of assets Location Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Assets used for Life Science Business Goodwill Munich, Germany ¥1,058 $10,076
Idle properties Building Tokyo and others 35 334
Total ¥1,093 $10,410

{For the year ended March 31, 2007)

Use Type of assots Location Millions of yen
Assets used for Life Science Business Goodwill Munster, Germany ¥ 247
Assets used for Information Goodwill Tokyo, Fukuoka 435
and Communication Business Building and others 188
Assets used for others business Goodwill Nagano and others 269

Machinery and Equipment 24
Idle properties Land Nagano 255

Building 201
Total ¥1,619
{For the year ended March 31, 2006)
Use Type of assaets Location Mitlions of yen
Assets used for Information Consolidated adjustment accounts Tokyo ¥1,331
and Communication Business and other intangible assets

Buildings and structures Tokyo and others 32
Assets used for other business Other intangible assets Tokyo 36
idle properties Land Shiga 12
Total ¥1,611

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries classified fixed assets into the groups of the business segments. The idle properties are

considered to constitute a group.

For assets for business use were not expected to make a profit constantly because of the degradation of the business environment. As
a result, carrying amounts of assets for business use were devaluated to their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amounts were calcu-
lated on the basis of utility value, with future cash flows discounted by 15% in fiscal 2008, mainly 6.5% or 5.9% in fiscal 2007 and 6.6% in

fiscal 2006.

Carrying amounts of idle properties were devaluated to their recoverable amounts, owing to substantial decline in the fair market
value. The recoverable amounts were estimated by net realizable value of fixed assets which were calculated based on net selling price in
fiscal 2008 and 2007, and by assessed value of fixed assets which were reflected in market price in fiscat 2006.

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Reconciliations of cash and time deposits shown in the consolidated balance sheets and cash and cash equivalents shown in the consoli-
dated statements of cash flows as of March 31,2008, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yan U.S. dollars
2008 2007 2006 2008
Cash and time dePositS ..o ierrrcreernrrnrierersin s reereereerssrrerreressnssnnees ¥158,281 ¥216,586 ¥166,720 $1,507,438
Less: Time deposits with maturities over three months........cccc..ccovvnnne (38,439) {41.794) (6,423} (366,086}
Cash equivalents included in marketable SECUNItIES ...cocvevveeeiecereeirene — 10 10 —
Cash and cash equUIValENTS ....cccov e e reie et sn s v nrre e s s e ¥119,842 ¥174,802 ¥159,307 $1,141,352
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20. CASH FLOW FROM ACQUISITION OF CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Details of assets and liabilities when Gyrus Group PLC and other subsidiaries were consolidated, acquisition costs of shares, and pay-

ments for acquisition of Gyrus Group PLC for the year ended March 31, 2008 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Notes and acCounts FECEIVADBLE. ... ..ccooi i e e e et e s e e ¥ 78M $ 72,486
INVENEOTIES o 10,033 95,552
Other current assets ...oveevecrerrciceraerennes 11,535 109,857
Property, plant and equipment.......ccccovin e, 7,508 71,505
GOOAWILL .. ettt rr e e s e e e s er e s rnre e s re s s a0 sesae b e shm b s et aa s E e R Rt s s e r e shnn e e basbaRet e nrmaenanarns 208,450 1,985,238
Otherassets...cocooveiirrcrerrericenes 87,591 834,199
Investments and OLher SSEES ... ...t se s se st sa s st st s s s b m b e s n e nben e mn s e s e s nessebeanasans 2,927 27,876
Notes and aCCoUNES PAYADIE ..ottt s e e et (1,635} (15,571}
SROFE LRI DOMFOWIMES . oervrrecer i receer e ss s bbbt e E s e a e e Fa R SR a e P g RS e e £ aE 2 s Ee s sonahE 2t s e s e eoe (28,401} (270,486}
Other current Liabilities ....ooviveveeeee e {12,352} {117,638}
Long-term debl.....ciieienirsniririr e (2,293} (21,838}
Other non-current liabilities (24,737) (235,590}
Minority iNterestS.....corvinisineeninnens (124) (1,181}
Total equity methed until consolidation (6,378} {60,743}
Sub-total: acquisition cost of Gyrus Group PLC and other subsidiaries ................. 259,735 2,473,666
Amount owed of purchase price ... e 20,468 194,933
Cash and cash equivalents owned by Gyrus Group PLC and cther subsidiaries..... 7,033 66,981
Payments for acquisition of Gyrus Group PLC and other subsidiaries .......uvieesenenieennnnnience ¥232,234 $2,211,752

Since purchase price allocation was based on preliminary estimates of fair value for the year ended March 31, 2008, asset and liability bal-

ances were subject to subsequent revisions.

In addition, since there were possibilities to change the purchase price of the companies based on the purchase agreement, goodwitl

was also subject to subsequant revision.

Details of assets and liabilities when NDT Engineering Corporation and other companies were consolidated for the year ended March 31,

2006 were as follows:

Millions of yen

Notes and accounts receivable........occvmee e,
Inventories ........coiiinnninnes
Property, plant and equipment..
Investments and other assets ...
Notes and accounts payable .....
Short-term borrowings...........

e CUITENL LADHIES 1iviivieiieiirsirieerrrasrairssenresrnrssaseerasmaranseaeeseeraestsetosssastsnssnssisstetentnnssassansastrnsnntnnsnssesassasssnnsnssassensensnnsnns
OB evvereererrereesresensaneeeseneeaeeaeerteresaesassssassasssssanasassrassassasessbsntsntsnsassassmnemnessnnsonsenseneesntsesssssnsinsinasintasiessssinsvasvasvesrasensonsvmrnnsnns

¥2,184
2,327
2,465
4,680
(1,224)
(2,564)
(23)

¥ 7,845

21. INFORMATION FOR CERTAIN LEASE TRANSACTIONS

LESSEE:

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries lease certain machinery and equipment under the non-cancelable finance and operating
leases. Finance leases that do not transfer ownership to lessees are not capitalized and are accounted for in the same manner as operat-
ing leases. Certain information for such non-capitalized finance leases for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
(Equivalent amount) 2008 2007 2008
ACQUISTTION COBY oottt ¥10,744 ¥10,692 $102,324
Accumulated depretiation . ... iioim e s (4,680) (5,391) {44,572)
Estimated net book value ..........ccceeieincrecrerescn e ¥ 6,064 ¥ 5201 $ 57,752
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Thousands of

Millions of yen U.5. dollars
(Lease payments and pro forma information) 2008 2007 2008
LEBASE PAYMENES Lottt i ctr sttt e e e e et e es s ra s ab e s he e s s he s s b aa b ae s e R e s benar ¥2,612 ¥2,540 $24,876
Equivalent of depreciation @XPeRSE.......c.ccor e it 2,434 2,377 23,181
Equivalent of iNterest eXpPense ...t 194 158 1,848

Equivalent of depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method cver the lease terms assuming no residual value.
Equivalent of interest expense is computed using the interest rate method over the lease terms for the difference between acquisition cost
and total lease payments.

Future minimum lease payments under the non-cancelable finance and operating leases having remaining terms in excess of one year
as of March 31, 2008 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S8. dollars
] TR U ¥2.269 $21,810
e Ty T I LT =T U (T PR PPPPTPORt 3,950 37,619
Total minimum lease payments ¥6,219 $59,220

22, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries use derivative financial instruments in the normal course of their business to manage

the exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates. The primary classes of derivatives used by the Company and its
consolidated subsidiaries are foreign exchange forward contracts, currency options, currency swaps and interest rate swaps. Almost all
derivative transactions are used to hedge interest rates and foreign currency positions in connection with their business. Accordingly, mar-
ket risk in these derivatives is largely offset by opposite movements in the underlying positions. Management assesses derivative transac-
tions and market risks surrounding these transactions according to the Company’s policy regarding derivative transactions. Caontracts of
derivative financial instruments are executed by finance departments of the Company or subsidiaries.

The counterparties to the derivative financial instruments of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries are substantial and cred-
itworthy multi-national commercial banks or other financial institutions that are recognized market makers. Neither the risks of counter-
party non-performance nor the economic consequences of counterparty non-performance associated with these contracts are considered
by the Company to be material.

Part of its consolidated subsidiaries also use stock-price swap contracts for speculation purposes within a limited amount. Stock-price
swap contracts are exposed to stock-price fluctuation risk.

The following table summarizes the underlying notional transaction amounts, book values and fair values for outstanding derivative
financial instruments by risk category and instrument type as of March 31, 2008 and 2007:

(As of March 31, 2008} Mitlions of yen Thousands of 1.5, dollars

Notional amount Book value Fair value Notional amount Book value Fair value

Foreign exchange forward contracts

To buy U.S. dollars...... ¥ 2n ¥ — ¥ 273 $ 2,581 $ — $ 2,800
To buy other currencies 2,265 — 2,316 21,571 — 22,057
Tosell U.S. dollars...... 27,503 — 27,503 261,933 — 261,933
To selt British pounds ... . 3,524 — 3,205 33,562 — 30,524
To sell other currencies .........cccccvvvieninnnn, 1,461 — 1,452 13,914 — 13,829
Foreign exchange option contracts
Put option.......cooovviieiieene . 6,274 131 475 59,752 1,248 4,524
Interest rate swap CORtracts ......coceeevrueeeeeen. 250 — (12) 2,381 — {114)
(As of March 31, 2007) Millions of yen
Notional amount Book value Fair value
Foreign exchange forward contracts
TODUY UG, dOWBIS oottt eveeeeme e e eae e e ¥ 206 ¥ — ¥ 206

T BUY Ot eI CUITENCIES ottt evee e 1,835 — 1.823

TOSEILU.S. dOUAIS it s 5,458 — 5,369

Tosell British pouNdS .. 4,235 — 4,175

== e =T o T =g Tt =TSSP 4,507 — 4,480
Foreign exchange option contracts

Ve a1 T OSSPSR 3,970 72 98
INterest rate SWaP CONTIACES .o e et 250 — (23)
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Foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swap contracts, currency swap contracts and foreign exchange option contracts for
which the hedge accounting is applied, are excluded from the above amounts.

The fair value of currency option agreements is estimated by obtaining quotes from financial institutions. The fair value of foreign
exchange forward contracts is estimated based on market prices for contracts with similar terms. The fair value of interest rate swap con-
tracts and stock-price swap contracts are estimated by obtaining quotes from financial institutions.

23. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
{a} Information by business segment

Segment information for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 are shown in the tables below:

Millions of yen

2008
imaging Medical Information and
Systems Systems Life Science Communication Elimination and Consolidated
Business Business Business Business Others Total Corparate Total
Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers ......... ¥320,589  ¥353,269  ¥131,446  ¥264.312 ¥ 69,250 ¥1,128,875 ¥ — ¥1,128,875
Intersegment.......ooeciieinnne 347 85 219 — 574 1,225 (1,225) —
Total.oivei v rrier v enees 320,938 353,364 131,665 254,312. 69,833 1,130,100 (1,225) 1,128,875
Operating expenses.....aw 287,850 254,934 124,675 251,311 68,916 987,686 28,566 1,016,252
Operating income........cccoeeenaee 33,086 98,420 6,990 3,001 917 142,414 (29,791) 112,623
ASSEIS i 147,293 537,921 94,916 128,949 151,641 1,080,720 297,629 1,358,349
Depreciation and amortization. 8,748 10,778 5,943 2,470 4,359 32,298 5,224 37,622
Capital expenditures..........coer. ¥ 10,638 ¥ 16,536 ¥ 7,792 ¥ 3,191 ¥ 4476 ¥ 42633 ¥ 7437 ¥ 50,070
Millions of yen
2007
Imaging Medical Information and
Systems Systems Life Science Communication Elimination and Consolidated
Business Business Business Business Qthers Total Corporate Total
Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers........  ¥294,303  ¥311,709  ¥123,706  ¥267,6%1 ¥64,377 ¥1,061786 ¥ — ¥1,061,786
Intersegment ....ccoeevvininniens 455 76 37 — 596 1,164 (1,164) —
Total.oeeieeieeeeeeiieee e 294,758 311,785 123,743 267,691 64,973 1,062,950 (1,164) 1,061,786
Operating expenses..........uue. 267,650 223,932 115,664 264,975 84,101 936,222 26,835 963,057
Operating income ........c.ooevienen, 27,208 87,853 8,079 2,716 872 126,728 (27,999) 98,729
AssetS . 167,693 227,884 94,632 131,069 90,004 701,282 380,518 1,091,800
Depreciation and amortization . 8,376 6,920 4,828 2,669 2,979 26,772 3,632 30,404

Capital expenditures...........o..re. ¥ 7,766 ¥ 15968 ¥ 8020 ¥ 3134 ¥ 4748 ¥ 39,036 ¥ 58660 ¥ 44698

Millions of yen

2006
Imaging Medical Infermation and
Systems Systems Life Science Communication Elimination and Consolidated
Business Business Business Business Others Total Corporate Total
Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers.......... ¥254.541 ¥266,317 ¥107.915 ¥284,808 ¥64,446 ¥878,127 ¥ — ¥978,127
Intersegment ........coocviniiiins 215 14 5 — 561 795 (795} —
Total.ooieieiininnees . 254,756 266,331 107,920 284,808 65,007 978,522 {795) 978,127
Operating expenses...........ceuee. 249,964 189,689 100,361 287,549 63,564 891,127 24,477 915,604
Operating income (loss)............ 4,792 76,642 7,559 (2,641) 1,443 87,795 (25,272} 62,523
Assets.. 129,895 193,280 79,571 131,348 85,930 620,024 356,108 976,132
Depreciation and amortization . 10,199 5,606 4,273 1,844 3,140 25,062 1,960 27,022

Capital expenditures ............... ¥ 9842 ¥ 14824 ¥ 8270 ¥ 2720 ¥ 5,144 ¥ 40,600 ¥ 3.B44 ¥ 44444
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Thousands of U.S. dollars

2008
Imaging Medical Information and
Systems Systems Life Science Communication Elimination and Consolidated
Business Business Business Business Others Total Corporate Total
Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers......... $3,053,229 $3,364,467 $1,251,867 $2,422,019 $ 659,608 $10,751,190 § — $10,751,190
Intersegment................ 3,304 809 2,085 — 5,469 11,667 (11,667) —
Total s 3,066,533 3,365,276 1,263,952 2,422,019 665,077 10,762,857 (11,667) 10,751,190
Operating expenses.......cc.ooeuues 2,741,428 2,427,943 1,187,381 2,393,438 656,343 9,406,533 272,087 9,678,590
Operating income ........ccccoeceees 315,105 937,333 66,571 28,581 8,734 1,356,324 (283,724) 1,072,600
ASSELS . 1,402,790 5,123,057 903,962 1,228,086 1,444,200 10,102,095 2,834,562 12,836,657
Depreciation and amortization . 83,314 102,648 56,600 23,524 41,514 307,600 49,752 357,352
Capital expenditures................. $ 101,314 $ 157,486 $ 74210 $ 30,390 $ 42629% 406,029 $ 70,828% 476,857

MNote: 1. InApril 2005, the Company transferred the product categories of industrial microscopes from the "Industrial Systems Businsss” to the "Life Science Business,”
and industrial endoscopes, printers, and bar code data processing equipment from the "Industrial Systerns Business* to "Others" based on the technical
characteristics of the products. The "Industrial Systems Business® was removed and its product categories were integrated into the following five business
segments: "Imaging Systems Business,” "Medical Systems Business,” "Life Science Business,” "Information and Communication Business,” and "Others.”

2. In fiscal 2008, these five business segments included the following products :
Digital cameras, Voice Recorders
Medical endoscopes, Surgical endoscopes, Endo-therapy devices, Ultrasound endoscopes
Diagnostic systems, Biological microscopes. Analytical services of genemic information, Industrial microscopes
Mabile terminals, Mobils solutions, Mobile content services, Metwark infrastructure systems, Development and
sales of business package software, Semiconductor devices, Electric equipment
Industrial endoscopes, Non-destructive testing equipment, Printers, Bar code data processing equipment,
Software development, etc.
3. In fiscal 2007, these five business segments included the following products :
Digital cameras, Film cameras, Voice Recorders
Medical endoscopes, Surgical endoscopes. Endo-therapy devices, Ultrasound endoscopes
Diagnostic systems, Biological microscopes, Analytical services of genomic information, Industrial microscopes
Mobile terminals, Mobile solutions, Mobile centent services, Network infrastructure systems, Development and
sales of business package software, Semiconductor devices, Electric equipment
Industrial endoscopes, Non-destructive testing equipment, Printers, Bar code data precessing equipment,

Imaging Systems Business:

Medical Systems Business:

Life Science Business:

Infermation and Communication Business:

Others:

imaging Systems Business:

Medical Systems Business:

Life Science Business:

Informaticn and Communication Business:

Others:

Software develop

ment, etc.

4. In fiscal 2008, these five business segments included the following products :
Digital cameras, Film cameras, Yoice Recorders
Medicat endoscopes, Surgical endoscopes, Endo-therapy devices, Ultrasound endoscopes

Diagnostic systemns, Biological microscopes. Analytical services of genomic information, Industrial microscopes
Mobile terminals, Mobile solutions, Mobite content services, Network infrastructure systems, System development,
Semiconductor devices, Electric equipment
Industrial endoscopes, Non-destructive testing equipment, Printers, Bar code data processing equipment,
Software development, etc.

Imaging Systems Business:

Medical Systems Business:

Life Science Business:

Information and Communication Business:

Others:

(b} Information by geographic location

Millions of yen

2008
Etimination and Consolidated
Japan America Europe Asia Total Corporate Total

Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers ....., ¥484,146 ¥259,137 ¥299,667 ¥ 85,925 ¥1,128,875 ¥ —_— ¥1,128,875
Intersegment........ccocvvreennes 341,219 10,675 13,318 110,410 475,822 (475,622} -_
Total..oc e 825,365 269,812 312,985 196,335 1,604,497 (475,622} 1,128,875
Operating expenses.............. 734,203 250,022 290,863 185,801 1,460,889 {444,637) 1,016,252
Operating income........ 91,162 19,790 22,122 10,534 143,608 (30,985) 112,623
ASSEES ...t ¥615,009 ¥364,099 ¥228,072 ¥121,033 ¥1,328,213 ¥ 30,136 ¥1,358,349

Millions of yen
2007
Etimination and Consolidated
Japan America Europe Asia Total Corporate Total

Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers....... ¥&74372 ¥242.760 ¥270,824 ¥ 73,830 ¥1.061.788 ¥ — ¥1,061,786
Intersegment ...........ocevres 301,331 7,808 11,238 100,867 421,042 (421,042) —
Totale.ocoeeervane, 775,703 250,366 282,062 174,697 1,482,828 (421,042) 1,061,786
Operating expenses.... 692,809 228,982 263,249 165,500 1,350,540 (387.483) 263,057
Operating income........cccoeeeen. §2,894 21,384 18,813 9,187 132,288 (33,559) 98,729
ASSEES ..ot ¥325,012 ¥122,6756 ¥186,165 ¥116,206 ¥ 750,058 ¥ 341,741 ¥1,091,800
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Millions of yen

2006
Elimination and Consolidated
Japan America Europe Asia Total Corporate Total
Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers...... ¥474,387 ¥209,473 ¥229,000 ¥ 66,267 ¥ 978,127 ¥ — ¥5978,127
Intersegment ............c........ 263,849 6,793 8,710 77.861 357,213 (357,213} —
L+ ¥ | RN 738,236 216,268 237,710 143,128 1,335,340 (357,213) 978,127
Operating expenses.............. 677,714 200,438 225,604 143,099 1,248,855 (331,26M) 815,604
Operating income .......cceivneeane 60,522 15,828 12,106 29 88,485 {25,962) 62,523
ASSELS v e ¥296,479 ¥105,389 ¥150,138 ¥100,358 ¥ B52,384 ¥ 323,768 ¥976,132
Thousands of U.5. dollars
2008
Elimination and Consolidated
Japan America Europe Asia Total Corporate Total
Net sales:
Unaffiliated customers ...... $4,610,914 $2,467,971 $2,853,971 $ 818,334 $10,751,190 $ —  $10,751,190
Intersegment.......cocccecmene 3,249,705 101,667 126,838 1,051,523 4,529,733 (4,529,733) -
Total. e 7,860,619 2,569,638 2,980,809 1,869,857 15,280,923 (4,529,733) 10,751,190
Operating expenses............... 6,992,409 2,381,162 2,770,123 1,769,534 13,913,228 (4,234,638) 9,678,590
Operating inCome........ccovvivene 868,210 188,476 210,686 100,323 1,367,695 (295,095) 1,072,600
ASSEES i $5,857,229 $3,467,610 $2,172,114 $1,152,695 $12,649,648 $ 287,009 $12,936,657
Notes:Segmentation is determined by geographical adjacency.
America includes the United States, Canada, Mexico and Brazil.
Europe includes Germany, the United Kingdom, France and other countries.
Asia includes Singapore, Hong Kong, China, South Korea, Australia and other countries.
(c) Overseas sales information
Thousands of
Milliens of yen U.S. dollars
2008 2007 2008 2008
EXPOFt SALES {A) 1vvrreeoeeeeeveeeeeeseeseeseeess s ssessees s s ssssbassbassasas s s nesns ¥ 708,648 ¥ 647,040 ¥601,181  § 6,740,029
£0 NOTER AMBFICA . .. ccrirrirsre e er e v aree s s s sessen s e se b s s s rnae e 240,254 229,235 224,283 2,288,133
O EUFOPE i e 303,110 278,614 247,857 2,886,762
L o3 T PO U VPPN 138,873 114,404 96,081 1,322,600
L0431 1T O TV U U PO S 26,411 24,887 32,960 251,534
NEt SA1ES (B) . ueruiriiiiiriiiierirrirreerercere s s ¥1,128,875 ¥1,061,788 ¥978,127 $10,751,190
F Y= PP P PO 62.8% 60.9% 61.5% 62.8%

Notes:Segmentation is determined by geographical adjacency.

North America includes the United States and Canada. Europe includes Germany, the United Kingdorn, France and other countries.

Asia includes Singapore, Hong Kong, China, South Korea, Australia and other countries,
Other areas include Central and South America, Africa and others,

24. RELATED PARTIES
Significant transactions with related parties in the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows.

G.C. New Vision Ventures, L.P. {an unconsolidated subsidiary}

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2008 2007 2008
REfUND OF IMVESEMIENL. ccvueeiiiieiieerereessasmsreereesnreoreaessarereeresraeabessen st ms s na s e mbnrrnsen s ¥13,911 ¥ — $132,486
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25. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The directors’ meeting held on May 8, 2008 approved the acquisition of treasury stock in accordance with Article 156 applied by reading of
terms pursuant to the provisions of Article 165(3} of the Japanese Corporate Law. The details were as follows:

Class of shares: Common stock

Number of shares: Limited to 3,500,000 shares

Cost of share acquisitions: Limited to ¥10,000 mitlion ($95,238 thousand)

Period of acquisitions: From May 9, 2008 to June 20, 2008

Method of purchase: From market

The company repurchased 2,958,000 shares of treasury stock at an acquisition cost of ¥9,998 million ($95,219 thousand) at Tokyo Stock
Exchange from May 9, 2008 to June 20, 2008.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OLYMPUS CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Olympus Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries as of March
31,2008 and 2007, the related consolidated statements of income for each of the three years in the period ended March 31,2008, the
consolidated statements of changes in net assets for the year ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, the consolidated statement of shareholders’
equity for the year ended March 31, 2006, and the consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended March 31, 2008, expressed in Japanese yen. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to independently express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Olympus Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2008, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following:

(1) As discussed in Note 2, effective Aprit 1, 2005, Olympus Corporation adopted new accounting standards for the impairment of fixed
assets and a new accounting standard for retirement benefits for subsidiary in the United Kingdom.

(2) As discussed in Note 23, effective April 1, 2005, Olympus Corporation changed the categories of business in the business segments.

(3} As discussed in Note 2, effective April 1, 20086, Olympus Corporaticn adopted new accounting standards for retirement benefits for
subsidiaries in the United States.

The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March 31, 2008 are
presented solely for convenience. Qur audit also included the translation of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such
translation has been made on the basis described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

KPMG AZSA R Co

Tokyo, Japan
June 27,2008
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY REPORT

Core Technology and Business Models of spectroscopic technology to diagnostic technology, and
Olympus’ management focuses on strengthening the usages of high-performance optics such as large-diameter
Company’s technological capabilities with the aim of becom- aspheric lenses, pursuing the infinite possibilities presented
ing an even more advanced technology-oriented company. by the apptication of light. One of the Company's achieve-

Olympus’ care competence is in Opto-Digital Technology, ments is the development of a new optical axisymmetric free
a fusion of the latest digital and optical technologies accu- curvature lens that enables omnidirectional image projection
mulated by the Company over many years, In order to further and shooting.
strengthen this ¢core competence, Olympus has positioned the In the electronic imaging technology field, Olympus is chan-
following technologies as fundamental and common to the neling its R&D results into its individual business segments.
Olympus Group as a whole: optical technology—the science R&D projects in this field cover such technologies as digital
of capturing and controlling light; electronic imaging technol- image processing, custom imager design and advanced,
ogy—the manipulation of digital images captured from light; high-definition image mapping. Examples are the Face
precision technologies—the technologies to create products Detection and Shadow Adjustment Technology, which prevents
accurately and control them precisely; and cell-related tech- backlighting failures by detecting faces and automatically
nology, which enables live cetl observation and cell separation adjusting the exposure to include the background, and High-
culturing that is indispensable for establishing regenerative Speed Imager AF.
medicine. By effectively channeling R&D resources to sharpen In the precision technology sphere, the Company focuses
its competitive edge, the Company continues to create new on R&D for Microelectromechanical Systems (MEMS),
levels of value for its Imaging Systems, Medical Systems, Life incorporating such technologies as ultra-fine processing,
Science and Industry-Related businesses. ultra-pregision processing, micro mounting, and micro sen-

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, Olympus' R&D sors and actuators, These technologies are essential elements
expenditure amounted to approximately ¥65.9 billion, of the key parts and cormnponents that distinguish Olympus’
accounting for roughly 5.8% of net sales. products from those of its competitors in various fields. Some

Olympus continuously enhanced its R&D efficiency in fiscal examples are the ultrasonic actuators installed in digital SLR
2008. Based on this achievement, Olympus will make ongoing cameras for industry-best image stabilization, ultrasonic
efforts to strengthen its existing businesses, while aggres- motors for interchangeable lens-type digital SLR cameras,
sively investing in M&A and R&D for the next generation of . optical encoders and AF sensor modules.
businesses. Cell-related technology at Olympus, which is aimed at

creating new business opportunities in the fields of biosci-
R&D Expenditure to Net Sales, R&D Efficiency ence and regenerative medicine, is supported by R&D in such
(%) areas as live cell analysis and manipulation technologies and
_ cell separation culturing technelogies. Te name just one of the
300 achievements, OSferion artificial bone replacement material
has now been commercialized.
J— o -8
200 R&D Efficiency (Left) e —
P 18 R&D Segment and IP Overview
S o _ > The following graphs show the number of published patents
100 Do, — i 'E'D Expenditure 1o Net Sales (Right) 10 Olympus possesses in its areas of core competence, as well
""""" Bt G @@ — as the number of such granted patents in relation to its overall
patent portfolio.
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Number of Patents Published by Area of Core Competence

‘R . . .
Notes: R&D expenditure to net sales and R&D efficiency are calculated on the basis of {Number of patents)

the IP strategy index set down by the Ministry of Economy, Trade and [ndustry.
R&D efficiency rate = Total operating income (2004-2008) / Total R&D

expenditure (1999-2003) 1,000 e

R&D expenditure to net sales = Total R&D expenditure aver five years / Total ""-.,

net sales over five years Qe e ) Qptical Technoto

gy - . n/ 3 8y
8. u/ Electronic Imaging Technology
R&D Activities and Business Strategy — -
) . 500 o e @ Pracision Technalogy
In an effort to further strengthen its Opto-Digital Technology, p——g
. . . aa T P T T Y . STTLITILL a

Olympus is currently engaged in R&D activities in the follow- il
. . s
ing four core technologies. e RS s Celi-Related Technology

In the optical technology field, the Company is continu-
ously undertaking R&D in areas including the application

Q4 05 a6 07 08
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As the second graph shows, Olympus has been increasing
the number of patents granted for each core competence
technology by carefully screening technologies before applying
for patents. In addition, the percentage of patents acquired in
core competence technologies rose 3% year on year in relation
to overall patents, showing the fruits of Olympus’ selection and
concentration of technologies based on its R&D strategies.

Number of Patents Granted by Core Competence Technology
{Numbar of patents granted)

Optical Technology
3,000 -

Contribution of the Patent Portfolio to Company Business
Olympus actively pursues a policy of converting R&D results
into patented IP while strictly screening which technologies
to apply for patents. The achievements of this policy over
the past five years, broken down by country, are shown in the
chart below. Particularly in China, both an important base for
production and an irreplaceable market, Olympus held 296
patents as of March 31, 2008, a year-on-year increase of 103
patents. We will make continuous efforts to raise the ratio of
patent grants received to total patent applications in Japan
while increasing patent applications and grants overseas. In
addition, we will strengthen our relationships with overseas

affiliate companies that conduct R&D, thereby reinforcing our
Groupwide IP portfolio on a global basis.
2,000 ) . | The number and ratio of Olympus’ patents in each business
J/Elwm"'c Imaging Technology area at the end of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 are
a.- e shown in the table below. Olympus holds patents that offer
To00 7 Pracision Technology business potential in each of its Imaging Systems, Medical
' o .o v Systems, Life Science and Industry-Related businesses. The
G/Cli-ﬂelated Technology Company's core imaging Systems and Medical Systems busi-
irresreseemessaneeemesiss Dessnesemsipare s eos nesses account for 67% of all patents held.
08 07 08
Percentages of Patents Held in Core Competence Technologies Number of Patents Held by Country
(%) (Number of patents, thousands)
- QOthers
12 China
_ United States
Applied El
Technology Optical
Technotegy
I Japan
Cell-Ralated
Technology Electronic
Imaging
Technology T
Pracigion Technology 08
04 05 08 07 08
Number and Ratio of Patents Held by Business Group Corporate
Imaging Madical Life Industry- R&D
Systems Systems Science Related Center Total
Japan patents.....i i 1,988 2,451 668 203 1,060 6,367
% 10 10LAL {28) vrerr e e N 38 10 3 17 100
U.S. pateMS ...overericiin et creseerne e 1,383 951 401 185 777 3,667
% to total (%) 38 26 1" 4 21 100
China patents ......cccoei i, 185 24 47 6 24 296
% to total (%) 66 8 16 2 8 100
Other patents ... 101 301 182 14 117 715
% to total {%} 14 42 25 2 18 100
TOAL crvvrrrenmnciiees e cree e errr s 3,664 3,727 1,298 378 1,978 11,045
% to total (%) a3 34 12 3 18 100
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS BASES

{As of March 31, 2008}

OLYMPUS CORPORATION

OLYMPUS IMAGING CORP

OLYMPUS MEDICAL SYSTEMS CORP.
Shinjuku Menolith, 3-1 Nishi-Shinjuku 2-chome,
Shinjuku-ku, Tokyo 163-0814, Japan

Tel: +81-3-3340-2111 Fax: +81-3-3340-2062
htitp:#www.olympus.co.jp/en/

OLYMPUS AMERICA INC.

OLYMPUS IMAGING AMERICA INC.
3500 Corporate Parkway, P. 0. Box 610, Center Valley,
PA 18034-0610,U.8. A,

Tal: +1-484-896-5000
http:#www.olympusamerica.com/

OLYMPUS EUROPA HOLDING GMBH
OLYMPUS IMAGING EUROPA GMEBH

OLYMPUS MEDICAL SYSTEMS EUROPA GMBH
OLYMPUS LIFE SCIENCE EUROPA GMBH
Wendenstrasse 14-18, D-20097 Hamburg, Germany

Tel: +49-40-23-77-30

http:#www.olympus-europa.com/

KEYMED (MEDICAL & INDUSTRIAL EGQUIPMENTILTD.
KeyMed House, Stock Road, Southend-on-Sea,

Essex 552 5QH, U.K.

Tel: +440-1702-616333

http:/fwww. keymed.co.uk/

OLYMPUS (CHINA) CO_LTD,

12F, NCl Tower, A12 Jianguomenwai Avenue,
Chaoyang District, Beijing 100022, PR.C.
Tel: +86-10-6569-3535
http:#en.olympus.com/

ITX Corparation

14F Kasumigaseki Bldg., 3-2-5, Kasumigaseki,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokye 100-6014, Japan

Tel: +81-3-4288-7000
http:/fwww.itx-corp.co.jp/

Further information is availatle on request. including a company brochure
and preduct catalogs. Please contact us at the nearest address above.

CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

(As of March 31, 2008)

DOMESTIC

Olympus Imaging Corp.
{Takyo)
Manufacture and sale of aptical equipment and electronic products

Olympus Medical Systems Corp.

(Tokyo)
Manufacture and sale of medical equipment

Aizu Olympus Co., Ltd.
(Fukushima}
Manufacture of optical equipment and medical equipment

Aomori Olympus Co., Ltd,
(Aameri)
Manufacture of medical equipment

Olympus Opto-Technology Co., Ltd.
{Nagana)
Manufacture of components for optical equipment and electronic products

Shirakawa Olympus Co., Ltd.
{Fukushima}
Manufacture of optical equipment and medical equipment

Mishima Olympus Co., Ltd.
(Shizuoka)
Manufacture of medical equipment

Okaya Olympus Co., Ltd.
(Nagano)
Manufacture of optical equipment and electronic products

Olympus Systams Corporation

{Tokyo)
Infarmation services and system development

Olympus Software Technology Corp.
{Tokyo)
Infor mation services ard system development

Olympus Logitex Co,, Ltd.
(Kanagawa)
Transpartation

Olympus Leasing Co., Ltd.

(Tokyo)
Leasing of medical equipment

Olympus Medical Engineering Co., Ltd.

{Tokyo) )
Maintenance and services for medical equipmant

Olympus Engineering Co., Ltd.
{Tokyo)
Davelopment and manufacture of optical equipment

Olympus Intellectual Property Services Co., Ltd.

(Tokya)
Research, administration and foreign application of intallectual property rights

ITX Corporation
(Tokyo)
Investmant and busingss incubation

IT Telecom, Inc.

{Tokyo)
Sale of information ang communication equipment

Soliste Corporation

(Tokyo)
Sala of etectronic devicas

KS Olympus Co., Ltd.

(Tokyo)
Sale of optical equipment, medical equipment, and electronic products

Broadleaf Co.,Ltd.

(Tokyo)
Davelopment and sales of business software

Olympus Terume Biomaterials Corp.
(Tokyo)
Resaarch and devalopment, manufacture and sale in the biomaterial field

Olympus Visual Communications Corp.
(Tokyo)

Development and sale of training systems for maintaining and improving eyesight, motion

eyesight, and marketing and sales of contents and services related ta photography and
music

Olympus Digital System Design Corp.

(Tokyo)
Rasearch and developmant of saphisticatad digital system dasign tachnalagy

69 other subsidiaries ana affiliated companias
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OVERSEAS

Olympus USA Incorporated

[Pennsytvania, U.S.A)

Holding company that provides financial support and comprehensive business planning
for affiliated companies in the United States

* Cempany name changed to Olympus Corparation of the Americas on April 1, 2008.

Olympus America Inc.
(Pannsylvania, U.S.A}
Import and sale of optical equipment and medical equipment

Olympus tmaging America Inc.
{Pennsytvania, U.S.A)
Impert and sale of optical equipment and electrical preducts

Olympus Latin America, Inc.
{Miarmi, U.5.A)
\mport and sate of aptical equipment and medical equipment

Olympus NDT Corporation
(Massachusetts, U.S.A}
Holding company

Olympus NDT Canada Inc.
{Québec, Canada)
Manufacturing and maintenance services of non-destructive testing aquipment

Olympus Europa Holding GmbH

{Hamburg, Germany}

Parent company of European subsidiaries, offaring corporate support services o
Group companies

Olympus Imaging Europa GmbH
[Hamburg, Germany)
Import and sale of optical equipment and electrical products

Olympus Medical Systems Europa GmbH
{Hamburg. Germany)
Import and sale of medical equipment

Olympus Life Science Europa GmbH
{Hamburg, Germany)
Sale of optical and medical equipment and electrical products

Olympus Life Science Research Europa GrmbH
{Munich, Germany)

Development and manufacture of clinical analyzers, reagents, and biotachnology products

QOlympus Deutschland GmbH
(Hamburg, Germany)
Sale of optical and medical equipment and elactrical products

Olympus Winter & Ibe GmbH
{Hamburg, Germany)
Manufacture, import and sale of medical equipmeant

Olympus KeyMed Group Limited
(Londen, U.K)
Holding company that manages investments and investmant raturns

KeyMed (Medical & Industrial Equipment) Ltd.

(Essex, U.K)

Manufacture anc sale of medical equipmaent and optical equipment, import and sale of
medical equipment

Qlympus Surgical & Industrial America, Inc.
{New York,U.5.A)
Import and sale of medical and industrial equipment

Qlympus UK {Holding) Ltd.
(Landan, U.K)
Helging company that manages investments and investment returns

Olympus UK Ltd.
(Lendon,U.K)
Import and sale of optica! equipment, medical equipment and electronic preducts

Olympus France S.A.S.
{Rungis Cedex, France)
Import and sale of optical equipment, medical equipment and electroniec products
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Olympus Finance Hong Kong Limited
{Hong Kong)
Holding company that operates and manages invesiments and investment returns

Olympus Hong Kong and China Limited
(Hong Kong)
Manufacture and sale of optical equipment and etectronic products

Olympus (Shenzhen) Industrial Ltd.
{Shenzhan, China)
Manufacture of optical equipment and electronic preducts

Olympus (China) Co., Ltd.
{Baijing, China)
Investment in and financing of Chinese subsidiaries

Olympus Imaging China Co., Ltd.
{Shanghai, China)
Sale of optical equipment and electronic products

Olympus (Beijing) Industry & Technology Limited
(Beljing, China)
Manufacture of opticai equipment and electronic products

Olympus (Guangzhou) Industrial Ltd.
(Guangzhou, China}
Manufacture of optical equipment and electronic products

Olympus (Beijing) Salss & Service Co., Ltd.
(Beijing, China}
Sale of medical and optical equipment

Olympus Trading {Shanghai) Limited
{Shanghai, China)
Import and sale of optical equipment and medical preducts

Olympus Korea Co,, Ltd.
{Seoul, Xorea)
Import and sale of optical equipment, medical equipment and electronic products

Olympus Optical Technology Philippines, Inc.
{Cebu, Philippines)
Manufacture of optical eguipment

Olympus Singapore Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)
Import and sale of optical aquipment and medical products

Olympus Imaging Singapore Pte. Ltd.
(Singapore)
import and sale of electronic products

Olympus Australia Pty Ltd.
{Mount Waverley, Australia)
Impart and sate of optical equipment and medical equipment

Olympus Imaging Australia Pty Ltd.
{Narth Ryda, Australia)
Import and sale of elactronic preducts

Olympus Moscow Limited Liability Company
{Moscow. Russia)
Import and sale of medical and industrial equipment

Gyrus Group PLC

(CardiffUK)

Holding company

* Company name changed to Gyrus Group Limited on June 11,2008,

188 other subsidiaries ang affiliated companies




INVESTOR INFORMATION

(As of March 31, 2008)

TRANSFER AGENT FOR COMMON STOCK
The Chuo Mitsui Trust & Banking Ca., Ltd.
33-1, Shiba 3-chome,

Minato-ku, Tokye 105-0014, Japan

DEPOSITARY AND TRANSFER AGENT FOR AMERICAN DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS
The Bank of New York Mellon

101 Barclay Street, New York, NY 10286, U.S.A.

Tel: +1-866-680-6825 U.S. toll free: 888-269-2377 (888-BNY-ADRS)
http:/www.adrbnymellon.com

Ratio (ADR:ORD}: 111

Exchange: OTC (Over-the-Counter}

Symbaol: OCPNY

CUSIP: 68163W109

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTINGS IN JAPAN
Tokyo and Osaka

TOTAL SHARES OF COMMON STOCK ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING
271,283,608

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS
12,767

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

Number of shares
held {thousands)*

Percentage of shares
outstanding (%)

Nippon Life Insurance Company... 22,426
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd (trust accounts).... 16,385
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.. 13,435
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (trust accounts) 12,253

State Street Bank and Trust Company

(Standing proxy: Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.'s

Kabutocho Custody & Proxy Department within

the Settlement & Clearing Services Division) ................ 10,288
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.

{The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Company

Retrust Portion, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking

Corporation Pension Trusth ... cceeneseeeeeec e 9,004
Sumitome Mitsui Banking Corporation .......cceciviieanen, 8,350
Terumo Carporation ............. 6,811
Meiji Yasuda Life lnsurance Company 4,518
The Dai-ichi Mutual Life Insurance Company 4,442

8.26
6.03
4.95
4.51

3.79

Ry
3.07
2.51
1.66
1.63

DISTRIBUTION OF SHARES BY TYPE OF SHAREHOLDER

Number of Number of shares  Percentage of total
shareholders held {thousands)* shares outstanding {%)

Japanese financial institutions .........coceeeenne 144 140,844 52.22
Japanese companies trading in

financial instruments ........coceveiiceiinnceene. 56 8,222 3.05
QOther Japanese corporations .......ccccvveviveens, 243 27,244 10.10
Japanese individuals and others ................. 6,856 17,520 6.49
Foreign institutions and individuals. “ 384 75,898 28.14

Total. i et 7,693 269,728 100.00

*Figures are truncated at thousands.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report centains ferward-looking statements concerning Olympus’ future plans, strategies,
and performance. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts, rather they represent
assumptions and beliefs based on economic, financial, and competitive data currently available.
Furthermore, they are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that, without limitation, relate to
economic conditions, worldwide business competition, customer demand, foreign currency exchange
rates, tax rules, regulations, and other facters. Olympus therefere wishes te cauticn readers that actual

results may differ materially from cur expectations.
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Translations or summaries of the Japanese language documents
for which English versions are not readily available

No English versions or translations are available for the documents listed below,

therefore we have prepared English translations or summaries to these Japanese language
documents as follows:

Documents Disclosed Pursuant to Article 24-4-7(1) of the Financial Instruments and

Exchange Law of Japan:

1.

“Quarterly Securities Report” for the first quarter ended June 30, 2008, as filed with
the Director-General of the Kanto Local Finance Bureau of the Ministry of Finance of
Japan on August 14, 2008 (summary)

(Exhibit B-1)

Press Releases:

1.

Japanese press release dated July 31, 2008: Olympus Medical Systems Corp., together
with two other companies who support the “Brave Circle” campaign to eradicate
colorectal cancer, will sponsor a forum for residents in Fukui prefecture on Sunday,
August 10, 2008.

Japanese press release dated August 1, 2008: Olympus Imaging Corp. will hold a
promotional campaign from August 8, 2008 to May 6, 2009 in which customers who
purchase “Olympus E-System” digital single-lens reflex camera products (camera
body, lens or flash) can enter a draw to win a 3-day trip to view and photograph the
first lunar eclipse in Japan in 46 years.

Japanese press release dated August 6, 2008: The “wakuwaku kagaku kyoshitsu”
website, a website aimed at introducing science to elementary and junior high school
students, will be relaunched with new content on August 6, 2008. The website was
established by the Olympus wakuwaku Project, a volunteer group consisting of
employees of the Company.

Japanese press release dated August 6, 2008: Olympus Imaging Corp. will commence
the sale of two entry model IC recorders in the “Voice-Trek” range on August 29,
2008. The two new models, the “Voice-Trek VN-6200" and the “Voice-Trek VN
3200 both feature high-quality, long-life sound recording capabilities, ease of use and
low energy consumption.

Japanese press release dated August 19, 2008: Olympus Imaging Corp. will
commence the sale of the “CAMEDIA FE-360” compact digital camera in the “FE
(Friendly & Easy) Series” from August 28, 2008.

Japanese press release dated August 19, 2008: Olympus Imaging Corp. will
commence the sale of the “CAMEDIA FE-370” compact digital camera in the “FE
(Friendly & Easy) Series” from August 28, 2008.

Japanese press release dated August 19, 2008: Olympus Imaging Corp. will
commence the sale of the “p 1060” compact digital camera August 30, 2008.
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Exhibit B-1

Quarterly Securities Report for the first quarter ended June 30, 2008, as filed with the
Director-General of the Kanto Local Financial Bureau of the Ministry of Finance of
Japan on August 14, 2008, which includes:

I. Corporate information

A,

o

Corporate overview

1. History of changes in major business indices
2. Overview of business

3. Associated companies

4. Employee information

Business

1. Production, orders and sales

2. Material contracts

3. Discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operation

Capital assets

Company information
1. Share information
(i) Total number of shares
(ii) Stock options
(iii) Rights plan :
(iv) Total number of issued and outstanding shares, changes in capital
(v) Major shareholders
(vi) Voting rights
2. Changes in share price
3. Directors and corporate auditors

Financial Information
1. Consolidated quarterly financial statements
(i) Consolidated quarterly balance sheet
(ii) Consolidated quarterly statement of income
(iii) Consolidated quarterly statement of cash flow
2. Others

II. Information on Guarantors and Others

s Auditor’s Review Report for the First Quarterly ended June 30, 2008

TKDOCS01/43570.2

End of Document



Fiona MacKinnon

From: Fiona MacKinnon

Sent:  Friday, August 29, 2008 10:24 AM

To: Heather McGiffin; Paul Garvey

Cc: Masahisa lkeda; Mizuho Sadamasu

Subject: Olympus Corporation 12g3-2(b) filing for August 2008

Dear Heather and Paul,

We have couriered via Fedex a set of documents for Olympus Corporation’s 12g3-2(b) filing with the SEC.
Once the documents arrive, please proceed with the filing.

When the filing has been completed, please email us a PDF copy of the return receipt and send us the original return
receipt via pouch,
Thank you very much for your assistance in advance.

Fiona

VY=RUIFRAR—-VTHEEBEAMLTERM
Shearman & Sterling LLP
7 4 FF I vF./ Fiona MacKinnon

Legal Specialist

TEL:03-5251-0210 / +81-3-5251-0210(from overseas)
FAX:03-5251-1602 / +81-3-5251-1602(from overseas)
fiona.mackinnon@shearman.com | www.shearman,.com

END

8/29/2008



